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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall bring this Budget and Finance Committee meeting
to order. This is Tuesday April 26, 2016. We are in the continued review of the
Present this morning we have
Mayor's Proposed 2017 Budget, Members.
Vice-Chairman Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Committee Members, Mr. Carroll -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Crivello -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Guzman -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excused is Ms. Cochran at this time. She'll be joining us shortly. This
morning, Members, at this point in time we shall take public testimony. We have
some requests this morning. The rules of this Committee are that when your name is
called please come forward, state your name for the record. If you have an
organization or entity you're representing please share that with the Committee. We
have posted one item which means there's only one item to speak on so there is only
three minutes that you will have to speak on to the Committee this morning. So we
will assist you with time. When you start, your time starts so it's the green light.
Two minutes 30 seconds the yellow light goes on and like any good intersection you
will stop at the red light. You may be requested to provide clarification of comments
by the Members after your testimony. Also by rules of this Committee and I share this
with everyone if your name is called and you are not present, the Committee will then
bypass your name and you will not be called again. Okay. If you are called and you
are not present we will continue to move on and you will not be recalled back. Okay,
with that we shall ask for public testimony and we welcome Pualani Enos if she will
please come down and share her thoughts with us please. Following Ms. Enos will be
Mr. David Goode.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. ENOS: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. ENOS: Good morning, Councilmembers. Thank you so much for all the listening you've
been doing at the community meetings. I'm here this morning to address the increase
that we're asking for and to clarify that this increase is not to do business as. usual.
This is not to just continue 'what we've been doing in the past the way we've been
doing it but to help us to build a new model that enables us to be more efficient and
more effective over the next two decades. We've been working hard over the past
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five years to figure out how we're going to be around for another two decades. How we
can do more, do it better, and the County's funding has been an integral part of that
and I thank you. We realize that we have finally realized our niche which is not to be
a school but to be a youth resource and development center where we help to address
students who have been dismissed, disconnected, and written off as not useful to our
community. The nature of our challenge is highly resource intensive because we have
to rebuild simple basics, emotional, find basic needs, social skills, and this requires a
lot of resources. We also need to work as part of an ecosystem coordinating services
and support across community providers. With so many more complex issues facing
our community funding has grown increasingly more scarce and especially for these
forgotten kids. The numbers are growing. You see more kids out on the street during
school days with nothing to do and most of our youth are not working, aren't
participating in any kind of extra-curricular activities. We want to build this new
model so that we can be an additional community asset to our employers but building
this new approach requires investment. You have seen our students but that
transformation takes an incredible amount of resource and we have to figure out a
way to serve more of them as the need increases. So our North Star is to break the
cycles of reliance on public housing, public assistance, and to break the cycle of
substance abuse and criminal behavior, to reduce the need for trauma recovery
services, and employment...unemployment benefits because our youth are ready and
18 to be able to join our workforce and be able to be positive contributors throughout
their lifetime. We are taking three steps to make this happen, partner with business,
measure impacts and levers to see what's really working, and to build a strategic
framework that speaks to employers in terms of product and outcome. While intellect
is important, high character, positive attitude, work ethic, and discipline, being able to
control one's impulses, to work as a community to bring everyone up is not something
many of our youth see in their everyday and that's what we're trying to provide so that
we can create that kind of community contributor.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Members, questions for Ms. Enos on
testimony provided?
MS. ENOS: Thank you so much for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Having none, thank you so much for your presence. David Goode followed
by Jonathan Starr. Thank you, Director.
MR. GOODE: Good morning, Chair and Members of the Committee. David Goode, Director
of the Department of Public Works. Thanks for the opportunity to address some of the
items before you today. In general I want to thank you, Chair, for considering and
accepting most of our suggested changes in the FY '17 Proposed Budget. I'm handing
out some specific items for revisiting during your deliberations as well as areas of
agreement in your proposed amendments. I'd like to take my balance of my three
minutes before I run red lights to cover a few items. No. 1 we support, our
Department supports the CIP staff in the Managing Director's Office because without
their knowledge and expertise there's no way we'd be at a place where we can get the
Molokai Baseyard out to bid. Our Department's design expertise is in civil
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construction: roads, bridges, drainage structures, some in building maintenance. But
new vertical construction is a whole other endeavor. Huge costs savings from
experienced vertical construction project management offered by the Managing
Director's CIP staff is apparent just in this one job they're doing for us. Second, I have
some concerns related to what it looks like some ratcheting up of towards a line item
style budget in CIP by placing limits on planning, design, and construction funding in
CIP. We see this as a surefire way to drive up CIP costs and time to complete projects.
Construction delays are really the biggest cost driver. If the Committee has issues
with CIP delivery in our Department, any other department, we're happy to discuss it I
think in a longer venue in a committee forum and really dive into what's important to
the Council and how we can help meet that. Third item, just operations. Again, most
of my comments are in the handout but I just want to highlight the MS4 Program. I
appreciate some of the funding that was granted, Chair, I'd like to see all the funding,
something we discussed in IEM Committee a number of times. Most of the Members
understand it's something that can and will help our environment as well as a meet a
mandate from the Federal government. So we ask for restoration of the additional
position not in the Chair's Budget as well as Professional Services in the amount of
$150,000. We do want to note that our Department has stepped up to the plate and
delivered and found additional funds and money to make this program work and were
asking for you guys to help make it go all the way. And No. 4 I just want to say
mahalo for putting in the Molokai Baseyard and let's get it done. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Members, questions to the Director on his
testimony? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Goode, for being
here. In your written testimony you talk about the premium pay for MAPPS. I don't
know if you saw in the Budget it was put in a big, huge lump sum in a different area.
Have you looked at that and if so is that enough to cover the whole County's
. . .(inaudible). . .
MR. GOODE: I have to...I don't know how much is in that other category.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Hundred thousand. Hundred thousand.
MR. GOODE: So, it's 100,000 for all the departments? I don't know what the other
departments asked for so I know for us the MAPPS Program is...we're already putting
a huge effort already, in the last month it's really ratcheted up. And, you know,
successful launch of our new permitting system is incredibly critical to our future
operating costs. If we have major hiccups along the way that 20,000 is going to be,
you know, nickels chasing dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: So, I'll take a look at it. I just need to understand the full implication of that
money.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other questions for Mr. Goode, Members? Thank you
very much, Mr. Goode -MR. GOODE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for sharing your comments. Jonathan Starr and he'll be followed by
Chief Murray.
MR. STARR: Good morning, Chair Hokama -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. STARR: --hardworking Budget Committee Members. My name is Jonathan Starr, I'm
here as Commissioner on the Maui Redevelopment Agency. I'm also a board member
of the newly reformed Wailuku Community Association. And I'm here specifically to
talk about Budget line 1020 which is the budget for the Maui Redevelopment Agency.
Citizen commissioners and other volunteers, and people in the community have
worked really hard for Wailuku. I look back a year ago to the photos I was taking with
my iPhone and most of them related to vagrants and people who were clients of some
of the nonprofit drug rehab and other services that have almost all congregated toward
the center of Wailuku. And every day there were a group of people in front of my
building, some drinking and leaving drug paraphernalia and whiskey bottles behind.
And I had just gotten a new tenant, a yoga studio with really high hopes and every day
there were a group of alcoholics camped on the steps of their building and they were
intimidated and twice I had my life threatened trying to either take photos of them or
move them along. When we did call the police we'd get three squad cars parked there
with officers going into the yoga studio and disrupting their business. This was what
was going on around Wailuku. Council thankfully helped us with some money to start
a Clean and Safe Program which we instituted for half of the year. Just we were able
to afford the safety part of it and that problem has virtually gone away. Wailuku is
now safe to walk around and most of the problems that we had have really evaporated
because we've had people on the streets and talking to the groups and working with
social service, working with the police, and it's been a very successful program. We
have been looking to make it a full Clean and Safe Program this year and we have
huge community support and Administration support. And we just went through the
process which we didn't have time to do last year to get it properly encumbered and
ready to go. And now we see the funds to pay for it have been cut by $100,000 which
is virtually the heart of the program. So we really need this. We can...Wailuku is
starting to become a success story. We'd hate to turn back the clock and stop the
people who are looking to move in and make Wailuku the vibrant thriving downtown
that Maui needs. Thank you very much for your efforts. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Starr. Members, any questions for the
gentleman? Okay, thank you very much. Chief Murray followed by Erin Wade.
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MR. MURRAY: Aloha, good morning, Budget Chair and Councilmembers. I'm here to talk
about three items. The first one would be the County Capital Improvement Program
team. I think you need to really take a look at that 'cause they've been very successful
in working with our Department. Also, I'd like to talk about our budget for the
Fire Department. I have presented before you three pages of items on there that were
deleted. Points of interest is the Accreditation Manager. I cannot speak enough about
that program as well as the Information Communications Manager. Also we talk
about our turnout replacement that we made an agreement last year that we would
forego 50 percent of that knowing that this year we would come with the other
50 percent because they will be expiring and that is a safety concern. Items like
automatic defibrillators need to be replaced. Also premium pay is something that
needs to be taken care of on a daily basis for us when we do coverage. So, you know,
I'm sorry but that's how it ends up for us on a daily basis to provide the coverage for
our community. Also, I'd like to see the reinstatement of the vacant Battalion Chief
positions. I don't even see how that can come up. I'm very, very concerned about that
as well as emergency apparatus. I also wanted to let you know that we want to add
two more apparatuses because of the closure of...anticipated closure of HC&S so we're
adding two tankers. That wasn't present in the thought process moving forward when
we turned in our budget in October. I also want to talk about the Ocean Safety
Program. We ask that you restore that...all of the items on there. Without those items
moving forward would be really hard for us as a Department and probably not possible
during this next fiscal year. I also want to talk about Bargaining Unit 14. There's
been a lot of discussion Statewide about that program. That situation was arbitrated,
I would ask that you folks take a look at it. The feedback that I've been getting from
the employees, not just our County employees but other departments, Public Safety
and what have you, and also lifeguards throughout the State please reconsider that.
They did that in good faith. So thank you, I'd be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chief. Members, questions for the Chief at this time on
testimony he shared? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thank you, Chair. One quick question, Chief, hopefully
quick answer. You mentioned the Ocean Safety you wouldn't be able to move it if it
didn't have all those extra bodies? Can you ...
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely not. We wouldn't have the ability to have the coverage. So in the
beginning when this whole thing was discussed that it was never about cost savings.
It was about doing things correctly and safe for the employees as well as the people
that we're serving throughout the public. So this is at a minimum. It's a one-time
cost in the beginning and it would be substantially lower throughout the years as we
move forward. But it would be a much better system, a much safer system for our
rescue people as well as the community.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions, Members, on testimony given this
morning? Okay, Chief, we thank you very much for your comments --7-
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MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and your attachments you've submitted. Erin Wade and she will be
followed by Eric Nakagawa.
MS. WADE: Thank you. Good morning, Chair and Members. The MRA Chair Don Fujimoto
and Vice-Chair Carol Ball wanted to be here today. Coincidentally they both had to be
in Honolulu so I'm here at their request. I'm here regarding line 1020, this is the Maui
Redevelopment Agency's budget. I'd like to share with you briefly our journey to
create a Clean and Safe Program in Wailuku. Last year the Council gave the MRA
250,000 so this year's budget request was lower already but with that we expected to
use 150,000 for the Clean and Safe Program. Then in August of 2015 before the MRA
had the opportunity to get the program in place, Wailuku experienced a scary increase
in vagrancy as Jonathan Starr explained. The situation truly sent the neighborhood
into a panic so, such that Councilmember Victorino stepped in and hosted a series of
public meetings. Due to the seriousness of the situation the MRA changed the focus
from the full scale Clean and Safe Program to simply additional security on the street
The MRA contracted former Lahaina-based police officer
immediately.
Lawrence Kauhaahaa to immediately begin working with the businesses to make the
neighborhood safer while the RFP was posted for the larger program. At the time given
the severity of the safety concerns it seemed we wouldn't have enough budget for the
full Clean and Safe Program and we found that to be true. When the bids came back
in the budget not only exceeded our Clean and Safe budget, it exceeded the entire
MRA budget. Then we regrouped and in consulting with Lawrence and the Police
Department we decided to see if we could take a more homegrown and strategic
approach to the Clean and Safe project. Lawrence began meeting regularly with police
and area social service agencies to coordinate efforts in the neighborhood. He started
educating business owners about how to work within the law and with the police to
address vagrancy with the goal of conditioning the behavior of the most offensive and
aggressive people in the neighborhood. His efforts have been met with success and so
have the community's. By February the MRA felt comfortable that the situation was
under control to the degree that we could issue a second RFP for the full
Clean and Safe Program. Proposals came in this year April 13th and a committee
evaluated the requested vendors last week. The MRA would like to move forward with
Clean and Safe but the 100,000 that was removed from the Chair's proposal is needed
to do so. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Wade. Members, questions for the lady on testimony
presented? Okay, having none, Ms. Wade, thank you for sharing your comments.
MS. WADE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nakagawa, good morning. Following Mr. Nakagawa will be
Chief Faaumu.
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MR. NAKAGAWA: Alright, good morning, Chair, Members. Over the past couple of years, the
Wastewater Reclamation Division has successfully treated 8.4 billion gallons of
wastewater generated throughout the County of Maui. We've accomplished this by
solidifying our Capital Improvement Program, becoming more efficient with our
operation and maintenance, and obtaining qualified personnel. With the support of
this body we will continue to keep wastewater in the pipes and protect our
environment. Therefore I'm here today to ask this body to reconsider the deletion of
several CIP projects and one of the expansion positions. So five CIP projects were
deleted from the proposed budget. Two of them were expansion projects, two were
reclaimed water projects, and one was a reliability project. I'm asking this body to
reconsider the reliability project which was Napili 4 Force Main Replacement Project.
This project was identified in a 2004 study as one of the force mains that needed to be
replaced. It was built in 1985. Force mains are the worst problems to have when it
fails and we all remember the Beachwalk force main failure on Oahu in March of
2006. It took the City and County of Honolulu five days to repair which resulted in
50 million gallons of raw sewage spilling into the Ala Wai and out into the ocean.
Force mains are difficult to fix and the failures are catastrophic. I would also like to
ask this body to reconsider the deletion of two reclaimed water projects in the Kihei
District. These projects will allow us to have a more reliable reclaimed water system
as well as reduce the amount of effluent down our injection wells by providing the new
Kihei High School with reclaimed water. And for my last request I would like this body
to reconsider the deletion of the GIS Technician. This position is key to the One Call
Center Program which protects our underground sewer infrastructure, the data
collection and input for our GIS Program and the future MAPPS Program. We all know
that these high-tech computers and software is only as good as the information we
input. About five years back we were quoted a cost of roughly $50,000 a year to do a
portion of what the GIS Technician will do therefore I feel it's worth it to hire a GIS
Technician fulltime for 21,000 a year. And in conclusion I would like to thank this
body for listening to my testimony and appreciate your continued support in keeping
the County of Maui free from wastewater spills. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Nakagawa. Thank you for the handout also. Members,
questions for the gentleman? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And then thank you, Mr. Nakagawa.
When you say need the GIS position back, if the MAPPS Project comes up and gets
going, when it gets going, will that GIS person be still necessary?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nakagawa?
MR. NAKAGAWA: Yes, Chair. Yes, from my understanding the MAPPS Program will be
established through a different department but each department is still responsible for
all of the information input and the handling of that program.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Any other questions for the gentleman? Thank
you again for being present.
MR. NAKAGAWA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, if you would join us please, Faaumu. And following the Chief will
be Mr. Cesar Gaxiola.
MR. FAAUMU: Good morning, Mr. Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, Chief.
MR. FAAUMU: --Councilmembers. Tivoli Faaumu, Chief of Police for Maui County.
Mr. Chairman, I commend your Committee on what you folks have done to make sure
that all the services that needed by our...by the residents of our County are being
taken care of. What I'm here today to ask you if you can at least review or revisit the
expansion position that I had requested. The first one is the Police Major position for
our Support Services Bureau and the second one is the Police Sergeant for our Hana
District. Let me start off with the Police Major position. As I sat there and I listened to
two testify in front of me talking about vagrancy issue in our County. That's one of
the biggest issue that we have and one...that is one of the task that has been given to
us to address. What are we doing as a Police Department? We doing the crisis
intervention training where we provide tools to our police officers to address those
issue for those, you know, the homeless issue, folks that have issues, mental issues
that they need to be addressed of. What we are looking at with the Police Major
position is to start up a Behavioral Unit with the Maui Police Department. This unit
will be the go-to, the liaison between the Maui Police Department and the stakeholder.
If you look at IACP report, they reported that police officers fatality rate dealing with
consumers are pretty high and it's not their fault. You know we train them to address
combative behavior. These consumers they have combative behavior. These are their
behaviors, it's a normal behavior for them and we need to address those issue, and I
want that unit as we looking forward to address that. What we're looking for is we're
looking for a professional psychiatrist or psychiatrist. We are working with the
Department of Health to see if we can work together and hopefully provide the funding
for that position. The second position is the Police Sergeant for our Hana District. As
you know, the folks assigned to this districts are usually our junior officers. When we
assign them there right now we have a lieutenant and a sergeant. As you can see
nationwide we have issues with patrol officers as they dealing with our community.
Sometimes we put them in a position where they make the decision and based on their
expertise and their experience and training, sometime their experience does not
provide them with the expertise to provide the service that we need. Just to give you a
snapshot of what's going on in there. If the leadership, meaning that's the lieutenant
or the sergeant on duty is not there what we do is we're going to assign a police officer
to be the acting sergeant. Really think about it, that acting sergeant is pretty much a
district commander. Somebody will make the same decision as me. I've been in for
31 years and I think that will be exposing our employee to a position. I hope that you
can see that. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, thank you so much for your thoughts and comments. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. And, Chief, it may be a little hard to tell but the
Hana sergeant position is...the E/P is approved, it's just the funding is not approved
because you have more than adequate funding in the Department's budget already.
So my understanding of the way that the Chair put this is that you're able to go ahead
and fill that position with cash that's already available in your Department, so.
MR. FAAUMU: Thank you, Councilmember.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Questions for Chief? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually this is a question for you real quick. Are we going to
be able to bring any of the departments back up instead of asking them here at
testimony or would you rather us questioh them at testimony time?
CHAIR HOKAMA: With time permitting, yes, and again -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, you'll bring up with time permitting?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we can, we'll put in the request from the Members and again we can do
the request -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and work with Mr. Baz, but I will not answer for the chiefs and the
directors whether they'll be present or not.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again I don't know when we're going to ask them but, you know, you
are going to work at nights, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, other questions for the Chief? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Chief, the Major was that...was one of the
other duties was for the implementation of the body armors...or body camera? Sorry,
body armor...body cameras?
MR. FAAUMU: Yes, that is a new unit we're looking at. Since we implement that we do have
patrol officers that will be responsible for that position but we need the leadership. We
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need someone that...in that rank to be in charge of multiple section within the
Support Services Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other questions for Chief? Okay, Chief, thank you again for sharing your
thoughts with us this morning. We appreciate it.
MR. FAAUMU: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Gaxiola followed by Lito Vila..
MR. GAXIOLA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. GAXIOLA: And good morning, Councilmembers. My name is Cesar Gaxiola, the
Executive Director for the J. Walter Cameron Center. And first of all I want to say
thank you for your prior support to the center for this few years. I wanted to share
that we had done quite a lot of improvements in the center and we need to continue
with the process. And so I'm here this morning to request for your support in this
upcoming budget. This is one of those project it fits with a sequence of projects that
we started back in December and so not doing this project will kind of throw us back
on the timeline that we have. And so what happens with something like that is it
basically preludes the agencies because we moving them from one building to the
other building as we working the projects. We playing musical chairs if you will. And
so as we doing that we, you know, we throwing the timeline off and then we will need
to come back and move people again that we have moved them, you know, already. So
move them two or three times so that kind of creates a lot of work on the agency side.
And so I wanted to ask you for your support and if you will help us to stay within the
timeline of those funds. I also wanted to share with you that we have been supported
by the State. We did receive $2,225,000 and that's the current project that we are
working on. We are also working with private foundations and business and other
entities, you know, in the renovations of the facility. And so again thank you very
much for your support.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here this morning. We appreciate your presence and
Members, any questions for the gentleman on his testimony?
comments.
Ms. Cochran? Good morning, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good morning. And thank you, Chair, pardon my tardiness
this morning. Thank you. Good morning.
MR. GAXIOLA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so you... and I think Chair asked the question during
some deliberations previously in regards to CDBG funds.
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MR. GAXIOLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And have you folks tried and why was it not granted or not
able to go seek that type of funding?
MR. GAXIOLA: Yes, and sorry, I should have mentioned this I couldn't be here last week
providing testimony I was out in the mainland. I had to attend my daughter's
graduation from BYU and so I couldn't provide the testimony to you at that time. We
did receive the CDBG funding, it was 200 and...well actually shouldn't say we received
but we are aligned to receive funds from CDBG of $244,136 and that is for a totally
different project. That is pavement of the top parking lot, yeah, and so, you know, like
I said we are working on so many projects in there so the idea is to do 100 percent
renovation of the center 'cause it's a facility that's already 44 years old.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you very much for your time. Thank you,
Chair.
MR. GAXIOLA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for the gentleman? Having none, thank you again for
your testimony.
MR. GAXIOLA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Vila, if you would come down please followed by Michele McLean.
MR. VILA: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. VILA: Good morning. Thank you for having me, Councilmembers. I'm here this
morning on behalf of the Division of Motor Vehicles. I'm Lito Vila, the Administrator.
And I wanted to thank you personally on behalf of my Division for approving the Kihei
CIP project. I believe that is long coming and it's going to serve that community very
well. That's actually the smallest office that we have and it is built for expansion. And
at the same time I'm here asking for your reconsideration of the .7 equivalent position
that is tied into the grant program that was submitted for .3 for the issuance of
parking placards. So the County's portion at this point is I believe $21,000 for the
8 months. And given that our premium pay request was also not fully funded I'm not
going to ask for that at this point because as the Chair had said we can always come
back later in the year to come up and request for that amendment if need be.
However, the .7 is really crucial to our operation especially because of the limited
purpose driver licensing requirements that have started that is adding an impact. And
the issuance of that .3 position with the DCAB if I cannot fill that fulltime equivalent of
1 person it's going to be...I don't know what to do with that .3 because there's no way I
can keep a .3 position filled and to perform that function. So I do ask for your
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reconsideration. And also as I mentioned in my previous discussions with the
Councilmembers come next year we are going to be experiencing the additional
volumes in driver licensing renewals. So with all that in mind I am here before you on
behalf of the Division to request for that .7 to be re-funded even though it has not
come with any additional equipment. When we first brought in the DCAB Program
online the DCAB did provide us some computers that we have we, can reassign those
to that...for that position. So I ask for your favorable consideration for that item. But
foremost I thank you for the CIP project for Kihei and as soon as it's approved we'll
work on that and get that office going. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Vila, we appreciate your comments. Any questions for
Mr. Vila, Members? Okay, having none, thank you again for your thoughts with us.
Michele McLean and followed by Stewart Stant.
MS. McLEAN: Good morning, Chair Hokama
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. McLEAN: --and Committee Members. I'm Michele McLean, the Deputy Planning
Director. We did provide written testimony.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. McLEAN: So my testimony this morning will pretty much follow that. Thank you for
your consideration of the Department of Planning's Budget. We have three requests
based on the Chair's proposal that was revealed yesterday. The first relates line 1006.
We had asked for four expansion positions and two of these were deleted. We are very
grateful for the two that so far are being retained. One of those is a Building Plans
Examiner which is great. The other one is a Zoning Inspector Trainee and we would
ask that an Office Operations Assistant position be retained rather than the Zoning
Inspector Trainee. Overall our enforcement will be more effective with our six existing
zoning inspectors with one new clerical rather than seven inspectors and no clerical
support. It's more important that our existing inspectors have clerical support than it
is to have another inspector without clerical support. The second item is on line 1008
our Operations. In FY '15 we asked for our standard approximately $150,000 for
Professional Services plus two additional projects. Two-hundred and fifty thousand
for designating important agricultural lands and 250,000 for Maui Island Plan State
redistricting. And both of those additional projects were deleted leaving just the
standard 150,000. We'd like to request an alternative though of an additional
$150,000 to finally do the Title 19 audit. In FY '16 we had requested or, excuse me,
we had requested 150,000 for this project and received 75,000. We narrowed the
scope, we issued the RFP in March, we received the bids, we scored them based on the
RFP's criteria, and selected the most highly rated contractor whose bid was 154,854.
So what we'd like is for that 150,000 to be budgeted in FY '17. The 75,000 that's
budgeted now in FY '16 would remain unspent. Just like it was in FY '15 and then we
would be able to award that contract in FY '17 and otherwise we're not going to, be able
to get this project moving. Lastly as Erin Wade testified on line 1021 we would
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request that the additional $100,000 be restored to the Maui Redevelopment Agency
for the Clean and Safe Program. We are available on-call this week if you do have any
questions during your decision-making. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director, we thank you for sharing your comments with us. Members, any
questions for the lady on testimony presented? And we have received the
Department's written transmittal also. Okay, having none, Ms. McLean, we thank you
for sharing your concerns with us this morning.
MS. McLEAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Stewart Stant please and following Director Stant will be Mike Miyamoto.
MR. STANT: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. STANT: Good morning, Councilmembers. I'm Director of Environmental Management.
I'm here today just to ask to reconsider two positions that was deleted from our
Wastewater Division. It's a special case 'cause the first position is actually a position
that had been in the Division for about ten years now. In fact, me being from
operations I was actually the one that worked with the budget for the past ten years
and actually put both of these positions in. But the first position we want reinstated
is the Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations Manager. This position as you can see
I passed...I sent out some handouts, this is the expectations and job expectations of
that position. The reason this position even though the position was taken away last
year, the responsibilities of this position remained. So these responsibilities was
divvied up between five different positions; two Supervisors, our Tech Engineer, the
Superintendent who was on TA at the time, and myself as a Maintenance Manager.
Just a portion of the responsibilities that I took on which was the work orders from
the various facilities, prioritizing them, and all of those responsibilities put...what it
did, it put stress on a lot of the responsibilities that I was already in charge as the
Maintenance Manager. So I know how crucial this position is. I don't know the
reasons, I don't care why the position was pulled but as you can see this position not
only oversees 5 different supervisors, working supervisors, 5 facilities, and 42
pumping stations, all the reports from DOH, the planning, EPA, the weekly staff
meetings, and all those are incorporated with this position. So I'm asking that the
Council relook at...it's not...although officially it's an expansion position this is
unofficially a position that we already had for ten years and that position was actually
justified ten years ago. The second position is a Painter I. I know we talked about this
in the IEM. We talked about this in Budget and I'm here again testifying for a position
for one painter. We presently have only one. As we talked about before with our
infrastructure we have just in our shoreline pumping stations, our facilities next to the
ocean we have millions if not billions of dollars' worth of equipment. And just the
maintenance cost alone and with the painter, so we have one painter and as you can
see these pictures, I just pulled up a picture from Spreckelsville, if you take a look at
the first two pictures those are our Spreckelsville's generator and a fuel tank. That
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was brand new. That was installed in 2012. If you can see the corrosion on that it's
apparent the salt air and this is just one of our pumping stations. Also we have four I
guess the fuel tanks...oh, red light.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, finish your thought, Mr. Stant.
MR. STANT: So we also have four fuel tanks that that we lost due to corrosion. Our Division
spent 172,000 on those four tanks that failed and they were all installed in 2011. We
have presently 2 more tanks that are being...that also failed because of corrosion.
And the other pictures that you see in there those are just injection wells. That
injection wells on the last four pages, Councilmembers, those pictures are from an
injection well that was painted in February of this year. So you can imagine 30, 40,
50-mile-per-hour salt winds blowing on these...our infrastructure, you know, every
single day. So when I sat down and we did the budget for our Division I can assure
you I could justify five painters for our division infrastructure. I'm just asking for one
painter to assist the other painter we presently have. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Members, questions for Mr. Stant on his testimony?
Okay, having none, Director, thank you again and we have received your submittal.
So thank you very much. Mike Miyamoto? Following Mr. Miyamoto will be
Carol Reimann.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee, for this opportunity to provide you comments on the proposed
FY 2017 Budget. My name is Mike Miyamoto; I'm the Deputy Director for the
Department of Environmental Management. I'm here to provide updated information
on the proposed added option that we had to open the Central Maui Landfill on
Sundays with the benefit of creating a landfill maintenance team that can address
some of our closed landfills and also to help us with addressing the expected influx of
construction demolition waste at our Central Maui Landfill. The Department of
Environmental Management has a new director as you've just seen. His background
is in facilities maintenance. Prior to his arrival we focused on stopping the violations
we had in our operations, day-to-day operations. That's why we requested manpower
and equipment to address those concerns. Thanks to you we've been able to...we've
been approved for positions. As we hire into those positions that you've approved the
closures at our landfills should be limited to emergency situations only. For example
on Molokai we had the high winds and we wanted to make sure the public was safe so
we closed the landfill. So those types of situations should be the only real reasons
why we should close the landfills in the future when we fill all of our vacancies. I
provided you with a handout with updated information regarding the cost proposal for
this added_ option that we have. You may ask why are the numbers different than
what we previously proposed. I'll have to take the blame for that one. As I was
rushing to put those numbers together to get the presentation in some of the numbers
were double counted. So as you may look at the handout that I provided you I
provided the eight positions, the salaries of those eight positions in the FY '17 Budget,
and I've totaled it for an annual amount on how much would be required for
manpower. Our proposal is to just open, start opening the landfills in January of
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2017. We figure it's going to take us that long to hire these eight positions. So if you
look at the bottom of that first slide it says, it shows that about half the amount would
be about $201,000 and when you add in benefits it comes up to about 342,000 for the
first half year. If you flip the page over it sort of addresses how do we pay for this. So
we looked at two options. The residential revenue because we have a lot of people who
drive into the landfill and then also what may be on the commercial side because they
may get added benefit from that also. So we provided you with revenue potential
there. How much revenue do we need? The numbers there are for annual amounts.
So if you cut those in half we would have to add up to the 342. So rather than do all
the adding and cutting I just doubled everything at the bottom. So you see...you can
mix and match what the options are to pay for this proposed added option. It should
not impact anyone's property taxes is the main thing. It will be fee for service. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Miyamoto. You one of the few that brought a revenue
stream with your request finally. Questions for the gentleman? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Miyamoto, for providing
the revenue stream on that. So when you say residential revenue is that anybody who
comes into the landfill would pay $2 or up to $5 or is that additional per month on the
refuse collection?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Currently, the residential revenue is for the people that drive into our
landfill and dump off in our residential recycling...our residential refuse area.
Currently there's no charge. So it has to be a per visit charge for the residents
whichever amount you select.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the commercial there is already a charge and this would
• be an increase?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, it would be a small...we looked at it and looked at it as possibly a
small increase between 1 and $3, whichever the additional amount is.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Well, thank you. And, Mr. Chair, I do have some
reservations on charging the residential 'cause I think it was tried before and ended up
getting a lot of stuff dumped in the gulches several years back.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate your comment, Mr. Couch. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Miyamoto. And I
appreciate you mentioned that...I'm looking at your original slide asking for positions
on March 1st and in relation to this opening on Sundays. And you mentioned that
sorry your bad, you know, you didn't add it right in the heat of things in rushing. But
I'm looking at that slide, Chair, and back then it asked for two mechanics, and I know
along the route you said no need but the difference between the total from that
original slide versus today's handout is only $15,000.
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MR. MIYAMOTO: The previous ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, Mr. Miyamoto, I'm just like...you said I mean you cut out
things and...but there's not a whole lot of difference in the amount you're asking for
and the previous ask had two extra positions on there too. So if you can explain why
it's only a difference of $15,000.
MR. MIYAMOTO: The original 700,000 did not include the fringe benefits that I added at the
bottom. It adds about 70 percent to the basic labor cost. So the 700,000 that was
previously there was miscalculated or just double calculated and that would have had
to add 70 percent on top of that pushing it over a million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. But do appreciate your revenue stream proposal too
though to address that. But thank you for your time. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other questions for Mr. Miyamoto, Members? Okay, Mr. Miyamoto, thank
you again for sharing your thoughts with us -MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this morning. Carol Reimann please followed by Jacob Verkerke.
MS. REIMANN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. REIMANN: Good morning, Members of the Committee. Thank you very much for your
hard work in reviewing the County's Budget. We understand that the Budget is
extremely complicated and having a limited budget with a multitude of requests is very
challenging and we commend you for your fine efforts. For DHHC we appreciate the
expansion items that you graciously included. Thank you so much. We ask that the
following items be revisited, the Affordable Housing Fund 2016 Proposed Annual Plan,
the First Time Homeowners Down Payment Assistance Program. An interesting fact is
that 52 percent of Maui homeowners, homebuyers, excuse me, are not local residents.
So a significant barrier to homeownership for local people is a lack of a down payment.
The Animal Management Program Jerlean Bryant from the Humane Society is here
today and will provide additional testimony in that regard. The Early Childhood
Program and Kaina Bonacorsi is here as well and will detail her request in her
testimony. And lastly the Commission on Persons with Disabilities. At the
appropriate time and as these items come up during your deliberations in the coming
days, nights, weeks, our team will make ourselves available to return to County
Council to answer any questions and provide additional rationale and details. In
addition our team is here today in case you have any questions, immediate questions
that I'm not able to answer. For all of the other items that missed the cut and were
not included, thank you very much for your consideration. We would also like to
request that the Council revisit moving the CIP team out of the Office of Management.
Having this integral team under the Office of Management allows them to be able to
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provide valuable services to the various County departments who do not have the
staffing with the expertise or time to manage large projects. For DHHC the CIP team
has recently been instrumental in the following projects, the Kaunoa front office
enclosure includes installing automatic doors and ADA compliancy is quite
complicated. The CIP team on a daily basis works with the contractor to ensure
compliance and that all safety concerns are met for our kupuna. The Kaunoa
mandatory manhole installation project which has been included in the CIP Program
so thank you for that. And for housing the Kulamalu Affordable Rental Housing
Project. The loss of the CIP who acts as the owner's representative for the project
really is a watchdog for the County's interest in this project. This loss would have an
immediate and significant financial impact. So once again thank you so much for
your fine efforts and for the opportunity to testify today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. I'm sorry, Ms. Reimann. Members, questions for the
Director on testimony shared? Okay, thank you very much, Ms. Reimann, and we
thank you for bringing your staff with you for responses. We appreciate that. Jacob,
if you would please join us and then following Mr. Verkerke will be Mark Walker.
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. VERKERKE: My name is Jacob Verkerke; I'm the Chief Technology Officer for the
County of Maui and I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you today. I thank
you for your efforts in arriving at the Chair's proposal and I thank you for the support
you show in the proposal for the efforts and objectives of the IT Services Division.
While I was initially taken aback by the total size of reductions to the ITSD Budget
included in your proposal, further analysis made me realize that indeed your stated
view of IT as a critical infrastructure and your repeated support of cyber security
needs is reflected in the document. Again I want to thank you for that. Specifically
your support for the HR Payroll Project is very welcome. I had a chance to talk with
Director Lance Hiromoto of Personnel Services and we both are in full agreement with
your strategy to spread funding for the project over multiple years. We expect to have
firm numbers as a result of an RFP process by this time next year which will help in
your deliberations for FY 2018. There are two items of funding reduction that I would
like to ask for your reconsideration. First in the area of repair and maintenance
services and contracts the requested funding was reduced by $209,560. The post of
R&M services and contracts represents all of our ongoing fixed obligations for
hardware and software maintenance and support. This funding is critical in our
efforts to maintain the required level of product releases and patches to reduce our
vulnerability to technological exploits by cyber terrorists and to ensure appropriate
levels of functionality and productivity. I will pledge to step up our work with vendors
to renegotiate the number of support contracts and to identify those that can be
eliminated. Even with that I am quite concerned about the size of this reduction. I
want to request that you consider restoring $100,000 to this category. Second, the
reduction in lifecycle miscellaneous hardware replacement 130,000 will present a
serious challenge to our efforts to maintain sufficient capacity in computing power and
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data storage. As I have mentioned in previous appearances one of our biggest
struggles is to keep up with the ever growing demand for application servers and data
storage in our data centers. Especially data storage is experiencing almost
exponential growth as a result of the move away from paper documents and of the
need to capture more and more digital photography and videography as supporting
documentation for many of the County's functions. We are also faced with the need to
retire aging equipment in our data centers as a deterrent to attempts to compromise
the data center IT infrastructure. We've worked hard on spreading out these costs of
replacement and expansion over the multiple budget years. ITSD management believe
that the steady annual funding of 260,000 which is the amount approved in the
current budget will make it possible for us to maintain the necessary capacity and
currency of our data center equipment. I respectfully ask for your consideration to
restore the 130,000 reduction to the FY 2017 Proposed Budget. One more comment if
I may? I want to close by saying that I'm grateful for the excellent dialogue that has
taken place between Council and ITSD. Much progress has been made as a result and
I hope we can continue to work together to improve the IT capabilities of this County.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We thank you for your comments, Mr. Verkerke. Members, questions for
the gentleman on his testimony? Again, we appreciate your comments this morning,
Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mark Walker? And following Mr. Walker is Kimberly Thayer.
MR. WALKER: Good morning, Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. WALKER: --Committee Members. Mark Walker; Deputy Director of Finance. First of all
let me thank you very much for all your hard work. We know it's taken a lot of time
and years off your life. Thank you also for all of the things that you granted in our
budget requests of the many we asked for, and a couple quick comments on a couple
of items. In the Finance Administration Division we had asked for a one-time
appropriation to update our Full Cost Allocation Plan as an addition, a one-time
addition to our Professional Service budget. That was instead made...I think maybe a
proviso is going to be made to take it out of our existing budget, I would ask you to
relook at that as a one-time appropriation and addition to our budget if you might.
Additionally, we had requested increased premium pay for both our Accounts Division
and DMVL. I thought we made pretty good cases, both historic as well as looking
forward for both of those and would ask that you take a look at that again if you
might. Last but not least the CIP team in the Managing Director's Office. The Finance
Department has an outstanding relationship with them. We literally interact with
them on a daily basis. They're knowledgeable, professional, and thorough. We believe
that having a centralized CIP group available to all departments and agencies that
require their expertise is the proper organizational structure. Following are examples
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of what the CIP does for Finance. Typically assist with all real property acquisitions,
they provide technical support, document review, easements, title reports,
Environmental Assessments; lots of the heavy due diligence kind of stuff. Recent
properties purchased in which we had CIP staff support and input the new service
center property in Kahului including the 30 acres in Spreckelsville. The 305 acres in
Waikapu which was actually two purchases, Launiupoko, the Miyahira property here
on Kaohu, the Waiakoa Gym. And I know they've been very involved and continue to
be in the Kula Ag Park expansion project. Additionally they coordinate all design and
planning work on new County facilities. We have had numerous meetings regarding
the new service center in Kahului as well as preliminary design work on the Wailuku
Post Office parcel. They've assisted with design and plan review on construction work
related to Finance-controlled assets. An example would be the Kihei DMVL Satellite
job. With their assistance we've been able to value engineer the final project and
reduce construction costs dramatically. They've also been very involved with the
issues related to the Maui service, Kahului Service Center, worked with the mall
owners, roofing contractor, reviewed all air quality and mold reports, established a
rehabilitation scope of work to rebuild the service center, and is in the process of
getting contractor bids awarded. They will manage all reconstruction work. Thank
you very much. Much appreciated.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Walker, for your comments. Any questions for
Mr. Walker, Members? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Walker, do you have that in writing
that you could pass out to us?
MR. WALKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or e-mail to us prior?
MR. WALKER: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other questions for Mr. Walker? Okay, having none, thank you
very much.
MR. WALKER: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Kimberly Thayer followed by Keith Regan.
MS. THAYER: Aloha kakou.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. THAYER: Good morning. I'm Kimberly Thayer with the West Maui Mountains
Watershed Partnership here today with a request that the Committee restore $50,000
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to our Watershed Protection Grant funding in the Department of Water Supply Budget
for a total award of 350,000. So real fast step outside with me into our backyard. In
this backyard we have a garden, a 50,000 acre garden that is lush and beautiful that
has been handed down to the people of this island, to our crew, to each and every one
of us here. This garden is a rich and plentiful and generous resource. The special
thing about this garden is that it grows water right here in our backyard. This garden
produces so much water that three quarters of our island depends on the health of
this garden. It is the reason why we are all able to live here today. It is the reason
why people visit and none of us would survive here without it. We need to protect it.
The ability for this garden to thrive is constantly under pressure. This garden was
once giant, lush, covered the whole entire mountain but it is now much smaller than it
once was. There are big hungry animals. There are invasive weeds that destroy the
garden and diminish its ability to produce water. But the good thing is is this garden
is still very healthy at its core. It has this amazing ability to rejuvenate itself but it
just needs help. It very, very needs help. With that it can potentially experience
exponential growth and sustain itself well into the future. Now we've made good
progress on protecting this garden. We have more fences than ever before that protect
more of this garden than ever before. There are fewer animals than ever before and
we're able to put more attention into weeds, taking weeds out, eradicating weeds than
ever before. But we need to keep going or we lose all the progress that has been made
over the past 20 years. Fences fall into disrepair, weeds run rampant, and new
threats that come in we will never know about because we will not have the resources
to go out and be there. This costs so little to maintain over time. Fifty thousand
dollars will employ another person from this land, from this island who will give
themselves, put their boots on the ground to malama this garden that will produce
more and more water for all of us. So the healthier this garden the more water we
have. The more of it we have right at our door step. So mahalo for your
consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments this morning. Members, questions for the
lady? Having none, thank you so much for your testimony -MS. THAYER: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Thayer. Keith Regan? Following Mr. Regan will be Stacey Ash.
Mr. Regan?
MR. REGAN: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. My name is Keith Regan; Managing Director for the County of Maui. As
you begin the process of reviewing the proposal I humbly ask that you consider what
has been shared with you over the past many months by the departments and the
staff, that you invite the departments to provide insight into how these cuts and
changes will impact their operations. That you provide us an opportunity to share
with you why we've asked for additional E/Ps, why we've asked for certain pieces of
equipment, why we've asked for increased support of our programs and services. At
the end of the day I think all we're asking for is that as you go through these
deliberations that you allow us to be participants and answer any questions that you
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may have. I've worked for the County in the Executive Branch now for nine years.
And during those nine years I've worked side by side with some of the most amazing
people doing incredible work so that this community will continue to thrive and meet
the needs of our people. What was requested in the Mayor's proposal was based on
our interpretation, what the community has asked for, and what the community
expects from its local government. We understand that it is this body's responsibility
to review, modify, and delete, debate, and discuss the Budget. We respect that. And
at the end of the day we will have to make do with what this body ultimately decides.
I'd like to ask you or I'd like to take a moment to address a few items specifically in
our Budget. The proposal before you is to dismantle our CIP team as well as delete
and defund a position that we're actively recruiting for, and to convert another
position to an Ag Inspector. Our CIP team as you've heard already today from
numerous different department directors has worked diligently. They support
departments on countless projects. They've bought tremendous value to this County
and saved taxpayers millions, yes, millions. Kulamalu Affordable Rentals is a perfect
example. This project when it was brought to us would have cost taxpayers at least
$16 million but through our CIP team's hard work and their due diligence we were
able to value engineer this project and ended up costing taxpayers about $12 million,
a significant reduction. The Molokai Baseyard which we've had numerous discussions
on, that project when it was brought to us was estimated to cost about $12 million but
working with the Department of Public Works we were able to reduce that to 6 million
which is significant savings and now this project moves forward. These are just two
examples of how important this particular CIP team is to the County and I humbly ask
that you please consider putting that back. You know we're in the process of
recruiting a replacement for one of our EA positions within my office. And our office
now effectively is going to be whittled down to about eight people. We're a large
community. We're a large employer. We have 15 departments with over a half-abillion-dollar-budget and we need these positions to help us to be able to deliver
efficient and effective governance. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Regan. Members, any questions for Director Regan on his
testimony? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Regan. I
don't recall seeing that handed out. Do you have that testimony in writing?
MR. REGAN: I do not.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we get that in writing, please?
MR. REGAN: Absolutely, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any questions for Mr. Regan on what he shared this morning,
Members? Mr. Regan, thank you for your -- 23 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --comments. Is it Stacey Ash?
MS. ASH: Stacia Ash.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Stacia Ash, thank you. And following Ms. Ash will be Tamara Farnsworth.
MS. ASH: Good morning, Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. ASH: --and Committee Members. My name is Stacia Ash; I'm the TA Recycling
Coordinator for the EP&S Division, Recycling Section. I've been with the County for
12 years. I want to thank Council for their proposed Fiscal Year '17 Budget and for
your continued support of the County of Maui's recycling programs, contracts, and
grants. We did provide a handout to you. It may be provided to you later. It looks
like this. The orange section is what we're referring to. So as of Fiscal Year '16 the
EP&S Division was combined to include both the Recycling section and the
Abandoned Vehicles and Metals Division with one shared budget. What happens
within our combined budget affects each other's sections' programs, contracts, and
grants. EPtisS was approved for 3,735,000 but we need 5,060,000 in order to preserve
and maintain all programs as they're projected for Fiscal Year '17. If full funding is
not provided some programs may need to be cut, in particular those funded in
Contractual Services Subject Object Code 6112. Also while the rates and fees were
increased for Fiscal Year '17 once we opened the Central Maui Landfill green waste
RFP last month we discovered it was not enough to provide all the revenue needed to
fund the CML Organics Operations Program. EP&S needs specifically 5,060,000
which represents a deficit of 1,320,000. This difference could be accommodated with
an additional increase to the rates and fees for the green waste, sludge, and grease
trap waste. They were approved at $25 for green waste, 36 would accommodate our
need. The sludge was approved at 90, 103 would accommodate our need, and the
grease was approved at $67 per ton and 70 would accommodate us. We're urging
Council to do a deeper analysis of the EP&S budget in regards specifically to
Contractual Services 6112 and the CML Organics Operations Project. Thank you very
much for your consideration of our requested increase of 1,320,000, and thank you so
much for all the hard work you do. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We thank you for your comments, Ms. Ash. Members, any questions for
the lady on her testimony? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And nice to see you, Ms. Ash.
MS. ASH: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can you repeat those figures again in regards to the FOG
rates?
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MS. ASH: So the FOG is actually the grease. So the grease trap I believe was approved at 67
but if it was increased to 70 that would accommodate. The sludge was approved at 90
but if it were increased to 103 that would work well, and then the green waste was 25
approved this year for Fiscal Year '17. If it were brought up to 36 that would work.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright. Well, thank you very much for your work.
Thank you, Chair.
MS. ASH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other questions for the lady, Members?
MS. ASH: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on. Mr. Couch, you have a question -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for Ms. Ash?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, those numbers I don't see them, oh, they're on the
second page?
MS. ASH: If you look at the orange -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MS. ASH: -- in front of you there and then the yellow, right above the yellow that indicates
the EKO. Those figures are a tiny bit different. We were, I'm sorry, a little rushed this
morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So when you say 67, that's, 67 to 70 is that dollars per ton or?
MS. ASH: It is. And that's the rates that are charged to the commercial as they cross the
scale at the landfill.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. If we can get a list of those e-mailed to the Committee
that would help.
MS. ASH: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thanks.
MS. ASH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other questions for Ms. Ash? Okay, Ms. Ash, thank you.
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MS. ASH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tamara Farnsworth, please. And following Ms. Farnsworth will be
Kaina Bonacorsi.
MS. FARNSWORTH: Aloha, Chair. Aloha, Councilmembers. Thank you so much for having
me testify today. I really appreciate this opportunity. I am the...my name is
Tamara Farnsworth; I am the Abandoned Vehicles and Metals Administrator with the
Department of Environmental Management. I work kind of in tandem with the
Recycling section, our budgets...part of our budgets have been combined into the
Environmental Protection and Sustainability Division. But our section also manages
the Highway Beautification Funds and that covers the Abandoned Vehicles Programs
as well as a large grant for Malama Maui Nui, or a portion of the grant. So first I'm
going to speak to the EP86S budget and our request. We have a couple of contracts
which include the Molokai metals contract which provides metals collection and
disposal services for the islands of Molokai as well as collection events in Hana and on
Lanai. And so there is an anticipated increase. We're getting the contract RFP
proposal amounts tomorrow so we'll have better...but the anticipated amount increase
is going to be in the area of about $80,000. And so currently from the EP86S we're
requesting $20,000 in addition to what has been granted at this time. We also...and
so I just want to say that if, the Hana events may have to be cancelled 'cause that's
the main increase that we're anticipating with the new contract and proposal. So we
really...it's really important I think to serve these underserved communities with the
services in the super remote areas, and so we're really hoping to be able to see an
increase there. We also manage the Hammerhead contract which addresses disposal
of white goods for residents as well as the disposal of abandoned vehicles. As you've
probably heard metals prices market has really plummeted and so prices are going up.
We have actually a very good contract with them but we still are seeing increases so I
did request a 10,000 increase there. So, oh, my goodness...so I'm just hoping that in
the EP&S budget we'd be able to address these three top ones as you see here which is
about $40,000 and then take a look at the EKO one which is the most significant one.
But if we can make sure that these are covered, these top three ones then we'd be able
to kind of address the EKO one separately since that's really a big deal. As far as
Highway...I have more to say, but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's all you have -MS. FARNSWORTH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for today. Questions for the lady? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Mr. Chair. Ms. Farnsworth, thank you for being here.
MS. FARNSWORTH: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You do have writing, I mean if you have things in written
form submit it to us -MS. FARNSWORTH: Okay, I do. I did -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to finish off your ...
MS. FARNSWORTH: --so sorry, I did provide this spreadsheet here, sorry I didn't mention it,
which is specifically the metals ones and it explains exactly what those numbers I was
talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right but you wanted to elaborate on Highway Beautification
and you didn't have time.
MS FARNSWORTH: Highway Beautification, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that...whatever you wanted to further discuss with us
please submit a written.
MS. FARNSWORTH: I will absolutely do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, awesome. Thank you so much.
MS. FARNSWORTH: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any questions on her testimony? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You mentioned that you have a
contract...we have a contract with Hammerhead Metals.
MS. FARNSWORTH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And...but they're still, they're raising their prices. Is there ...
MS. FARNSWORTH: They're not raising their prices. It's just that there has been an
increase in the amounts in our invoices and so we actually went in for a supplemental
amended budget this year which graciously you provided. And so we're able to
increase the contract this year and so we're seeing the same type of invoicing and
prices coming in next year as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it's just more stuff going to them is what's causing the
increases?
MS. FARNSWORTH: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh okay. Alright, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for the lady? Okay, Ms. Farnsworth, thank
you very much for your -MS. FARNSWORTH: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --comments. Kaina Bonacorsi and to be followed by Jerlean Bryant.
MS. BONACORSI: Aloha, Chair Hokama and Councilmembers. My name is Kaina Bonacorsi
and I'm the Early Childhood Resource Coordinator. First of all, I wanted to thank you
folks for your interest and initial questions regarding the Early Childhood Division's
proposed budget. I know it was a big ask. I understand that you are in a challenging
position of making the difficult choices regarding the budget. Although the Early
Childhood Programs are not being recommended to be fully funded I appreciate your
supportive comments that you have made about the various Early Childhood
Programs that have been put before you. I would like to provide you some information
regarding the impact of the proposed budget so that you can make informed decisions
regarding the programs. I would also like to ask your reconsideration on some of the
Early Childhood Programs. First, I would like to talk about the Early Childhood
Programs in general which covers our childcare subsidy assistance. There is a need of
a requested increase of $50,000. The program provides subsidy assistance to families
who use licensed childcare. The average cost of childcare in Maui County for infants
and toddlers in homecare is $600. Infants and toddlers using center-based care
$1,033, and preschool $730 a month. This is very burdensome for some of young
families. The program targets families that are not able to access other sources of
financial assistance and still demonstrate need. It has processes in place in which it
assists families to apply for assistance wherever...for whatever they are eligible for
through other resources. The program has had a consistent waitlist of at least
30 children with an anticipated increase of applicants for this year. Next, I would like
to ask for your reconsideration for the Homeless Parent Education Program. While I
am aware that the State has allocated funds to address the homeless issues in general
it does not appear that they are specifically assisting families with young children.
Maui County has the opportunity to impact these families and children and hopefully
make an impact on the generational poverty so that families are less likely to recycle
through the system. Please contact me if you need any additional information. I
would also like to talk a little bit about the Tutu and Me Program. This program is
seeking funding for 19 children plus their caregivers to fill current sites to their
capacity. The program's current primary funding source requires the organization to
service Native Hawaiians at 51 percent. So while they are fully staffed at all the sites
which is 50 children plus their caregivers, they are not able to enroll to full capacity
due to the ethnicity requirements by their primary funder. The organization is hoping
to fill their slots in Lahaina, Kualapuu, Kaunakakai, and possibly Kihei. The impact of
the...next is the impact of the proposed budget on the Head Start Afterschool Program,
it will likely mean that one of the Central sites will end an hour sooner each day than
what the community assessment has shown is needed. You will hear testimony from
Imua Family Services especially on their Early Childhood Development Program and
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Maui Family Support Services. I am in support of their request for reconsideration
and find their ask to be needed and reasonable. Again, I thank you for your
consideration, genuine interest, and overall impact your decisions will have directly on
the lives of the youngest members of our community and the families, and our
community as a whole. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony and sharing your comments this morning,
Kaina. Any questions for the lady? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just that we can get that in writing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will ask her if she can submit that in writing.
MS. BONACORSI: Will do. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other question for the lady? Thank you for being here.
MS. BONACORSI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Jerlean Bryant followed by Brian.Nagami.
MS. BRYANT: Good morning, Budget Chair Hokama, Chair White -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. BRYANT: --and Councilmembers. My name is Jerlean Bryant; I'm the CEO at the Maui
Humane Society. I'm here today to testify about the proposed budget cut in the
Animal Enforcement Program, cutting our funding by $150,000 would absolutely
cripple our ability to continue. With our current funding, we already struggle to serve
the outlying areas of Maui. We are only able to send an officer to Hana once every
couple of weeks. Additionally, we only service Lahaina when we have a report filed
from that area. This is not even close to an ideal situation. I'm hoping this is an
oversight because last year we received the remaining $150,000 from the Animal
Management Revolving Fund and I don't see that in this proposed budget. Every year
our operating expenses go up, the vast majority of which is out of our control but our
funding hasn't increased. While we appreciate our partnership with the County we
cannot continue to shoulder this financial burden. We are simply buckling under it.
This year alone we are on track to supplement the shortfall in our County funding by
more than $200,000. This proposed cut to the Humane Enforcement Program exceeds
25 percent and I'm beyond concerned about it. Unlike a grant our contract mandates
that we provide certain services. Every year our County funding falls short and we
choose to supplement the shortfall by using our own monies. We do this because we
care but we simply cannot continue on this trajectory. Please I respectfully request
that this Council fully fund the services and programs that the Maui Humane Society
is mandated to provide. And by doing this it will allow us to continue to provide
efficient, effective, and excellent service to this community. Thank you for allowing me
the opportunity to speak this morning.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for the lady, Members, on
testimony provided?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, just -CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --the regular...thank you, Chair, the regular question about
things in writing if you have something in writing -MS. BRYANT: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to submit. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other question for the lady? Okay, Ms. Bryant, thank you for
sharing your thoughts with us.
MS. BRYANT: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Brian Nagami? And following Mr. Nagami will be Jennifer Livingston.
MR. NAGAMI: Thank you, Chair Hokama and honorable Councilmembers. My name is
Brian Nagami and I'm with Imua Family Services. Our agency currently operates a
program called the Early Childhood Development Program. First of all, thank you all
for your generous support of this program over the years. It's now in what I believe is
its ninth year. As you know ECDP addresses a gap in services in our community that
exists for children with delays from age 3 to kindergarten entry. That gap exists
because there are children with needs who do not qualify for services from the
Department of Education. Currently, ECDP services as many children and families on
Maui as possible with its limited staff. The program maintains an ongoing waitlist and
the program could definitely benefit from additional funds; however, that's not the
reason I'm here to speak to you today. Instead I'm here to ask you to increase the
Department of Health [sic] and Human Services funding for the CDBG grants for food,
shelter, and safety so that Imua can expand its ECDP services to the islands of
Molokai and Lanai. When a child is not able to access services here on the island of
Maui, ECDP is able to refer them to...the families to private providers in the
community. The cost for these services is over $100 an hour. It's a stretch that most
families in our services cannot afford but at least it's available for families that can
scrounge up the resources. On Molokai and Lanai, families simply have no recourse.
Imua has reached a limited...Imua has received a limited amount of funding to provide
support on Molokai and Lanai but not nearly enough to address the need in the
community. An increase in funding from 51,000 to 85,000 for ECDP in conjunction
with funding that we've received from other grantors and fundraisers that we've done
would allow ECDP to hire a half-time speech therapist and provide some training in
the community to teachers and families to address much of the need in these
communities. On a separate note, I'd like to thank you for supporting Imua Inclusion
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Preschool. We officially opened our doors to Imua Inclusion Preschool in August of
last year. We've already reached capacity and we're also full for this coming school
year, and that's it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions to the gentleman?
Okay, having none, Mr. Nagami, thank you. Jennifer Livingston followed by
Edel Baguio-Larena.
MS. LIVINGSTON: Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hi.
MS. LIVINGSTON: I'm Jennifer Livingston. I live in Haiku and I'm testifying today on behalf
of the Haiku Community Association. I'm here to say thank you for including a
3 million line item use of Open Space Funds to purchase land on the North Shore.
You probably are all aware that the land from Maliko Gulch to "K" Bay actually all the
way to Peahi is for sale by A&B. I'm going to use a personal testimony on behalf of the
HCA and just say that I've lived in more than just this place and I have seen places
like this that are very beautiful and unique end up being pretty much anywhere USA
with track homes and big boxes and unaccessible [sic] lands, private property signs,
and the inability of the people who've have lived there before to continue to use it to its
capacity. So on a personal level I think it's very, very important that we have a
forward thinking perspective when we look at the changes that Maui is going to be
going through in the next few years with the A85B changes. On a lighter note, we had
the Hoolaulea Flower Festival, I'm just going to start holding up some signature pages
that people filled out when they came down. People were seeking me out to find me to
be able to sign these. A lot of people would really like to see this happen. A lot of
people from across the island come out to use that land. So what we're actually
asking for is that you guys support Don Guzman's approach of putting the 6.5 million
of Open Space Funds into the budget so that the Mayor has what he needs to make
the negotiations with A86B. He didn't make those last year because he was worried
about not having enough money and not knowing exactly what we wanted. We've
narrowed it down to exactly what we wanted and exactly the right amount of money
and a nonprofit has formed within the community to do the management and
education piece that would be required. I don't know how much else I can say. It's
super, super important. Everybody wants it. Here's some more signatures. These are
on top of signatures that we got last year as well. Do you guys have any questions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Questions for the lady, Members? Okay, thank you very much for your
testimony this morning.
MS. LIVINGSTON: Thank you too.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, can we get copies of those...copies of the signatures?
MS. LIVINGSTON: I'll give 'em to Kathy.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Edel Baguio-Larena.
MS. BAGUIO-LARENA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
Committee Members, good morning.
My name is
MS. BAGUIO-LARENA:
Edel Baguio-Larena and I'm the CEO of Maui Family Support Services. First of all I
want to thank you for the opportunity for allowing us to provide additional testimony
for Early Childhood Development Programs in our County. I'm here also to express
our sincerest gratitude for the County Council's continued support for the Early
Head Start Program of Maui Family Support Services. Through your continued
funding we have been able to leverage over $1.3 million Federal funds to provide
quality early child development programs at no cost to families that are eligible for our
services. Our Early Head Start Program we've been able to help families to go back to
school, go back to work or attend required training. We've been able to provide
comprehensive services for expectant mothers as well as we provide home visits. And
infants and toddlers in the areas of physical health, mental health, nutrition, and
special needs. This year in addition to your support for Early Head Start we're here to
ask for your support in starting a new program we will call Kaieie Child Development
Center. And this is to meet the increasing number of three to five years old who are
not able to go to preschool or enter Kindergarten. Two years ago our State changed
the age of entering into Kindergarten and as a result children who graduate from zero
to three programs are not... they have a gap of service and... due to the high cost of
preschool. So the new grant that we are proposing in the amount of $45,000 will be
able to convert our conference room to a preschool space that would accommodate at
least 30 children to transition from Early Head Start to preschool. This new child
development center will allow these children to have seamless transition from early
childhood to a preschool setting. I know that you have a lot of priorities as I've heard
from the Budget hearings. So any support for this new program will allow us to apply
for Federal funding focusing on children from families who cannot afford the
increasing cost of preschool. And this will allow then their parents to continue to go to
work, go to school, and attend trainings. This new program will also create jobs
focusing on families...low-income families as well as TANF families. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions for the lady on
her testimony? Having none, we thank you again for sharing your thoughts with us
this morning.
MS. BAGUIO-LARENA: Thank you so much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tom Paulish followed by Bridget Hinman.
MR. PAULISH: Thanks, Mr. Chair and Members of the Council. My name is Tom Paulish;
I'm the President and owner of Maui EKO and I'd like to share with you just briefly
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some of the reasons for the sharp increase we had in the proposed contract. We've
operated in the last three years at either a break even or a small loss. We're faced
with substantial increases in equipment costs looking forward to the next three years
so we have to cover those costs. My employees over here haven't got a raise for past
four years and I'm not going to ask them to go any further without having a raise.
Those are the primary reasons that we had to have such a sharp increase in our price
to the County. And if anybody has any questions I'd be happy to answer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Paulish, we appreciate your presence
this morning. Members, any questions for the gentleman at this time? Okay,
Mr. Paulish
MR. PAULISH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --thank you for sharing those comments. Bridget Hinman to be followed
Cary Kayama.
MS. HINMAN: Aloha, thank you very much for having this forum. And my name is
Bridget Hinman; I live in Haiku which is fabulously sunny today which is great. First
of all I would like to thank you for all your hard work. Just looking at this I'm far
more educated as a resident of Maui County and far more appreciative of the work
that you do. It's amazing and everything is so important. So to make the decisions
you make is no easy task that's for sure. I'm here today to support the purchase of
the Kuiaha lots 4, 5, and 3 with the $6.5 million as requested by Councilman Guzman
for the...using the Open Space Funds. For me I go and use that, living in Haiku there
really aren't too many sidewalks and the streets where I live on Ulumalu are very
narrow. You don't even want to try to walk on them which is fine but having space on
the shoreline to be able to go for walks with your friends and your kid, their children
after work is a really precious resource to me as well as my friends in town. I also
believe that having the foresight while everything in the budget certainly is needed and
it's immediate it's this year, it's next year, it's for this generation that's currently
present. I think that it's such a gift to be able to have the Open Space Fund to be able
to preserve lands on Maui which is such a precious resource for future generations to
be able to have the open space to access the shorelines. The cultural heritage, the
recreational availability in Haiku is really important and I think it's something that
generations from now it will be a really great testament to the hard work you've done
for future generations to say thank you to our forefathers who had the foresight to be
able to save this lands so that we will have it in perpetuity which is an amazing word
but really that's forever which is amazing. It's a huge gift forever. And so I get
chicken skin and when I go walking there there's purple dragonflies all over and every
time just all of that lands I could go across the street from the Haiku Community
Center often as well there's purple dragonflies everywhere and I know that that land is
for sale as well. And every time I'm in there walking I go will the person who buys this
land know that purple dragonflies live here and will they appreciate it or will it be torn
down? And I don't know and now I have an opportunity to at least not say it in my
head but to share it with everyone who can make decisions on behalf of the current
residents as well as future residents. So thank you very much for this opportunity
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and once again for all of your hard work because everyone that spoke today has
amazing things to say and it's been very enlightening. So thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Any questions for the lady? Having none,
we appreciate your presence.
MS. HINMAN: Thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Cary Kayama? Following Mr. Kayama will be Keola Brown.
MR. KAYAMA: Good morning, Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. KAYAMA: --Budget Committee. I'm the Ocean Safety Supervisor for the County of Maui
for the Aquatics Division and I'm here to ask for your guys' support and to reconsider
the Ocean Safety Budget. You know I have the, privilege to be working for the County
for over 21 years. I work at the swimming pools and work at all the various beaches.
And I've seen our lifeguards put their lives in danger on any given day responding to,
you know, windsurfers, kiters, drowning victims unfortunately, even traffic accidents.
You know these guys are there putting their lives at risk and responding and seeing
very, you know, severe injuries at times. You know that Makena has a lot of spinal
injuries. We had a few bad ones this past weekend if you guys read the paper. So,
you know, I really ask for your guys support in supporting our lifeguards out there
because we need the manpower to help with our shortfalls. We need the equipment so
we can respond to these emergencies. We're not only assigned to our beach park. We
respond to 911 calls around the beach, along the shoreline to people calling 911 with
our rescue skis. So, you know, I ask you guys for your support and I ask you guys to
support Bargaining Unit 14, the binding arbitration, you know, it might seem a lot of
money but these guys deserve the money. They finally deserve a bargaining unit that
will represent them fairly and give them the pay raises that they deserve. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kayama, for your comments. Members, any questions for
Mr. Kayama on testimony presented?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Kayama, for being here and all
the work Ocean Safety provides. I heard on the news eight times more likely for our
visitors to drown here and the numbers keep going up. So thank you that you're out
there.
MR. KAYAMA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You mentioned, you know, the transfer and things that you
need of course the personnel and equipment and I'm just...can you elaborate a little
more on the equipment side what is gotta gotta have I guess at this point?
MR. KAYAMA: Yeah, so, you know, regardless if the transfer happens or not, you know, from
the Ocean Safety transferring from the Parks Department to the Department of Public
and Fire Safety...Department of Fire and Public Safety, regardless if that transfer
happens or not we still would need this equipment. We have four jet skis. They're
pretty old. They're 2008 skis. We spend a lot of money repairing those skis. Our
ATVs don't last too long because of the salt water so they're constantly going in to get
repairs, you know, the brakes, the frames are rusting out. There's a lot of repairs that
need to be made. So if we can have an upkeep of replacing some equipment after so
many years then it will at least keep cost down on repairs and then we would be able
to use this equipment to, you know, help transfer...transport personnel, transport
equipment, and even the...our patients or people that we help on the beaches.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Was there a number on those ATVs amounts, how
many?
MR. KAYAMA: We could use...I know originally the other budget we requested for five but
because of some cost savings we could buy a couple, plus I know that you funded one
last year which really helped us out a lot. So we thank you for your support last year.
We could use minimum of 3 ATVs and the cost could be from 8,000 to $15,000 each
depending what size we purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, alright. Well, thank you for that added information.
MR. KAYAMA: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you very much.
MR. KAYAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other questions for Mr. Kayama? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Kayama, for being here. Can you
clarify the jet ski operator status? Is it something that is when they respond to a 911
in the ocean are they getting that for free on regards to the...is that like a volunteer
service from the State?
MR. KAYAMA: Yeah so all of our towered lifeguards -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
MR. KAYAMA: --they're all OSO-2s so they're just basically a tower guard and then we have
an OSO-3 which is a lieutenant's position, a tower supervisor. So anytime someone
jumps on the jet ski to make a rescue they're not being compensated extra. Before,
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right now currently all the outer islands Kauai, Big Island, Oahu they have, you know,
like a resolution or, you know, extra pay anytime they go out to respond to calls. So
every single day there's someone assigned to the ski and they get an, you know, extra
money. So Maui County is currently the only island that does not fund the guys who
ride the jet ski.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But when they're assigned to that that's responding to a 911
call for the State, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, Mr. Guzman -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --gentlemen, I would prefer that we hold this discussion once we enter into
the Committee's work. I would like to allow everyone who wants to share testimony to
be able to share their thoughts with us then we can... once we delve back into the
budget documents and we hit Fire and Public Safety I am more than happy,
Mr. Guzman, for you to ask all the questions you want. We can bring Mr. Kayama
back and other people that have...can respond to questions and give comment to the
Members of this Committee. So if you folks don't mind I'd like to finish up testimony.
MR. KAYAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anything else for Mr. Kayama on what he just gave as testimony,
Members? With that thank you very much for your comments, Mr. Kayama, I
appreciate that.
71'

MR. KAYAMA: Thank you, Chair, and if you guys need us to come back up we will.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I would just say be on-call because Mr. Guzman more than likely will
ask additional questions for clarification.
MR. KAYAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, before I bring up Mr. Brown I have been remiss. We have three
ladies waiting at District Offices for two hours. So we're going to ask them if there's
any resident that would like to give testimony to this Committee on the proposed
Budget. So at this time, Ms. Lono, I apologize, anyone in Hana would like to give
testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much. Ms. Fernandez, anyone on Lanai would like to give
testimony? Ms. Fernandez, anyone on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There's no one waiting on Lanai to testify.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Alcon, Molokai, is there anyone wishing to provide
testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, ladies, and again I apologize for making you wait so
long. We'll return back to the Chambers, we have a few more, Members, requests so
we'll ask, Keola Brown, if he would come forward share his testimony with us. And
then after Mr. Brown, Colin Yamamoto.
MR. BROWN: Aloha, Council.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. BROWN: My name is Keola Brown; I'm the Captain of the North Shore. I am here today
to talk about Ocean Safety's budget and elaborate on what Mr. Kayama had to say.
You know we humbly ask for your guys' reconsideration in the expansion positions
and to fund our budget appropriately. For years we have been...we haven't gotten any
expansion positions and has been underfunded. The amount of people using our
beach parks has grown tremendously and the number of people needing help and
rescuing has grown tremendously. So I humbly ask again for your guys' support and
backing because one day the life we save might be one of yours, might be your family,
might be your friends, and without the right equipment and manpower it will hamper
that rescue. I thank you guys.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Brown, for your testimony. Members, any questions for
Mr. Brown? Mr. Brown, we appreciate your testimony this morning.
MR. BROWN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Colin Yamamoto? Following Mr. Yamamoto will be Gabrielle Schuerger.
MR. YAMAMOTO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. YAMAMOTO: Good morning, Councilmembers. My name is Colin Yamamoto; I'm the
Battalion Chief of Ocean Safety and I just want to share with this body some
information regarding the training that the lifeguards do. All the training is based on
USLA. USLA is United States Lifesaving Association that's...they have about 120
lifeguard agencies under them and they're pretty much the gold standard that
everyone is following. They have nine districts and Hawaii is one of 'em. According to
USLA and they cover open bodies of water which also includes ponds and lakes which
is very flat and has no waves. Therefore USLA only requires a 500-meter swim under
10 minutes but because Hawaii, California, and along the Atlantic Coast because we
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have large waves we, and USLA allows each district and there's nine to increase that
So with Hawaii Lifeguard Association's support and backing we
standard.
actually...our training which is allowed we actually surpass USLA. So USLA is just a
500-meter swim, we do 1,000-meter swim and a 1,000-meter run also 100-meter run,
run swim run that's in addition to all of that, and a 400-meter paddle board. So
because of...because of all this additional things we require to our Hawaiian
lifeguards, all the jurisdictions allow the lifeguards time to train during duty...on duty;
however, because we're always short-staffed we cannot let them train which is
basically running and swimming and paddle-boarding. Also, because we're always
short-staffed they cannot take their lunch breaks. About 50 percent of the time
because there's no one to relieve them they have to take a paid lunch break and so
they have to eat while on duty and get paid. But they want to take that 45 minute
lunch and go somewhere but they can't about 50 percent of the time. Also, my last
thing I just wanted to share is all the training that has to do...all the training, you
know, we cannot just pull the lifeguards off the beach and just, close down. So we
have to...if we had adequate staffing we pull, kou know, a limited amount of people off
the beach and then we give them training but a lot of times there's no extra manpower
available so we cannot do the training. And so I see my time is up but any questions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you again for your comments this morning, Chief, we appreciate
what you shared with us. Members, questions for Chief Yamamoto on testimony
provided? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Chief, for being here.
The lack of manpower is that due to primarily just simply not...lack of E/P or is it due
to you have the personnel but perhaps people are out on injury, people are out sick,
people are, you know, that type of situation?
MR. YAMAMOTO: So it's a combination of both. We need additional E/Ps and always there's
sick, vacation, industrial leave that adds to that and when me and Cary figured it out,
in fact, Cary actually came out with more than seven and we dwindled it down to the
number seven. That's what we need to adequately staff the beach and provide the
training in a timely manner to everyone.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you for your comments this morning.
Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Any other questions for Mr. Yamamoto?
Chief, we thank you again for -MR. YAMAMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --sharing your thoughts with us. Gabrielle Schuerger and will be followed
by Cindy Reeves.
MS. SCHUERGER: Aloha, my name is Gabrielle Schuerger; I'm the Deputy Director at
Malama Maui Nui also known as Community Work Day Program. Our current ED is
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out on medical leave and therefore I'm serving as the acting Executive Director. I just
wanted to start by thanking you all so much for your support. I know you guys
are...have been really good to our program including our monthly recycling event on
the West Side our UMO recycling program and our variety of beautification and
conservation projects. So I'm here to testify about the row 131 in the reduction on
row 132 of the Finance Committee Chair's proposal regarding a request for some, an
IT upgrade. So this is a desperately needed upgrade. The request is being made after
many efforts to get funding for this equipment from other sources that was
unsuccessful. While we were able to secure discounted and free software programs
our ability to capitalize on them...on these latest software was restricted by the lack of
compatibility with our current collection of miscellaneous and archaic hardware. To
put it in perspective imagine you step into your office this morning, you turn on your
computer to finish an important presentation to a perspective funder or partner, and
your computer won't start. You can't check your e-mail. You can't generate reports,
process payroll, et cetera. Obviously this would have a significant impact on your
ability to be effective in your position and in our case as an organization. We rely on
this technology to manage and improve longstanding programs that the community
has come to depend on. Like most modern management systems technology is the
foundation of our operations. It allows us to streamline communication, effectively
manage projects, produce training materials, conduct program assessment and
evaluation, and most importantly as a volunteer-based organization it allows us to
engage and empower the public. The public and partner engagement is imperative to
the success of our organization's programs. That's all I have. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for the lady on her testimony? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for being here. So for the
computer what was the dollar amount on that?
MS. SCHUERGER: Yes, ma'am, it was $50,000. That's not...we're not requesting for the
entire amount of the upgrade, just for a portion of it to get us started.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, what, that's just one computer and some software and
programming?
MS. SCHUERGER: No, that would include replacement of our workstations as well as a
database and then the software's that go along with that and that support that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Is that...I guess if you folks can be on-call for later
during our deliberations that would be helpful.
MS. SCHUERGER: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, other questions for the lady? Ms. Schuerger, I would ask
that you go back to your office and double check, we sent you a written request dated
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April 7, 2016 with questions from this Committee, some were from myself, some was
from Ms. Cochran, we asked for a response by April 18th, we have yet to receive any
response, return calls, or other communications regarding this request. So if you
could please check on that and see if you can respond back to the Committee.
MS. SCHUERGER: Yes, sir. Was that...we responded to a letter regarding the burglary that
happened on December 12th and we did respond, I hand delivered those letters.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. SCHUERGER: Oh, is this a different response? I'm sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So let's double check, make sure we got that submittal from
Ms. Schuerger so we can get the information.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Sorry to interrupt but what you're inquiring
about is that question in regards to the break in?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The break in -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the inventory, you know -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --whether the insurance covered replacement costs or what.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Okay, 'cause in reference to that somehow I do have
a copy of the response. So I'm not sure if it just came directly to only my...I don't
know, but anyways we'll ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah we'll double check, 'cause yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause I don't have it so I'm just, that's why why I asked her -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --if she can check on that response, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. And, yeah, we'll clear this up. Thank you.
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MS. SCHUERGER: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MS. SCHUERGER: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Schuerger. Cindy Reeves, please.
MS. REEVES: Good morning and thank you, Mr. Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and
Councilmembers, for this opportunity to request your support for a return to the full
amount of the OED budget line for Maui County CTAHR. My name is Cindy Reeves
and I am the County Administrator. I want to thank all of you for your previous
support and to share with you that your investment in UH Maui CTAHR projects is a
good investment for the County. Even a conservative estimate of every County dollar
invested in UH Maui CTAHR resulted in significant potential returns to the County
from the 2015 Maui County funded projects. The Diamondback Moth Program has
resulted in hundreds of thousands of dollars in crop loss savings since the head
cabbage and the Chinese cabbage industries in Hawaii would no longer exist without
the DBM Program. Previously growers and homeowners experienced crop losses of 20
to 40 percent due to fruit fly infestations according to the statistics of Hawaiian
agriculture in 2011. So just the value of the cucumber industry on Maui was
estimated at 1.6 million so 20 percent of that value of the single crop can be
considered $308,000 in crop loss savings due to the Fruit Fly Suppression Program.
Our 2016 projects are just getting started as you know but again these projects have
the promise of being a great investment of Maui County funds with the potential of
significant returns as well. On Molokai, we are evaluating the effectiveness of using
casaba as an axis deer hedge fence to protect farm crops, interior farm crops from
destruction. On Maui, Molokai, and Lanai we are currently conducting surveys and
interventions of the lobate lac scale which is a severe, new, invasive pest on Oahu
since 2012 that has been confirmed to infest over 110 species in Hawaii including
many native and endangered species as well as many valuable landscape and
ornamental plant species. On Maui and Molokai, we are evaluating six varieties of ulu
to determine impacts of climate by planting all six varieties at varying elevations to
determine the impact on yields of breadfruit in Hawaii. We are conducting succession
planning classes for Maui's aging farmers and families to promote smooth
owner/operator transitions and create lasting economic impacts for their families and
the community since ag land is also better preserved when appropriate planning takes
place. And lastly we are isolating and characterizing the probiotic bacteria in poi
manufactured in Maui. Finding lactic acid bacteria in poi to be probiotic similar to
yogurt would raise its popularity among health conscious people of non-Polynesian
ancestry and expand poi's consumer base considerably providing greater economic
opportunity for Maui County taro growers and poi manufacturers. We're working hard
to be a good partner to ensure that Maui County receives a significant and measurable
return of your investment in our work. So I thank you for your previous support and
ask that you consider funding our full OED budget line for CTAHR in this coming
year. Mahalo.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Ms. Reeves. Members, any questions for
the lady on her testimony? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Ms. Reeves, for being here.
So you're saying that you're doing more than last year hence the need for the extra
funding 'cause I know there's a couple years that when it was justified you said, you
know, we don't need the money this year so please skip it. So, I'm assuming you're
going to actually do more than what you've been doing in the previous years?
MS. REEVES: Absolutely. I mean the 2015 funds we had actually been cut down to 40,000
and so we've made significant end roads using that money to increase our projects.
This year you kindly increased the budget to 100,000 and that's actually funding 5 of
the 7 projects that I've listed here for you on the testimony. So, yes, we are moving to
increase our productivity based on the funding that you provided and in fact none of
these projects would be happening without the County's support.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, can we take it that the Legislature does not fund your program and
your school appropriately 'cause you need County monies? 'Cause that is one of the
issues we fighting at the capitol, they say what does the County do.
MS. REEVES: In my opinion that is absolutely correct. They do not fund our programs
appropriately. We are funded, the State does provide all of our funding for our salaries
and our facilities but our agents are expected to try and find their extra-curricular
funding to help support the programs. And so without these additional funding's in
the County these programs would not be able to happen because we simply do not get
the resources from the State.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So it's hard for the State to have an assessment of what they should be
providing since we always cover their butts with County cash and then we get dinged
on our TAT. Well, now you know why...how I've approached State requests. Any
questions for the lady? Ms. Reeves, we thank you for your comments and we
appreciate what you do for the ag program in Maui County.
MS. REEVES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you, Councilors.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We go back to our District Offices since they were very patient. Ms. Lono,
last time, anyone wishing to provide testimony in the Hana Office?
MS. LONO: There is no one waiting to testify in Hana.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lono. Ms. Fernandez, anyone on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Alcon, anyone on Molokai?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, ladies. Members, there is no further request for
testimony for today's meeting. With no objections, we shall close testimony for today.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall close testimony for today's meeting. I'm going to take a
recess and then let you know how we'll proceed for the rest of the day. So I know I
didn't give you a midday break but can we just do a ten-minute recess, Members? So
please be back at 11:25. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Members.

ITEM 1:

11:12 a.m.
11:31 a.m.
. (gavel). . .

Okay, we shall bring the Committee back to order,

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 16-29)
EXHIBIT "1" MATRIX

CHAIR HOKAMA: Before we start round one which is the first of multiple passes well go
through our worksheets, I want to just share a few comments. One I will say on the
record at this time, Members, we will do what is appropriate and within our legal
parameters in consideration of Bargaining Unit 14's proposal. The issue for your
Chair is not with the employees, and so for those employees that have participated
through testimony and comments about their thoughts requesting us for an
affirmative consideration is appreciated. For your Chair part of the issue again is how
to pay for it with our battles of, at the State capitol with what we believe is our fair
funding requirements of revenues to be returned. We just heard comments from
CTAHR and how without the County's funding there doesn't seem to be local projects
from the State Department of Agriculture or from the University of Hawaii College of
Tropical Ag which is kind of discouraging for your Chair since we are always told what
does the County do for the State. And of course in this County, I won't speak for our
sister counties but in this County I don't know how the State would survive without
the County. But saying that what you will see that I've asked Staff to pass out is also
an update regarding the fiscal year Highway Beautification Fund. We've had
testimony this morning, Members, regarding request of certain components of this
area. As you will see in the handout that I have asked Staff to distribute and getting
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updated information from Budget Director Baz, you will see that this fund is currently
from its funding sources in the hole already by a million dollars. Okay, we haven't
started, this is already at the get-go they're deficient in their revenues by seven digits.
That is part of the concern of your Chair in how to look at this request 'cause sources
dedicated to provide for this program is insufficient to pay for that program currently
and that is why your Chair has made his recommendations accordingly looking at
what is available for us to fund and who then if we choose to make up this 1 million is
going to...who are we taking away money from to give this. So as part of our review I
would ask you to think about the following things. The balance...what we have before
you is a balanced proposal. Revenues is at 654.5 million, expenses are at
654.5 million. We heard comments this morning of many of the items that in the
Chair's proposal has been cut but I want you to know what you have adopted as
Council for this year is $620.7 million. The Mayor recommended a jump to
$7111/2 million, a $90.8 million jump. What you have in the Chair's proposal although
we hear what the disappointment in what was cut, your Chair has added $33.8 million
more than this year. So this is not a smaller budget. It is not as big as the Mayor has
requested but I've take in account some of the additional requests from the
community in relationship to the ability to pay. So, Members, as we go through, this
first pass is mostly about consensus. The Chair is not going to spend time on those
that we don't have that's fine. I know we're not going to agree on everything. So those
that we don't agree we're going to push off to round two and we can have the more
detailed discussions. If you need resources we can prepare resources for that round
two but round one will be basically just going through and where we can have
consensus that would be great. If we cannot that's not an issue either for your Chair.
But as you prepare to make recommendations and adjustments, as I said this is a
balanced budget so if you want to give someone $1 million you need to tell the Chair
whose 1 million you're going to cut. Okay, revenues again is equal to expenditures or
you're going to need to tell me how you want to increase someone's fee category or tax
category to make up the difference in funding. Any questions before we start moving
through round one? And we're just going to start, Members, it's almost the midday
break and we are going to do our midday break but also, Members, I would like to try
and finish pass one sometime today or tonight and I'm just looking at the schedule for
the rest of the week. Tomorrow night we do have another public hearing. If need be
I'm going to ask you to return after the public hearing to continue the Committee's
work, okay, but dependent upon how much we progress today 'cause we are going to
finish by the end of the week. So be prepared to make decisions on those we don't
reach consensus on. And if you have some ideas the Chair is open to sitting down
with you individually and reviewing your proposals or adjustments you wish to
consider. Okay, with that on the revenues on round one you will see the Chair has
made his proposal. You have his real property sheet on the adjustments to rates. And
first I want to say one of the indicators your Chair looks at is of course the growth in
assessed valuation. A healthy economy, a healthy real estate market has growth in
valuations. If we had no growth and we only adjusting rates that is an indicator to all
of us that something is not right regarding values and assessments in this County.
We understand why it goes down but it shouldn't just stay static. So your Chair looks
at that. Your Chair has looked also at exemptions, minimum tax, and other
components to ensure each year we bring further fairness to all tax categories within
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the...that we adjust in this County for revenue regeneration. I will tell you that I am
open to it. We are going to refer it because it cannot be done during this Budget cycle
is in the residential component the splitting off of creating multiple categories for
assessment of homes over or under $1 million. I don't want to rush it. I want to make
sure we do a good job in doing our assessment on the benefits and disadvantages of
such a consideration that Honolulu has implemented. So I'm just giving you a headsup that is something that the Council can consider in the next term. Other than that,
Members, at this point in time under Real Property the Chair's revision is
271,440,162. Any questions at this time? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Normally don't we start with the Budget
and we go to the revenues at the end or are you asking for a consensus now?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I just saying if you have questions. I gave you the philosophy of -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --how I approached it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And part of that is what help set the 654, Mr. Couch. I just trying to so
you guys get a sense of where the money is going to be coming.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You know so I'm going to ask you on Page 1 we also have current
services, you see the TAT I've made the adjustment back. I don't want to go on
potentials or maybes or what ifs. Public Service Company Tax I already gave you my
concerns. Mr. Baz has his concerns too about the impact of Fuel Tax and its ability
how it impacts two other components of revenues for this County which is Public
Service Company Tax and Franchise Fees. Your Chair is concerned that we are going
to get less revenues than projected. License, permit, fees you see again the Fuel and
Franchise Taxes. I haven't touched it yet but I just sharing you some concern of your
Chair regarding areas that we may not realize that full amounts. Special assessments,
intergovernmental, again, we're making adjustments in how to approach the
borrowing, wherever possible we reduce bond and into SRF where appropriate to get
the better rate of interest. Interfund transfers you've seen adjustments and that's why
you need to also look at the rates and fees, Appendix B component 'cause it will tie
into some of the adjustments on the transfers. Bond/Lapsed Bond again adjusting to
SRF funding requirements. Then you see the savings component of the various funds
and then you see the Chair's estimated 654.5. And again, you know, for some if you
compare it to the Mayor's Budget Proposal yes it's a big cut but if you look again at it
as I said from 620 we approved for this year you will see the increases. So again it's
perspective but I just wanted to make sure you look at it both ways. So that's
estimated revenues, Members, any questions in this area, estimated revs? Okay, let's
go to Page 4 under Operating Budget. Currently, the Chair felt the County Clerk
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presented a very fair request to the body. He's very consistent having experience with
us in the past. So I'm going to ask, Members, at this point in time is there any
concerns, or is there a consensus on County Clerk?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit. Office of the County Council the Chair has made his
adjustments. You see it. Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You know I'd like to ask if we could consider breaking from
procedure on this one. I'd like to ask if we could remove line 90 and 91 as I think it's
in the wrong place. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and thank you for that request. At this point for round one we'll just
mark it as no consensus and we'll return to it for round two for further discussion and
disposition.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I appreciate your request but at this time I'm looking for areas of
consensus first.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause then we can know how to focus and budget our time for the
remaining areas that need to be worked on. So, okay, we'll pass since...I'll take that
as a need to revisit, Mr. Couch, so happy to do so, not a problem. Civil Defense
Agency. Concerns? Any consensus? If you folks want a return just say return if you
folks not ready to make any consensus, that's fine with your Chair, so.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Return.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's fine. We'll move on. Corporation Counsel?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:. Revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are we going line by line or just the whole department?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm going...I'm asking you for the department. If you have an area of
concern then just say Chair I have a problem with expanded positions --46-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or I don't agree with premium pay and that's good enough.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right. Line 120 or 121 and 122 is what I have concern with.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that helps us and the Staff know when we come for round two to
make sure we get back to the specific area of Member's concern. So .I appreciate you
stating that, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. So are we going to...I think it would be helpful if we
could dispose of some of these and I think that it's...I don't know whether we would be
able to get consensus but as with the misunderstanding with the police elimination of
funding but not the elimination of the E/P I hope it's clear to the other Members that
we are deleting one expansion position but providing two new E/Ps without funding
because they have adequate cash already in their budget to cover the positions. So
are we going just department by department and revisit or are we going to try to see
where we have agreement already?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Where we have agreement I would like to reach that point. And so again
the key is to dispose what we can in round one where we can't have these agreements.
If you have some questions for clarification the Staff and I will do our best to respond.
And so I'm just trying to get an assessment of where the Members' concerns are and
then how to approach the...how we're actually going to finalize all the...how to pay for
everything. But I take your comment well, Mr. White, and so I have no problem. So,
Members, Corporation Counsel you have a specific thing, Mr. Couch, you wanted to?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah just line 121 and 122.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, Chair? Was Mr. White trying to ask for consensus on
those other items? Is that what the explanation is about?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask, Mr. White, you want consensus on the positions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Did you want to consensus?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, well, just to be clear what the proposal does the department
requested three new positions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We're deleting one position in its entirety.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We're deleting the E/P and the funding request. The other two we're
providing the E/P but not the funding because they have more in their actual...in their
budget than they have in actual salaries.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And there's a significant buffer there that allows for the other two to be
funded out of that differential.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Members, I know you have a lot on your plates but also look for
Friday. I believe this Department is also asking for a budget amendment to shift
the A and B Accounts if I remember what Mr. Baz said.
within categories and it
MR. BAZ: Corporation Counsel . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, was Prosecutors, I'm sorry, wrong attorney group.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I ask because I'm good to consensus on this.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So am I.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I mean if you're looking to get some things off our plate let's
start doing it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Those are my thoughts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I'm fine with 116 to 120, yeah, no problem.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so you just ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just 121 and 122.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, so as Mr. Couch has presented are you okay with his
request we just come back for 121-122?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus 118, 119.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus from the 116 to 120.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And 120?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, 120.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So under Corporation Counsel as your Chair understands it we are
returning for two items, line 121 which is the equipment request and line 122 which is
professional services. So this is something your Chair has taken the comments from
the existing year's appropriation, hearing comments from Personnel Services and
Corporation Counsel, and so this is your Chair's proposal in dealing with it since we
are all aware most of those contracts are going to head back to the table for new
Okay, we'll move to Department of Environmental
contract requirements.
Management, we'll just look at Admin General Fund. The Chair made basically no
changes so is there any issue of consensus on line 129?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus for me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. On line 131 is your grant to Malama Maui Nui. The Chair has
made a reduction of 50 for 155,5.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair, I want revisit this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's fine not a problem we can return. One-thirty-five Watershed
Admin Program Sewer Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wastewater.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Wastewater Admin. This is the one your Chair made adjustments.
Expansion position I recommended deletion and if you look at most expansions, most
of the expansions has been deleted by your Chair. I reduced operations and
equipment for expansion. I also added a proviso to deal with the comments from the
two departments Water and Environmental Management regarding the billing system
and therefore your Chair has provided language that 392,351 shall be for the new
Water System Billing Program.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: One-forty-one.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: One-four-one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just on 141.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay on 141 we have consensus. Okay, the rest you would like to revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay that's fine. Okay, I'm going to ask anyway, okay but I would say
allow the Chair and the Staff to work on contributions to the various special funds
whether it be EUTF, ERS, I would say at this time I prefer not to go through it. It's
going to depend upon our final decisions -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on positions and everything else when we do the calculation on fringes
and other components of personnel. So if there's no objections we're going to skip this
part till we get a more definite figure on actual E/P counts and fringe requirements -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No objection.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so we can assess each fund, General and Special Funds appropriately.
Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. So Debt Service, Administrative, well, let's hit
Administrative Overhead. I know this is one of Mr. Baz's key components. So any
concern on line 166 4,168,622 for Administrative Overhead?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I would say, Members, if you would...after we make this final
decisions the balances then we can consider for the Reserve Funds. So I'm going to
ask at this time we skip that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We are now under Wastewater Operations, Sewer Fund. Your Chair has
deleted the expansions. You heard Director Stant earlier today giving his comments
on why he felt it was important for us to have a reconsideration. You have his ...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit 174.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, revisit 174.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And 175.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One seven five. I, if you see, did some additions besides cuts. I have...I
am asking you to consider to add 150,000 of these Special Funds and we move it out
of the CIP component and put it in Ops which is their Permit Compliance Project. So
this is where I have -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --replaced it and I think it's important for us to consider doing this project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Solid Waste Admin, Solid Waste Management Fund
line 180 general appropriations for this area. Your Chair made no adjustments to the
$1,357,136 request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Again, Members, we're going to skip contributions to Retirement
System, Health Fund, OPEB until we get the final number on personnel. Debt Service
I'm going to wait until we finish the CIP. Administrative Overhead Charge line 206
$5,255,012 do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Solid Waste Operations, Solid Waste Management Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's consensus as of now but if for instance a miracle should
happen and we get the expansion positions back then that number would change
wouldn't it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, will your overhead assessments for each division and whatnot
change with expansion positions?
was not revised
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, since the overhead, the Administrative Overhead
in your proposal should the positions go back there wouldn't be any revisions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, so it would be revised if the positions go away?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And also we are being requested to consider funding an update of the
Overhead Study.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
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MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. I think if the Overhead Charge is going to go down if the
expansion positions are...if your reductions are sustained then I don't think we should
have consensus on this if it's going to
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and that's why I wanted Mr. Baz to -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well I think maybe treat -CHAIR HOKAMA: --answer.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --these, treat the Overhead Charge the same way you're treating Debt
Service and the other...just come back to it at the end.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. No, I hear you. I hear you. And that's fine with your Chair,
your Chair is open to that so we'll treat it in that manner.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: The Committee's understanding as well those revenues are Interfund -CHAIR HOKAMA: Transfers.
MR. BAZ: --transfers into the General Fund so any reductions in those Overhead, the
Administrative Overhead Charges would also need to offset reductions in either
General Fund expenditures or increase in revenue from other areas.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood. Thank you for that reminder. Members, you heard Mr. Baz?
Okay. Solid Waste Ops, Solid Waste Management Fund your Chair made adjustments
on premium pay. The C&D Landfill closure adjustment was on the latest response we
got from the Department I believe I got additional update information from Department
of Health--was it from Health Department?--regarding the ability to reduce the request
on the C86D Landfill in Maalaea. So that is where your Chair is basing this
recommendation is off the latest communication from the Department as we
understand it as it relates also to State Department of Health's updated status for this
project. And the refuse carts that was taken into account what was in the current
inventory supply, your Chair is also making an assumption regarding that 3-Can Plan.
And at this point unless you folks can convince the Chair, I'm open, my proposal will
take it to close the 3-Can Plan at this time. And happy to reinstitute it once we have
the community support to reinstitute it. We've had mixed results out of this year's
experiment and so I just share that that is how your Chair approached this program.
Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair, based on your comments depending upon what
happens in the rates and fees and whatnot, I'd like to revisit this just in case it stays.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to, not a problem, Mr. Couch. Ms. Cochran, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And so this line I believe was for an
expansion to expand automated service for an existing route. Is that correct this ask?
This wasn't for 3 Can and this wasn't to replace. It was just to get existing manual
route -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --into automation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so, let me share some comment for all of you but thank you for that
question, Ms. Cochran. The Department gave us a request to...for two purchases of
new containers then we talked about what is the existing inventory, that's where we
got the information that per container they fit about 400 cans per container that the
County utilizes for storage. Then we reviewed the 3-Can Plan, what is their inventory
balances, how many accounts, how many containers. So in your Chair's proposal all
of that has been into the mix that if you choose to consider and we do close down the
3-Can Plan Program, the adjustments on inventory, and everything else in
consultation with the Division is how I came up with the reductions. 'Cause for part
of it one of the things is Honolulu could be a buyer of our unused inventory of refuse
cans because we're not going to move forward, they still have their program and my
understanding is they talk with each other and that is an option for us to consider. So
that's how I approached the refuse carts and taking all those factors into account,
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And, no, and that's fine. I also had a discussion with
the Department in regards to ordering perhaps smaller, a midsized cart because
someone like my mom who's 91 years old doesn't create as much trash and cannot
wheel her big brown cart up the driveway. The neighbor got to help or I got to drive by
and help her. There's I'm sure others but at this point in time Department needed to
go out and and suss, and get a survey done and la la la. So I was looking for a
reduction in cost of $120,000 just to the sheer fact of buying smaller carts which still
work with automation, the automation arm on the existing trucks and stuffs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I'm still looking at that...anyways.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so, yeah, I guess we need to revisit this area -CHAIR HOKAMA: We can return. We can return.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in regards to all these.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we can return, Ms. Cochran, yeah, I'm mean we're happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And sorry if I still have the floor. I want to...can I jump back
to item 1...let's see I guess this would 182 or 181 in that area, the 1,004,892.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 'Cause I guess this is the overall, I don't know if this is the
area but I'll ask.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is it. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I'm trying to figure, I guess or maybe it's this Solid Waste
Ops Program, as I said I was looking to drop funding for the carts so I wasn't sure if it
was from here but I guess it's from the Ops. And then the 25,000 for their recycling
events I don't see anywhere so I'm not sure for the West Maui stuff if it was coming out
of here or, you know, the Ops or this 181 or ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I can't find it and so I just kind of have a question ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know we did talk about it, the Staff and I, Ms. Cochran, and I swear
we ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I don't know where to look or see.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that's why I'm just tagging this section right now for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Members, when you look at the columns there's the Mayor's
overall request. We have provided you in the A, B, C Account format. So the A
column is just salaries and wages, B is your operations, and C is your equipment
component. But let us follow up on that question from you --55-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're happy to respond to that where we put that program for you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's all, Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you know what we've hit that time of day. Everybody needs
nourishment and a break. So, Members, why don't we take our midday break and
return at 1:30. Okay, we shall be in recess till 1:30. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:05 p.m.
1:37 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall return to order, Members. Thank you for that
break. Okay. When we break'd at midday we were in the Solid Waste Operations
Program of Environmental Management. Line 212 we are going to return to that
component so I would ask you to look at line 215 Environmental Protection and
Sustainability under the Solid Waste Fund.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, just for clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What was the status on 210 and 211, did we have consensus or?
CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding is we have consensus but we shall return on 212.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's how I recall in my notes before we break that Members want to
return regarding the carts. So under 217 you heard the departments, I made an
adjustment there. I made an adjustment in contractual services and premium pay.
You heard comments from EKO and others. And so if you folks would like to return
that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll return for...oh, 218 is the one with the EKO I believe. You
guys want to bring back 217?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay that's fine. You guys want to look at premium pay?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well we shall return for 217, 218, Members and Staff.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: At this point I believe with help from your Staff this is where
I am to insert the 25,000 for Malama Maui Nui monthly recycling events in West Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would you like the same language -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: A proviso I'd like.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --as the current year consideration? In the current year we have a proviso
and so is that sufficient for your needs or would you like to reword the language?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is...sorry, can Ms. Yoshimura?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the current language in the Fiscal '16 Budget reads 15,000. I
believe there was an increase of 10,000 so the amount would change on your proviso
and it would read provided that $25,000 shall be for the Community Work Day
Program dba Malama Maui Nui to conduct monthly recycling events in West Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and that is going to be placed in B category under the 4,354,550 is
where I would recommend we place it, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So that's in this section but create a new line item?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We would create a, yeah, a proviso language in this program area as it
regards to the B Account.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And I need to find this 25?

-57-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it's part of ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Taken out of the pot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The way I'm assuming your requesting from us is that it will be a specific
language as it impacts the 4.354 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah, we just need the right language.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright. I believe Staff has it but I mean it will be in
the, yeah, reprint.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's where we will place it for you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Do we need to vote on that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm going to ask the Members if they have -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --consensus on that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So are we doing provisos now? I thought we were just going to
go through to see where we're consensus'ing on and then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I know I'm being flexible.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Okay. I just need to know 'cause I got a couple to add.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's fine, that's fine. I mean, you know, propose it and we'll see how
it goes. If not we can...we will return to it but we'll do as much as we can today.
Okay, Department of Finance Admin Program I made a deletion of expansion. I've
adjusted operations basically as it regards to expansion. Professional Services you see
I've adjusted it and then added a proviso. This is where your Chair is recommending
that we look at for the updated on the Overhead Study or the Full Cost and Office
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Management Allocation Plan be taken from and then that line 228 is my deduction for
the expansion position. Questions? Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is that line 225 we're going to revisit, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: If you want to, Ms. Crivello -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, no, no. I'm okay
CHAIR HOKAMA: --happy to, I just gave you my comments about, you know, how I
approached this request area and so if you have issues we can revisit. If you folks
have support then we can move on under consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, can I ask ...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm okay with 225 and 226.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Real quick, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Was this is an issue of an audit, part of their audit findings?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was...the Chair looked at those recommendations from the
independent auditor, comments from the County Auditor, comments from
Corporation Counsel. I took that all into account in my recommendations to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, very good. I'm good to consensus, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any concern with 227 or 228, Members? That is again a proviso to
do the updated allocation study and the expansion equipment.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So you're basically leaving the amount the same as last year but a
proviso in the cost -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct. Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --accounting. I'm okay with that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We'll move forward. So that number moving forward
with A, B, C is 738,356. Under the Accounts Program your Chair has made a revision,
again deleted the expansion, I've reduced premium pay in Ops, and equipment for
Chair is open to your comments, consensus, revisits, language
expansion.
recommendations.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, could you comment on the reduction to operations of 136, does
that include the request to upgrade. IFAS?
CHAIR HOKAMA: How did we break up the reduction please?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, can we get back to the Committee?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you. Mr. White, we'll get back to you 'cause I got to look for
my worksheet on that one.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll be able to give you the components that made up the 132.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The 136?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, some of it was the adjustments, Mr. White, some of the actual
expenditures based on historicals. The Chair just made adjustments and took what
was the previous years as well as adjusting the expansion request and that's how we
made the adjustments. We took into account what Mr. Baz shared with the historicals
and then the Staff and I made our own adjustments to that as I understand it.
Michele, please?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, on the handout we provided you this morning on Page 3 under
the Accounts Program there are four items: Professional Services, Air Fare
Transportation, Per Diem, and Registration and Training Fees. And the amount...the
change amount would equate to the amount that you will see on Exhibit "1" on
line 235.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Questions, Members?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I guess the question is whether that leaves enough money for the IFAS
upgrade that was requested. It looks like -CHAIR HOKAMA: That is something I really wanted -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --maybe the ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --you and all the Members to have some comment on how we're going to
decide on this request.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It looks like change, the deletion might be the 120 one-time
appropriation for the paperless forms.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of it was the IFAS and the ONESolution, the adjustments we made to
IFAS and ONESolution's was part of the cut there.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Sorry, I couldn't hear you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of the adjustment was in the specific line as it regards to Professional
Services as it impacts IFAS and ONESolution. This is the area that Admin has asked
to...their expansion was 270,000 -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in this request, Professional Services area, we took the request reviewed
where we were with ADP, taking into account comments from Mr. Ching from the
Department of Management. And so after hearing that I came to the conclusion that
at this time I was ready to make a reduction until we get exactly better update
information. 'Cause for me I would hope and I understand, you know, Mr. Baz
understands I get it, for ADP we're a small potato but with technology I don't see why
with other vendors whether it be one ESRI or others we cannot consider writing a
software, purchasing a software that satisfies our needs and our requirements. I'm
not into buying something that...like a store and just say I gotta only pick between box
A or box B when I really don't want either box A or box B but that's the only thing the
market provides me to choose from. I'm willing to pay, you know, a reasonable money
to purchase that box C which is what we want and what we need. And so I'm looking
at this to say what do we really need out of the IFAS Program, ONESolution Program
and how much is it going to take for us to purchase something that makes sense for
us. 'Cause everything I hear we're going to have to adapt to what we buy because it's
not really what we want.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I'm comfortable with your recommendation on that line because
it leaves them with more than 50 percent increase, as a $200,000 increase over what
they budgeted last year. So thanks for that clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other concerns? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I'm good with your accounting here because as
Mr. White mentioned it's almost 300...$291,700 above last years. So this is not flat
and this isn't a negative.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is still an increase. It's almost $300,000 of increase so
I'm okay, Chair. For me it's consensus but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So do we have consensus?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm going to ask the Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus or are there additional concerns?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So we're revisiting the other two or do we have consensus on premium
pay?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm saying all of it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We're saying we have consensus on all.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to move forward 1,645,450. Financial Services Program,
Members, under General you see my adjustments, I am proposing that we transfer one
position to this area from Management for an Agricultural Inspector. I am...you've
heard Mr. Vila but I'm proposing to delete that .7 and the premium pay in operations
as it impacts that program area.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit 242, 243.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two-four-three, 244.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, 242, 243.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir. You want to return to that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Those two, yeah.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Fine. That's fine, Mr. Couch, we can return.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, do we have consensus on the others?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys have issues with premium or Ops?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No. Reduce operation, revisit if we're revisiting.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's fine. Thank you. So 242 ...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit just 245?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, right now the only that seems to... going to move forward at this time
is 244. So 42, 43, 45 we'll return. Under Service Center the Chair did not touch lease
requirements. We have agreements so any issues with the 506,800?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And it's one thing we probably should have...I probably should
have asked Mr. Vila. Are we paying lease on the place that we're not residing right
now?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, are you able to maybe give us a comment on that at this time? If
not, we will contact the Department.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I'm not aware of the current situation as far as the payments of
the lease or anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, 'cause we've been out of there several months now and
it's going to be another few months before we go back in, hopefully we're not paying
any lease on that. And so will that affect that, that's probably this year's budget that
it's going to affect.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. Member Couch, yes, you're correct. It will probably
affect Fiscal Year '16's Budget not necessarily '17s.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. So you guys want to return to this -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or for budgeting purposes you're okay with this at this time?
Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll move 506,800. Purchasing Program we had Mr. King with us.
He's pretty straightforward Mr. King.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I would say do we have consensus on 460,949?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. On Page 10 under Treasury I was thinking of making
some adjustments but we should take small steps every year instead of major steps
every year. So, I'm going to let it go this year and what is being requested is what I'm
proposing. Is there any concerns with 1,113,033 for Treasury?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll move that amount forward. Countywide Costs Fringes I'm
going to leave this alone. This is where you see, Members, we kind of like threw a
lump or a pot...lump-sum pot for MAPPS and I've placed $100,000 in this fund. Any
questions, concerns at this point in time?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, how does that work since we've got A, B, C and
inter-program and all that kind of thing? So if Mr. Baz or you can explain how that
works between departments.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: At this point in time we just approached it from...we threw everybody's
request into one pot so we could get a better handle of exactly how much money is
being asked of us.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But if that's, I mean it works with the way we've got everything
separated now that that Finance can take out of that 100,000 and so can DPW
without comingling funds or whatever?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, to me, you know, Finance -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 'Cause it's premium ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know, eventually with the help of Mr. Baz's office they're going to do
the actual subaccount insertion on the general ledger. So, you know, for me I don't
have a problem with how we approaching this and unless Finance says they have
issues which I would find difficult because of all the Trust and Agency accounts we
already have in place. Revolving Funds we have in place, Special Funds we have in
place, transfers from the General Fund. I don't know why we couldn't do this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would think so too but I just want to make sure it works.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Mr. Baz, you want to add a comment?
MR. BAZ: Just from a technical standpoint we budget the salary adjustments in Sub-object
Code 6550 which is a B sub-object code. So what happens is that should the funding
be required in the departments because they've expended premium pay for the MAPPS
Program we would do a demand form, you know, transferring those expenditures from
this 6550 to the correct A Account so, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. As long as it works and we have it on record that it
works.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and then in the annual budget, Mr. Couch, we add under General
Provisions Section 19 we authorize through that ordinance the Director of Finance to
make all the appropriate adjustments to the specific accounts.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we also authorize him through the budget ordinance the ability to
transfer under Countywide Costs the specific departments using generally accepted
accounting principles required for such transfer to reflect the financial accounting of
such department. That is already part of General Provisions No. 19.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, then that's a great, if it works there I'm fine with it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you. We appreciate the question. We appreciate the
question, Mr. Couch.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Again the bond is going to be a flexible target once we
complete projects and, and make all the final decisions on the funding sources for
those, such projects. Supplemental transfer to the Golf Fund we'll come back to that
once we review the golf revenues and expenses. As you can see part of your Chair's
rationale to go and look at increasing tipping fees from 80 to 81 is part of what I think
is reflecting to the community the more...the truer and more accurate cost for such
services. And there's one advantage, if we get the 81 since we're told that is the cost of
this service then there will be no requirements of a General Fund transfer and that's
one of the advantages I'm looking at not transferring General Funds for a special
component.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But there still remains a supplemental transfer of 11 million, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, this is as it regards to the residential component that the 81 -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right so we're not ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --takes care the residential component so there will not be a request for a
General Fund transfer for the residential side but we still have to deal with the other
components of tipping like commercial and whatnot.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I'd like to revisit and have them provide us the numbers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, we can revisit. Not a problem. Not a problem. Okay, we'll come
back to 276. So, you know what, Members, why don't we just return to this whole
program within the Division under 275, we'll return to that. Your Chair because of
some challenges Mr. Baz and I was given this year, your Chair is recommending
additional monies to be considered for the Self Insurance Program so I've adjusted it
by 3 million. If you recall you just authorized a recent amendment regarding
$2 million I believe. So, again I'm just making this to ensure that we're in a good
position for the upcoming fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So is there any issues? Do we have consensus on this consideration?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Can we revisit that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On that it might be a situation where we may have to go into
executive session I think.
CHAIR HOKAMA: At the appropriate time I'll make the ruling -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on the request of executive session and for the purpose of the session.
Okay, let's see, again, Members, unless we change the Real Property component the
certification amount is going to be adjusted so let's just move on. Transfer to the
Affordable Fund, same thing, depends what we final settle upon Real Property Tax. So
we'll return to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, before we move to the next page if I go back up to
line 263 and ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two six three.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah the ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I'm noticing that last year's was 10 million more than
what is being asked this year. How does that work? Isn't always going up on us? But
this is 10 million less which is I mean it's nice to see but it kind of confuses me right
now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, would you care to share a comment?
MR. BAZ: Sure. And thank you, Member Cochran, that's important to note. What
happened was in the previous years we had fringe benefits as one line and fringe
benefit reimbursements as another line. So the monies that were getting reimbursed
from the Special Funds into the General Fund was a separate program necessarily so
they were controlled separately. What we did was combined the two into the fringe
benefits. They're still separate index codes for each one of them. So in this Budget
Details you can see that there is still the total amounts in there but it has been
adjusted so that those are combined into one program. So that is why you're seeing a
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net result of... so out of the General Fund basically is the $59 million, the rest of it is
getting paid for out of the Special Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, thank you. I was, those numbers was like,
huh? Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good question. Good question.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I know you didn't...you wanted to kind of skip it but I'm just
curious how on line 272 it says no revision yet there's a negative amount in there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let's see, I'm not too sure if that is based upon our adjustment on the
fees. Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, sorry it's just an oversight on Staffs part.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so don't look at that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Page 11, Members, this is also again still under Finance. General
Costs I've left alone. Any questions, consensus on 936,126?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So wait, sorry, what did you say? We're at line 294?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two-nine-four.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, this too is a little less than last year so is that the
same reasoning with the fringe benefits too? It's because it's all combined and the
same description you mentioned, Mr. Baz or Mr. Chair?
MR. BAZ: No. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, comment please.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. This General Costs pays for Department of Finance's items in
basically downstairs on the second floor copy machine that a lot of departments use
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as well as the, some other fees and stuff like that but mainly the reduction was in the
mailing. We noticed that there was contractual mailings that were provided by this
fund that should have been provided out of DMV, Real Property Tax, Kaunoa. So we
took the money out of here and put it into their index code so that they have control
over that expenditures.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, thank you, that explains it. Thank you very
much, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. So, Members, any need to revisit? Do we have
consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well move that forward 936,126. The next line 298 22,095,450, if
you notice this is shown as a negative. This is what Mr. Baz goes and assesses
departments. So again the Chair is relying...was relying on Mr. Baz's current
Overhead assessment study that he basing these numbers on. So I've made no
adjustments to this number for Mr. Baz. Is there any need to revisit? Do we have
consensus on $22,095,450?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have consensus but just the explanation on what this goes
towards 'cause this too is down 2 million. So that's nice I mean to see that we're
dropping a cost but just a reason.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, comment please.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Actually it's up about $1.5 million. It was 20,516,000 for
Fiscal Year '16 so it did increase.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, sorry, yeah.
MR. BAZ: It's a negative number so it ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, right.
MR. BAZ: Basically what this is again is the overhead reimbursements we talked about, the
Full Cost Allocation Plan that are charged to the Special Funds to pay back the
General Fund for overhead costs. And we thank the Committee for giving us the
funding to or requirement at least to do the Full Cost Allocation Plan update for this
upcoming year. We got a better idea. But I believe that Chair White had a question
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about a different item of overhead reimbursements and so there might be a revisit
required in this line as well.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, not only revisit it's just that that number is going to adjust up or
down based on -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --on the other changes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand, yeah. Okay, we'll move on. We'll keep 298 as something to
review dependent on the outcome of the Committee's choices and decisions. At this
time, I would like to ask consensus for line 302 Emergency Fund $4 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would like to have consensus, Members, for line 306 OPEB 16,172,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that our annual required contribution?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is my understanding that's the ARC.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One thing I'm going to let you know the Chair is planning to have a
proviso -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: For the first quarter.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that we are working with Mr. Baz, in coordination with Mr. Baz, to
express the Council's directive that it be paid in the first quarter of the new fiscal year
to maximize the ability of interest payments once we submit to the fund. Any
comments or concerns regarding the proviso the Chair is looking for? Okay, I don't
have the language but it's something we've talked about and it's what the Department
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has done I believe the last two years early submittal of the obligation check.
Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to 16,172,000 forward. We are under Department of
Fire and Public Safety. I expect a lot of revisits and that is not a problem but knowing
that I'm going to skip this Department and come back to this Department -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --at this point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're going to come back -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, that's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for round one on this whole Department.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Alright.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're not bypassing it. We're not going to ignore it. We're just going to
take it further down the ladder -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: The ladder.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --of the reviews.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No more ladder trucks it broke.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hey you want to go dig up a couple of million dollars happy to look at it
then. Okay, Department of Housing and Human Concerns on Page 12, the bottom of
12 we have Admin Program, under that I've made a small reduction under Ops which
is less, under 3,000 therefore the Chair is going to ask you for a consensus on
line 356 of 560,144.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, under the Housing Program under (1) General the Chair made one
adjustment transferring one of the EAs, the vacancies to this Department to handle
the area of the Homeless Program. Your Chair feels that at this time an Assessment
Specialist is more important to get a grip of exactly how the County monies are being
used and then how it is being leveraged and what is the benefit with State and Federal
and other charitable and private funds. So my recommendation for this upcoming
year is instead of growing a division we provide them with a specialist to come up with
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an assessment and be able to give us a better well-thought plan for us to consider for
the next budget cycle. So this is how I'm addressing it, I'm asking for a Housing
Assessment Specialist to do the due diligence not only for the Department but for the
County as a whole. Questions? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is this an existing filled position that we're moving or is it a
vacant?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It is a vacant position.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'd like to revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that's fine not a problem. We will come back to 361, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So in your recommendation it's another I guess just body
added in yet operations didn't get adjusted equipment. So is that equipment for that
person? And the 154 in B account just stays flat -CHAIR HOKAMA: It's flat.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but yet you're adding another ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: It's flat. Yeah one of the things I did look at is the vacancy list that we all
have copies of. So your Chair's position is, you know, it is one of the challenges, the
hot challenges before the County, this subject so I'm putting in this specialist for your
consideration but there's other vacancies within the division and departmental
positions. I want them to look at their department, their budget and start doing what
we pay them for, manage your monies and manage your department. Don't just come
and say I want money for this and that, anybody can do that ask us for money. What
we're looking for is people who can manage and direct their programs within the
resources provided.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, I see that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Again we are being asked to revisit so we are going to come back to
this, Members, not a problem. On line 364 Grants under the Affordable Rental
Housing Program I made an adjustment to bring it down to 1 million and for me it's
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more about just staying within what I think we should be asking the base to provide in
financial resources. So I made adjustments on what I feel I'm happy to request and
defend before the tax base but I have my cap of what I'm not willing to ask the base
for. Ms. Cochran, questions, concerns?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair, so this is not one of those Charter mandates
that a certain percentage of our RPT goes to like the Open Space or anything? It's not
that type of fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But we're not touching the revenue side, yeah, this is about the
disbursement side for certain program areas. And for me at this point in time this is
how I'm looking at the Affordable Rentals. I am hoping that people like you and our
Chair Ms. Crivello will come up with some potential projects 'cause I think we all agree
we want units not just vouchers and whatnot. We want to see housing for our people
so I really would like the monies to go into construction of units than just grants for
programs.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good, Chair, an
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is, and I'm sorry I don't have the full description, is this part
of the HUD Voucher Program?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you. No, this is not part of the HUD Voucher Program. This is a
program that provides affordable rental subsidies through the four agencies that were
discussed that assist people for a short-term basis in rental assistance with either a
down payment or monthly payments and sometimes utilities as well. So the
Fiscal Year '16 Budget was 943,500 so it's still about a 5 percent increase with the
Chair's proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. So, Chair, when you talk...when you mentioned
about construction are you just doing a complete reduction or moving this 100,000?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I'm just making a reduction in this program area.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. I would like to revisit.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, happy to we can revisit, not a problem, Ms. Crivello. Next is the
Grants First-Time Home Buyers Program. This is my proposal I wanted you to have
some discussion on whether or not we want to continue to approach it from this
manner or is there a way you folks want to consider some revisions to be able to
expand the amount of people that can get a potential benefit out of this program. You
folks want to look at different incentives. And while we all want to be able to offer our
community the opportunity to purchase, as I understand it the issue before us is the
rental component of housing as the higher priority than the purchasing of units at this
time. So I just throw that out. Again it is my...it's just my proposal. Part of this is to
get the discussion from all of you and then we can make a Committee decision. Any
discussion at this time, Members, you want to share on this? If not we are going to do
a revisit on this.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I agree with the Chair's position.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other ...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have consensus for now, fine. Okay, we'll move this as a consensus
and if there is a need the Chair again will be open to your request. Okay, under the
Grant Hale Mahaolu for Homeowners and Housing Counseling Program.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, revisit, 373 we'll come back, not an issue. Human Concerns the
line starts on 377. On 379 the Chair has made his recommendation, deletion of this
four positions. It's tied into line 371 where you see I'm proposing the specialist and
then the reduction of operations as it regards to expansion. So the adjusted numbers
you see is on the bottom of 13 whereby A, B, C totals up to $5,244,712.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Both items?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I'm guessing that if...well actually that's operations. Yes,
both items please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are you talking 378, 379?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three-seven-nine, 380. Okay, we shall return. Page 14 Grants and
Disbursements for food, shelter, and safety, I made a sizeable reduction from
1.1 million to $860,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: What was 2016?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty sixteen, Staff, what is our number?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, food, shelter, and safety -CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, that's right this is ...
MS. YOSHIMURA: --is a new proposal. Well, it's actually taking the place of Community
Partnership Grants. Community Partnership Grants in Fiscal '16 was funded at
1,110,845.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, 387, 393, 398, 403, 409...41...oh, okay we just
stop at 409. Your Chair basically did not take into account new requests. I wish we
had the money to do for every new request but we don't. What your Chair has done is
take the existing grantees, reviewed testimony and comment, and at this time this is
what I'm proposing, 2 percent over current year's numbers. That is what I feel is
affordable for us. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and I understand what you've done here
and I agree with most of it. I just, through all of these I would like to...the body to
consider a 3 percent increase instead of 2 percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, give us some funding options -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yes, understood.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --who you want to chop.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if in that vein that anywhere there it says 2 percent increase
for the most part I'm going to be asking for a revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to hear your proposal, Mr. Couch. Okay, so we know we're going to
review that. Four one four is a new proposal, the Chair did not consider it.
Four one eight, again what you see as new ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus on 414.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there consensus on 414?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four-one-eight consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Four-two-two, this is another new grant request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Feed My Sheep and Hale Mahaolu, Mr. Couch, you're going to want
to return to those two items also?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall revisit. Four-two-seven, 432. Let's see, 436 the Chair
made one error, that's my fault. Hale Makua is going to be flat, that's what Mr. Krieg
asked. I appreciate Mr. Krieg being very upfront with us. He has again stated that he
will move on the one-to-one matching requirements that we currently have for this
current year. So for Hale Makua it's 200,000 with a proviso that one-to-one matching
funds are received. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 200,000, that was my error, that's my fault. My apologies,
Members. Homeless programs I made an adjustment to 1 million from 1.1.
Comments? Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I'm going to move 1 million forward. Hale Laulima is an existing so
again well revisit but I've recommended 2 percent so line 445 we shall return.
Hui Malama again has the 2 percent I'm recommending. We'll return by request of
Mr. Couch. Four-five-five at this time I've deleted it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have consensus at this time, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, in my revisit.
-76-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall revisit. Imua we shall return since it's still part of
Mr. Couch's.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, I was trying to find my notes, sorry, if I can jump
back to Page 15 up to the homeless program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fifteen, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If I'm not mistaken was there a 200,000 in there slated
specifically for homeless campsite cleanups? And that was, I don't completely
100 percent agree, I believe a lot ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think part of it was the adjustment for that because I can't, you know, in
my recollection I cannot tell you specifically who talked to me but I know there was a
concern that property owners should bear some responsibility.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's me. That was me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. I'm sorry, at least I recall the conversation, okay. And I
appreciate that, Ms. Cochran, and so I took your comments to heart that I think the
property owners do have some responsibility and that's why I made an adjustment. I
didn't make a total adjusted or full cut but I made an adjustment 'cause I agree with
your premise.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's part of it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Oh, no, okay. And I appreciate you taking that into
account 'cause I think on the State, whether it's the State land ownership or private
landownership what have you because we do pay it with our Maui Police Department
presence, our Animal Management presence as it is. So to slate additional dollars
per se for this type of job for me was above and beyond and we do our share. We pull
out weight on these cleanups. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I wanted to revisit make sure that I had it straight what
the dollar amounts are being, you know, slated for.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So thank you. At least my memory is about three-quarter correct. Yeah,
thank you. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, sorry, I took forever on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no. Okay. J. Walter Cameron, again you heard the Director
Mr. Gaxiola ask us for reconsideration. Again the Chair treated all new grants in the
same manner. I didn't pick and choose which one. I just approached it we're going to
take care existing first. So regarding 464 you want to revisit or you have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Lanai Community Health Center, the same thing so we shall return
under ...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If you don't mind, I'm just going to channel Ms. Baisa for a moment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For which one?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: For the Cameron Center since she's not able to be here today I think
I'd like to revisit that just so that she can -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 464.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --make her pitch for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Channeling by request.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No request just ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: By proxy.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I have no, again they're not here I take your request very seriously for
those Members that are not here. So happy to revisit, not a problem.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not a problem, okay, yeah, not a problem. I want to give those Members
their opportunity. Okay, MAPA same thing, revisit 472. Maui Day Care again,
Mr. Couch, you get one big thing for propose back to us. Enlace Hispano we shall
revisit as part of Mr. Couch's master request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did you mention the Lanai Community Health Center?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay we're going to come back to that one too?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Right now I'm approaching that everything that has the 2 percent
by your, as I call it, by your master request will all be revisited.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah, he's the one that's going to have to find the money or cut
somebody. Four-eighty-seven revisit. Four-ninety-two revisit. Four-ninety-seven
revisit. Five-zero-two revisit. Five-zero-six brand new the Chair did not, is not
recommending consideration this year. Do we have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mental Health Association we'll revisit 510. One thing I do want to
say that our national association is working hard to get additional Federal dollars
regarding mental health in jails, mental health in regular community action programs,
and mental health in the opiates crisis that we are facing nationally whether it be
prescription drugs, tar heroin or heroin tar issues or whatever it is. This is a monster
problem with the opiates and so I'm open to continue the discussions regarding the
mental health component -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --of this crisis. So we can revisit. Mental Health Kokua is a new grant so I
did not consider it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Kidney Foundation it's a new grant. I understand the
comments given in testimony but at this time I'm not going to be recommending.
Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five-two-three Salvation Army we shall return. Revisit. Self-Sufficiency
we shall return 528. Five-thirty-three Services to the Frail and Elderly I made no
adjustments. Do we have consensus on 861,739?
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I noticed everything you just straight across the board
cut. Is this, this is an existing pot of money, kind of like the Community Partnership
Grant item?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one is this?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Frail and Elderly line?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 'Cause you didn't touch this one -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --which I agree but just wanting to know the reasoning. Is
this divvied up amongst many different organizations? Is that what this pot, it's a pot
of money?
CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding is that they apply to the Department for what they want
to...for a dollar amount and what they in return service they will provide to the
Department, and I think they work it out with the Director. And Finance I don't know
if, Mr. Baz, if you have anything you'd like to share?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This grant for services for the frail and elderly is combined
with the Federal Title 3 monies that we receive as well as the State Kupuna Care
monies and it provides a myriad of services, personal care, home care, transportation,
all kinds of different services for seniors.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And it goes through Housing and Human Concerns
to divvy up the proceeds?
MR. BAZ: Yes. Yeah the Department will then work on, you know, requests from the
different agencies to provide those services.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So we approve the amount but we are not in control
of who gets what in the end?
MR. BAZ: That's done by Request for Proposal.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, and it looks like it's up 200,000 from last year with
this amount.
MR. BAZ: Yes, that was the request of the Department because of the increased need in
services needing to be provided for elderly, so services for frail and elderly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
MR. BAZ: Actually if I remember correctly this $200,000 was added as a proviso to the
Human Concerns budget during the Fiscal Year '16 deliberations by Mr. Victorino
because the Department had requested it last minute and he added that money in
there for the '16 Budget so we just moved it into this pot of money. So it's already
here. It's not really just...not really an expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it's like carryover?
MR. BAZ: No, no. We use the money in Fiscal Year '16 but it wasn't in this line. It was in a
proviso in the Fiscal Year '16 Budget saying the $200,000 of Human Concerns
operational monies should go to the Services for Frail and Elderly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But, Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --provisos don't necessarily carryover, right? You have to
keep fighting for your proviso every year.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say your proviso is only good for the budget year it's inserted in.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah, if you want it for this coming year we're going to need to reinsert
it, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right like I had to do just now for -CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right for other one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Malama Maui Nui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So the 200,000 that Mr. Baz is saying was proviso'd last
year by Mr. Victorino, this is kind of why the extra 200,000 is here again for. But I'm
just ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I don't think that's truly the reasoning but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, again, you know, I don't have a problem to revisit but I would like to
refer you to March 23, 2016 HC-2 BF-1. This is a response from the Director,
Ms. Shishido signed it on behalf of Director Reimann and on the attachment on Page 2
of 3 of their attachment you will see their program area Services to the Frail and
Elderly and you will see the 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11...one dozen different entities
that have put in requests, proposals to receive monies from this pot that we've
appropriated for. And so you will see mostly it's for home care services for elderly,
assisted transportation services, enhance fitness programs, and that's what this
money is funding currently, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, very good. I just wanted a clearer picture of what it's
utilized and in what manner. And as we know this is our fastest growing population
too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and so I took that into account and that's why your Chair is not
proposing reductions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: As I'm reaching there myself. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I guess I qualify by age. Thank you. Next one 537, again with the
2 percent I'm going to and then, revisit this and then allow people like Ms. Crivello to
look at the provisos and see if there's revisions in language or how they want...how
you folks want to present.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we'll revisit. We shall return to 537. Five-forty-three, again we'll
revisit this. This is part of the 2 percent but I have deleted the expansion request.
Let's see, Women Helping Women we shall return, that has the master request from
Mr. Couch. Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai, 555 revisit. Five-six-zero revisit.
Five-six-five. Five-seven...no, no, no, 570 is a new grant your Chair has deleted this.
Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall revisit 570. Ohana Makamae we shall revisit 574.
Five-seven-eight, 583, 588, Mr. Couch, you going be busy.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five-nine-three, 598, 603, 608, 612, 617, 621. Six-Twenty-eight no
revisions, no adjustments from the Mayor's request or your Chair. Do we have
consensus on the 150,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that for design or is that...what ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought this was their ops money 'cause I thought we made sure that
design went into the CIP component. Thanks for the question.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. This $150,000 to the Lanai Youth Center facility is a grant for
planning and possibly design of the youth center facility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, yeah, because it's a grant it needs to be cash. Okay, we don't
borrow money for grants for CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I will...but I appreciate the question 'cause I still not sure whether
we'll keep it here or throw it in CIP and of course it's got to be funded by cash if we
throw it in CIP. But again, Mr. Baz, any comments you want to share?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, if you want the Department of Parks and Recreation to manage the project
and then you throw it into CIP.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: If you want it to be the Lanai Youth Center managing the project then you'd keep
it as a grant.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: So it's just a choice of the Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We appreciate your comments, Mr. Baz, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So, consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and then we'll decide if we need to shift it under Parks as a CIP or
keep it under this component as a grant, cash grant. Six-three-zero we shall return.
Six-three-five we shall return. Six-three-nine, 644, 649, 654 we shall return.
Six-six-zero, let's see, I believe ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The whole program?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six-five-nine Animal Management Program -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I'd like to ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I deleted the expansion. I have a revision. You've heard Director give
her testimony and comments how she feels about the Chair's proposal, their financial
situation, and then also still yet in the County Code there is a component under
Animal Pound Keepers. So that's already still in the Code as an option of how to deal
also with animal management. And there's an existing chapter in the Code that that's
another way this Committee could consider if it chooses because on Lanai it's an
animal pound keeper through the Department of Police, that's how we fund animal
management for Lanai. Molokai had something like that in the previous years also at
one time.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: They still have it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: He's just basically the ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, again, we do have the Humane Society component but I just wanted to
know that in the books we are still authorized to consider another way to approach
animal management if we choose to. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah I think it may be appropriate to add them the list for
consideration for a percentage increase and then on the Animal Enforcement Program
we did fund, she was correct that we did fund 150,000 of the enforcement budget out
of the Animal Management Fund. And I'm not sure there's enough left to guarantee
that amount to be used again so we may have to...but I think it would be fair to add
back that 150,000 either from the fund or from General Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 660 we'll revisit. Let's see, 665 the Chair has deleted the expansion.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 10,609 moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Six-six-nine I'd like to revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 669 we shall revisit. Thank you. Six-seven-three I've made an
adjustment. I've deleted the expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the one Mr. White was ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White just brought up so we're going to come back to this one too.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. That's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So 673 revisit. Okay, the Chair made no adjustments to 679 Spay/Neuter
Program. Is there consensus -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or do you want to revisit this with all the other animal components?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay, we'll move 100,000 forward. Okay, Liquor Department the
Chair made no adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Moving 1.1--wait first hold on, I'm missing my total. Well I'm
assuming since A, B, C is the same it's going to be 2,048,808 for Liquor Control
Program. That's the 1,615,426 then the 6,000. Is my math correct, Michele? Okay,
Staff says I'm correct in my math. Thank God for my main fifth grade teacher. Okay,
consensus 2,048,808 Liquor Control Program. We'll leave alone overhead until at the
end and see how Mr. Baz can recommend with Staff on whatever appropriate
adjustments. So we have consensus on this line. Okay, 23 Department of
Management. For me the CIP thing is an experiment that has failed so I am
recommending the following disbursements after hearing departmental needs.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I want to revisit 696 and 697.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll just revisit the 694.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Whole thing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm sorry, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Liquor Management Program.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Alright.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's fine, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 706 we're not going to take it up until we hit Public Works 'cause
they've transferred this program area. Same with 710. Seven-one-four we'll take it up
under the Public Works component. Seven-one-eight I believe under County Facilities
your Chair has made an addition of 15,000 to further increase requirements of visual
security which is cameras and appropriate equipment to move this request from
201,000 to 216,000. Do we have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to move, this is on Page 24, Members, top of the page
moving 216,000 forward. Seven-two-two ITS Program. You've heard Mr. Verkerke give
his comments to the Chair's proposal. Overall he's okay. He has some concerns of
some of the reductions of the expansions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair, I'd like to -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --revisit 726 and 727.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 726, 727, not a problem. Any other areas, Members?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So do we have consensus on the other two?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus on 724, 725?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Techie says consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall return for 726, 727. Thank you, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are we consensus with 22 and 23?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two-two is going to change depending upon the -- 86 -
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --determination of 726 and 727.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Alright.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we will be returning to that specific components. Under GIS your
Chair has basically supported the request. Is there consensus for 410,947?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll move that forward.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, before you go into Office of the Mayor -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I know in my proposal and I saw in a couple other proposals
that we're considering some sort of Office of Agriculture. So would I add that here and
now or you want to wait till pass two?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Get ready to submit it for round two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So, I want to do that around line 734 then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not a problem, Mr. Couch, because we are going to anticipate all of your
considerations for the 2 percent component anyway. You know what we're doing such
good things but I need a break and I want Staff to be able to have their small breaks
too 'cause we tend to forget about their needs. So ten minutes okay you folks, is ten
minutes okay for you folks? Yvette? Okay, we'll return at 3:05. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:56 p.m.
3:11 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members, Page 24 Office of the Mayor. The Chair has
made some recommendations regarding A and Bs in the Office of the Mayor. I've
reduced it from 1.454 million to 1.292 million. So it's about a 160,000 adjustment.
Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, line 436 [sic]. Akaku no changes. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just ask the Members if you have an objection I would like to add
a component in the Committee Report regarding review of the fee schedule of how
minimal charges for broadcast -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, the Akaku contract?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --time and fees.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Absolutely.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would like maybe a comment in the Committee Report to give some
direction to Council Services on areas that we think can have some improvement in
the agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Absolutely.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any objection to that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No objection.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, we'll make ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It wouldn't be on this line though, Mr. Chair, it's back in
Council Services.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It will be in the Committee Report -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that the Committee finds da, da, da, and that we would request, you
know, our agency to have a discussion regarding the issue of the minimal -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --rate versus minimum hours of it covers and those kind of things. I mean
we had an earlier discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I'm sure you folks are aware of it. Okay, let's see the next one is ...
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Seven-four-seven.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let's see, yeah, I'm trying to figure out, okay, 747 I've deleted under 5,000
Status of Women.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I was once on this commission so I hate to have them
just go away. As I understand this is monies that normally State funds them and now
they got cut from them, it's one of those things, so now they're asking us. But isn't
this one of our own boards and commissions via this County? Why is it that we've not
paid our own commission?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, any comments you can share?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So the activities...we're not paying commission members
or this actually doesn't even cover the travel for those commission members, yeah,
that's covered under the Mayor's Admin Program. But this $5,000 was utilized, yes, it
was State monies that we received before but it was utilized for the benefit of providing
some activities throughout the year. Women's History Month, the outstanding women,
you know, award kind of activities that they would do throughout the year if I
remember correctly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, and they still do the...what is that, the little booklet
handout they compiled all the women services? They did... so these are a lot of women
outreach programs or whatever.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don't know think they still have that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I don't think they've done that recently but, you know, they've done some
other activities.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don't know what else they do.
MR. BAZ: They had about four or five different annual activities that they provided.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, well, okay. Consensus then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, do we have consensus on that?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We'll move...we'll make that adjustment. Thank you.
Okay, Budget Program requested is 487,941, Chair is recommending 487,941. Do we
have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm sorry where was that again, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Line 754, Members, this is regarding the Budget Program. If you have
questions Mr. Baz is here to respond.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Baz needs a raise.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Okay, thank you. No, I can say Mr. Baz and his people are
worth every penny.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't know, Chair, this is still above what...it's not flat. It's
an increase to himself.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think there was only some adjustments as it regards to ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: B account and A account -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, equity in the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --both have increases.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the salaries and wages I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Mr. Baz was very...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But well deserved, I consensus here so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Mr. Baz always thinks his things well through. Okay, Economic
Development Program line 756 I made some adjustments regarding premium pay, pay
adjustments ops and equipment. So the overall request is from 1.2999 million [sic] to
$1,235,075. Do we have consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit line 760 please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven-six-zero, okay.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And consensus on the others?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fine with me.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have consensus on 59, 61, 62, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll revisit that line Mr. Couch brought up, 760, we shall be
returning to that. Okay. Grants and disbursements for Ag promotion ...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: A revisit on 768.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven-six-eight, yes, I made a reduction in this program. You want to
revisit that, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall revisit 768. Okay, 771 the Chair is recommending for this
new State request not at this time. Do we have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Reluctant.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Maui County Farm Bureau I made a slight reduction from 330 to
320. We have consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we moving 320 forward. Maui Nui Botanical Gardens I reduced a
small amount and I'm recommending a flat 150,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving 150,000 forward. Let's see, Molokai Community, not
community, Molokai Livestock Cooperative I made just slight adjustments. I started
rounding off requests so $10,000 is the recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm okay with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You're okay. Thank you, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 10,000 moving forward. CTAHR your Chair has recommended ...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're happy to return, 787 to return. Upcountry 4-H the Chair is
recommending the same as the request 35,000. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Grants and disbursements for Business Development Technology. This is
where you have the business research library. The Chair is recommending no change
from the request, 72,100. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Moving forward 72,100. East Maui Cultural/Economic Development what
I've done was consolidate. So under the heading of Cultural/Economic Development
we are not deleting Hana Arts and Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. We are planning to fold this
into one component East Maui Cultural/Economic Development and we have
increased this fund to take...to be able to include by proviso Hana Arts and
Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. Okay, any concerns, Mr. Carroll? Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: We're good with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus except for didn't we like three or four years ago pull
`em out and separate them and now we're putting 'em back? Any reason for the ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I, you know, one I would like...I want to look at these parts to have a little
bit more flexibility to adjust to what I call a unique time for us. Again, Members, if I
recall correctly during this current budget year this Committee was asked to consider
52 amendments. I believe 12 of 52 related to A, B, C transfers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So far.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The majority was requests that was not even part of last year's budget
discussions and deliberations. This was brand new proposals to your Committee that
the Administration figured was important enough to submit in advance of this
process. And so I recognize again in my earlier comments to you the other day with
the fluid impacts of HC&S, Makena, Lanai, even what we pass next month I anticipate
a lot of amendments because there's a lot of fluid parameters out there regarding the
community. So I would rather have people like Mr. Carroll, I'm setting up one for
Lanai, Ms. Crivello has one component, Mr. White I think has another one, to allow
those districts to have some flexibility in how to address cultural and economic
development projects. But they have to stay within the parameters and limitations of
the pot. So, if Mr. Carroll says, you know what, something else came up I'm going to
adjust my pot. I'm going to do this to Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. I'm going to do this to
Hana Arts. I'm still below my ceiling. Hey I would like him to have that flexibility. I
would like to have that flexibility for Lanai knowing that I might have another major
layoff soon, potential layoff. So I just...I'm approaching it that way so I'm sharing my
comments that that's how I would like to have flexibility for some of the districts and
that's how I am proposing in that manner, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's fine. So is that more like a minimum of 20,000
and a minimum of 90,000?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Those are what I understand the community and Mr. Carroll has
recommended. So I did not adjust those numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I've taken those numbers and I've included it into his East Maui now
cultural/economic component.
MR. BAZ: And, Mr. Chair, we'll interpret -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
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MR. BAZ: --yeah, we'll interpret that to mean specifically that the 20,000 set aside for
Hana Arts, 90,000 set aside for Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike but that doesn't limit them should
Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike come in and need 95,000 you could use 5,000 from the other set,
yeah. If the language said provided that no more than -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --if that language is in there then but as it is right now, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So, Mr. Carroll will have flexibility. Ms. Crivello will have flexibility
for her pot for Molokai projects. And that was my intent to give some flexibility.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, do we have consensus for East Maui -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --210,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So the word proviso and provided, there is a difference in
definition?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proviso is the subject of...the language that you see "provide" that is a
proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we won't get trapped on semantics. I know what you folks want -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's, just, you know, too much Planning Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and we will make sure that we structure the language through a proviso
to take care your needs.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, very good. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Friend of Old Maui High School, go Sabers, 65,000 is the request,
the Chair made no adjustments. Do we have consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Old Maui High School, isn't there another...I thought they
wrote a letter saying they don't need this because there's a new group coming in
Program or something from OED that's going to now be housed in this Old Maui High
School and stuff. No?
CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding there is a third party if I could use that term,
Ms. Cochran, but I haven't seen specific proposals for me to be able to be confident to
not place this in the Budget at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, I thought...okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. Hold on, guys. So anything else, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I just thought there was letter from this entity stating
they were very in support of this new entity looking to come in, whatever, and then ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then my understanding also in my Committee they were going to
come and meet with us individually. I've yet to have a meeting or a discussion or a
phone call or a fax regarding this from that entity. So I can tell you I really don't know
what they're thinking 'cause I have not...no communications.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, it looks like other people have comments, Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my recollection is he felt this would be the last year he needs to
request the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --the funding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that clarification. Thank you. Mr. Baz, anything else you'd
like to add, sir?
MR. BAZ: No. Chair White remembered that correctly. That was what I going to say, this
from my understanding is going to be the last year of their request, but they do need
this additional year before Council agrees to the lease and the other agency takes over.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And it's my understanding he said...he did that at a testimony I
think Upcountry but also it's a reduction from last year. I believe it was 100 and some
last year. So even more so is a reduction on there though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comment. Okay, so we are moving 65,000 forward,
Members. Haiku-Makawao-Paia Economic Development Cultural Program, similarly
like Mr. Carroll's District I've kind of did some consolidation and proposed a slight
increase. Do we have consensus -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on 175? Okay, we'll move 175 forward. Okay, Hana Arts you know
where we transferred that. Page 27 Ka Ipu Kukui the request is the same. The Chair
is not making any adjustments. Do we have consensus 25,750?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving that forward. Lanai Economic Development Cultural
Programs, Members, I'm increasing this. I'm asking you to please consider 200,000.
Part of this is also the ability of the CDC or Community Development Corporation to
start pushing by my request more entrepreneurial opportunities as well as looking for
appropriate land to be able to provide our business entrepreneurs an opportunity
besides the one landowner to secure a site to do such entrepreneurial opportunities.
So I'm going to ask you for your support for Lanai for 200,000 under Economic
Development and Cultural Programs. Any objections? Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to move 200,000 forward. Made in Maui the Chair has
made no adjustments, 100,000 is the recommendation. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight-thirty-one Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike we've already done, taken care of that
through the East Maui expansion for that fund.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we've taken care of that. MEDB I made a reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 835 revisit. Eight-thirty-nine added a proviso. This cannot just be
for Maui High School. Okay, this either is going to have to be expanded or people like
me are not continue to support it just for one school. I need to have it be an
opportunity for our other youth in other schools too. Lanai could use it. If
Ms. Crivello says Molokai could use it. If Hana says we could then we need to
consider that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Prior or I think last fiscal year I proviso'd 10,000 specifically
for all Molokai schools whether it's elementary, high, or middle for their robotics
science STEM travels. And we've used all of that this past fiscal year so I wanted to
add 15,000 and I know it's specifically for Molokai and it's not part of this 45,000
though. Is that something that we would take out from there? Because we've just
about used all of the 10,000 'cause we've sent our robotics team to Kentucky also for
the world champions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What I would request of you, Ms. Crivello, is for the second round if -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --your staff can assist you please write it up tell us how much more you
would like to see in this pot. If you have language for a specific proviso we are happy
to work with you to make sure that it addresses what you want to address. And then
second we'll see how we can...if you have ideas we welcome it and if not for all the
Members I will do my part to see how we can find the money for it. Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, correct me if I'm wrong. I think this is the
automotive program.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: At Maui High.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's the Maui High Automotive Program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we're doing robotics out of that one or out of the other Maui
Economic Development?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what I'm going to double check and make sure that we get the
right fund to take care Ms. Crivello's request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, I totally support Ms. Crivello's request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so again -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's just I don't know ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that's why for round two is when we'll take it up -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --because this might not be the area that needs to be adjusted.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Alright, thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so we'll move on and come back to 4...not 4, 839. Microenterprise
Program I made a reduction and gave it a flat 250. Revisit? Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I will in this case channel Ms. Baisa. I would imagine she
would want to revisit this at this time so by proxy I will ask.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, I have no problem if we can give them their opportunity that's fine.
Molokai Economic Development and Cultural Programs you will see that the Chair
didn't really increase this one. I took it in balance with it wasn't from Ms. Crivello
directly but we did a lot of what I would call unanticipated budget amendments for her
district that we weren't planning. So, in my balancing of what all the districts got and,
or didn't get I made this adjustment for this year. We supported Ms. Crivello's need
for a new pumper for Pukoo and whatnot. So for me it was just trying to balance the
districts in how we spreaded [sic] out our resources. This in no means for me again
next year my intention was to adjust this amount to match other district pots. But
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that's my rationale of why I've kept it at this level 'cause I believe we have supported
big requests that Molokai needs and we have approved. Any consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit, no, no. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good one, Ms. Crivello. I appreciate your support on this one. Thank you
very much.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Wait I not done yet though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I appreciate your candor. We got to enjoy this, it's not the easiest but
something we need to do. Okay, Page 28 Small Business Promotion the Chair is
supporting the request of $100,000. Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don't know if what I would like to...and I guess I would
come back in round two. I would like to have, you know, there's never been a study to
determine some kind of economic alternative for Molokai, a direct contract to do some
sort of conceptual business plan. I've had conversations, I've had conversations, I've
had conversations. And I'm not sure if it comes under here as promotion or
something to the effect. I don't think it would be appropriate for it to be a grant but
maybe like a contract because the contract you would have specifics what needs to be
the outcome as opposed to the grant. So ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is one of my concerns with Planning Department for Lanai
Community Plan update, Ms. Crivello, so I'm not sure if the Department or a
department did a financial assessment to help revise the Molokai Community Plan
update with business opportunities. You know if they thought about some ideas and
they made an assessment to be able to present to the community that this ...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But I'm looking more community based instead of somebody
up here telling the community what you need to look at.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Looking at something from -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --the community themselves in the
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, yeah. Do you have a sense of the type of amount of resources you
would like to consider?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Forty, Just about 40.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Forty thousand? _Okay, again round two write it up and then -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, will do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we'll work with...Michele, put that down for Molokai, 40,000 to consider
for a business assessment I guess we would call it, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I think so, yeah, for now. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, business assessment for the island of Molokai. And then under 851
I'll currently, I'll mark it down as a revisit if this is the right place and if not we'll
recommend where we would ask you to consider, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, sure. Eight-five-five Tri-Isle they asked us for the $8,000, that's
fine, I have my issues with the entity. Okay, revisit. Eight-five-nine grants and
disbursements, line 860 is Cultural and Arts Program, I made a slight reduction from
85 to 70. If you notice I am putting the focus back into the districts more in allowing
districts to have more of a say of what they would like to see in cultural and arts and
get the input from community up instead of from the County down to the community.
I would like it to be from the community to the County. So this is my proposal,
Members. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine. Festivals of Aloha I made a revision, Members. I've talked to a
few holding...nonprofit entities. They would prefer to start the biennium cycle in the
new term and some of the comments was fund to allow them to finish this year and be
able to have some overlap to not impede the next year and then allow the next Council
to make those biennium decisions since it will be within that Council sitting term. So
that's how I've approached it. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, as you're well aware one of my Staff person is the
Ms. Aloha Festivals.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, she does a good job.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, the request was that we could remove the proviso as far
as the equal amounts because they have HTA and by the time the OED comes out
they cannot get so specifics as for each island, and they determine that on how much
they've expended with HTA money. And then the entity or that conduit that they use
is to, utilize to draw down the funds is problematic to begin with for them to utilize
their expenditures. So it can...I guess the word equal is what, you know, what they
see not necessary though it can be allocated for Maui, Hana, and Molokai and Lanai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you've heard Ms. Crivello's comments.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, no reduction, just not equal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I can you, yeah, I think we, you know, I appreciate those comments. I
think people who are actually doing the work to make sure this grant meets the
Council's objectives, I'm open to helping them be able to get it done easier than more
difficulty. But I will also tell you that to get this past Council when I think it was even
just at 20,000 or whatever was all about each component having the same amount of
money. That's the only way it passed Council originally.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Each district had to have the same amount or there wasn't support to
provide the money. But I hear your comments because now it's an operational issue
as it regards to other funding sources and its impact on our money. So I understand
that part too, Ms. Crivello. So I would say maybe for round two -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --let's work on a specific consideration -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Alright.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and let's kind of narrow it down to the parameters so that we
can...whatever, I'm open to adjusting, make sure that we can hit the mark and take
care the districts.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But, yeah, very happy to revisit this 864.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Film Industry no adjustments. Consensus on 125,000?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Lahaina Boat Day let's see.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, do we have consensus 25,750?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maui Arts and Cultural Center?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Capital?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Eight-five-five [sic]?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Maui Community Theater, reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Recommending 53,045. Consensus or revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maui Film Festival -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --25,000. Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 25,000 moving forward. Sister City Foundation I made a reduction
in half to 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit. Let's see, Grants, Renewable Energy 75,000 no
revisions. Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving 75,000 forward. Let's see, Grants and disbursements under
Aquaculture/Marine Resource Development the Chair has zeroed out the 40,000 to 0.
Consensus? Revisit?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Environmental Protection I made an adjustment reduction down to
1 million from 1.4.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maui Soil/Water Conservation no adjustments 139. Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving 139 forward. Twenty-two thousand for Lanai and Molokai
no revisions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Coqui Frog 300,000 is an add from your Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, revisit just to make sure it's ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: For this, did you...the negative 400,000 on line 911 was that
kind of a move over or that was straight out of the 400 minus--we're going to revisit
that one but the minus 400,000 have any ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I just looked at the overall what we giving to Watershed
Development CIP projects that are being proposed and again for me was trying to
whittle it down to an expense total that I thought was fair to present to the tax base.
So I made choices in my draft to present to you and that's how I've made my
adjustments for your consideration this afternoon. And this is part of the discussion
the Chair had anticipated for guidance in how to move forward in these areas. That's
why it's...and again for some again I made it drastic enough 'cause I wanted you to
pay attention to that and see how you want to move forward, maintain funding,
increase funding, reduce funding, eliminate program 'cause my thing is we don't have
the money for everything.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, and I appreciate how you, you know, been trying to
balance all this. And so I guess we're going to revisit but it's also the little fire ants so
to have a heading that just only states for coqui itself I think it needs to be...I know
they're really honing in but the little fire ants too are a fight. And it's really funny
`cause like you said you got to I guess go where the most, you know, intense. Back in
the day it was axis deer, right, nobody even talks about those guys anymore. I'm sure
they're growing as we speak but hey that's not really the high priority today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You can eat an axis deer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You know yeah, no, I agree but anyways. Okay, thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for those questions and comments, Members, your Chair is
pleased that this is the kind of discussion and questions we're having. It's going to
make us have a better decision on the final budget. Okay, so coqui frog I guess you
guys wanted to revisit, okay, so we'll revisit that. Visitor Industry I've...after listening
to your comments and testimony, changes in the general County economic drivers, I'm
going to recommend and support the $4.2 million request.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus. Does that include the AOHT?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The 4.2 includes the ...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It doesn't include it.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, does the consensus include the Academy of Hospitality & Tourism?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That's separate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, yeah, I didn't do that. I didn't make any changes. You guys -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --consensus on 10,000?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, on 931 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I have, at some time I want to enter a proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Round two we'll be happy to consider that, Mr. Couch, so if you can help
give us guidance with some proposed language. Nine-thirty-five ED initiatives I made
a slight adjustment down. Again you know where I put the money in the districts so I
made a slight adjustment for the Countywide to 150. Do we have consensus? Revisit
150?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Parks and Recs under Admin General I have reduced equipment-by
24,000. The Chair's amended number is $1,744,867 for Administration Parks and
Recs. Do we have consensus or revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That was consensus wasn't it?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Chair, taking it as consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Grant to Lahaina Restoration Foundation 178,828.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I guess this will be, if this is willing to be discussed I
wanted to add in like a line item grant here for LRF in regards to the Lahaina Harbor
improvements.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I've been...I'd like to ask if it would be appropriate as a park
assessment funding project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I am open to the request. In my opinion it's something we should
consider and we'll forward that to Corporation Counsel and we'll request for a fast
turnaround.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, are you willing to give a verbal comment at this time or would
you care to review the request and respond in writing?
MR. UEOKA: I would prefer to review that one in writing and respond. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine, Mr. Ueoka, you know, I gave you the option but if you were
ready to give us a verbal comment we were, would be happy to receive it. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I appreciate that consideration, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we'll forward the question 'cause that's a good thing to know
whether we can or cannot.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I believe it's County lands. It is improving the area, sort of a
parky [sic] bench shading for when, you know, the ferry services, our visitors and
locals alike get, you know, you're protected from the elements while waiting to be
transported.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: People with activities they're going to board boats at the
harbor area for and stuff, so.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate your comments because for me the key component is what is
the district community's or the public's benefit, that is more important than the visitor
component for me to use your assessment money. What is your district's benefit
`cause it's generated for your district benefit first, then general public benefit second is
how your Chair views this pot of money. So if we can tie it in so that your district has
a benefit on the General Plan I'm with you in considering this for actual use for this
project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good. We'll await response.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's what well ask... await Mr. Ueoka's response too.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you for that opportunity, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for the question. Okay, grant for Workline, the Chair made
a reduction of 43,600 and I am recommending 117,000 at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Can we revisit?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, revisit. Parks Program the request is $6.265 million I made an
adjustment in ops and equipment; 180 reduction in ops, 116 in equipment. I'm
recommending to move one position from Management back to Parks to assist with
CIP requirements, so that's an add. And the adjusted program for Parks goes to
$6,035,210.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit 958, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And 957 and 956.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Rec and Support Services I've reduced premium pay. I've moved a
Clerk III that is a vacancy to Fire and Public Safety to take care their request. I
reduced operations and equipment. So their request of $21,453,161 is now pared
down to $20,722,210. Do we have consensus or revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, revisit 964, 965, and 966.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Waiehu Golf Course I reduced some of their equipment
requests so their request from 2,155 million goes to $2,117 million.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're moving $2,117,035 forward. Okay, we're going to skip
contributions to retirement system, health benefits, OPEB, Debt Service, Overhead.
So go to Page 33 Department of Personnel Services.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I made a small adjustment to premium and operations so their request
from 1.590 million it goes down to 1.579 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah,
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving forward $1,579,802. Department of Planning under Admin
and Planning Program General I've deleted the expansion positions, reduced premium,
ops, and equipment so their request goes from 5.678 million to $4,963 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, revisit 1006 and 1008, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ten-zero-six, 1008, okay, we shall revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So we have consensus on the other two?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As far as I'm concerned.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we have it on seven and nine?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Under No. 2 Admin Culture Resource Management no
adjustments, 25,000. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving it forward. University of Hawaii Maui Sea Grant I didn't cut
this one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Very good. Very good, sir. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Damn I getting soft.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Soft.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well it's

so I guess I need to ask you.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Revisit -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --88,975?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus. I know to your dismay on this one but let me
just add in that unfortunately a lot of my shoreline is overtaking condos and things of
that nature -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that we've all been hearing about and this...these funds
have really helped assist via Tara Owens, Jim Buika of sorts in this Planning
Department to come to the community and really assist public beach access issues
and concerns and what have you. So it does go to some good use, I just wanted to
reiterate and hopefully ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I understand the beach erosion issue, Ms. Cochran, I just wish
DLNR and other State agencies that have a little bit more jurisdiction and authority -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: True.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --than us would take a more responsible approach to this issue. So again
I understand what you're saying 'cause I agree it's important, I just wish those
appropriate governmental agencies would take their responsibilities to heart.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I concur with your sentiments in all those aspects
throughout this entire document so thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair, and I appreciate your comments and
certainly the not changing it. But I do know that the State does contribute quite a bit
to this as well so it's not just us. So I know as far as other shoreline erosion stuff, yes,
they need to be... step up a little bit more but for this position I believe they step up
pretty good. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You're talking about just the position?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well, you guys made the call so it's moving forward. MRA the Chair
reviewed the request, I'm balancing out with the projects but I'm still going to
-recommend a reduction of $100,000. My recommendation is 83,500. Do you have
consensus or would you like to revisit this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Channeling Mr. Victorino I will revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Boy that channel came wide.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just 'cause the public should know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Looking at last year's amount was 250,000. Did you figure
in that they didn't maybe utilize all that funding and to reasons why you didn't feel
they needed all of the ask for this year or?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know I thought they had pretty good focus at the beginning and then
now I see it coming pretty much from a focus to a more generalized visioning. And I'm
trying to get their attention that part of my... how I look at that is the ability to get
projects done and projects built. I'm tired of hearing about it, talking about it.
Municipal parking lot structure as I understand has been a discussion from the '60s,
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okay, expansion of the MRA including by Iao School and Happy Valley has been part
of a County campus consideration of an expansion from the '60s. That's when the
Council or at the time of Board of Supervisor, then the Council looked at creating the
Redevelopment Agency which was authorized by State statute. It's a super agency
which under State statute with powers and I mean it is a super agency if you read the
statute, super agency. My thing is they need to start doing the job or we need to
decide down the road if they don't serve us with a beneficial purpose then as created
by Council I would say Council needs to consider whether we should abolish it and
place it under some other entity to get the job done. But that's how I'm looking at it is
if they're not serving their need then let's evaluate it. If they're obstructing it well
abolish them and create an entity that works for us. So that's how I'm approaching
this. I'm tired with status quo.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you for your comments, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Eighty-three-five revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, revisit. First Friday Wailuku the Chair is recommending the
proposed amount. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll move that amount 25,000. We'll go a little while before we take
another break, Members, unless you folks have an urgent need to break now. Okay,
having not being requested, we're going move to Police. Admin again, Members, please
also take in account that we did have the Chief give us some comments this morning
during testimony so I would ask that you take his comments in your consideration.
Admin Program the Chair has made some adjustments in premium and ops moving
the original request from 5.146 million to 5.022 million. Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, at this time we'll move $5,022,012 for Admin. Under Investigative
Services the request is $10.925 million, your Chair made a slight adjustment to
premium and ops whereby now your Chair is recommending $10,900,351.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under Uniform Patrol Services Program their request is $30,308,149. In
my proposal again, Members, take into account what the Chief shared with you I have
deleted the Sergeant's expansion, expansion for the Assistant, reduced premium pay,
ops and equipment whereby your Chair's proposal to you at this time for Uniform
Patrol Services is 29,255,144. Consensus? Revisit?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit equipment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 1047. Anything else, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I think Mr. White mentioned something this morning about
that Sergeant position. Is it...it's still there but ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Sergeant position that was I believe if your Chair recalls right is for
the Hana District. It was something the Lanai station had to deal with especially on
weekends when the Lieutenant or the Commander is offsite. But how we've
approached this is looking at their vacancies, looking at their fund balances, we are
recommending that funding for the expansion request be deleted but we are leaving
the E/P expansion in the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because we believe they can fund it through their savings -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and their vacancies. But they will be given...the E/P number will be
increased, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. I'm okay with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Members, besides 1047 is there other areas of revisit? If not
the Chair will take that as consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The other four?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The other four, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we will return for 47, line 47.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to move everything else forward. The E/P for the
Sergeant goes forward. The E/P for Office Assistant goes forward. The reduction of
premium pay goes forward and ops goes forward. Okay. Technical Support Services
the Department had requested of us $9.465 million, your Chair has...is recommending
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deletion of the Major and Facilities Managers expansions, a reduction of premium, ops
and equipment. Where the net request for this section Technical Support goes to
9,136,129. Is there consensus or ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit 1052, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, which number please?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One-zero-five-two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 52 revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus on the other three.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall revisit 52. Thank you. Page 35, Members, Department of
Prosecuting Attorney you Chair under Admin is going to support Mr. Kim's request,
836,656. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, moving that forward under Admin. General prosecution
I did make an 'adjustment for the expansion position of another Deputy. Like the
Police we are placing the E/P count into the Division's program but deleting the funds,
again looking upon fund balances, vacancies your Chair believes they can fund it
under the current appropriation and...but will support their position expansion. Do
we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five million three eight five, one six eight? Okay, we'll move that number
forward. Let's hit Public Works. Admin your Chair made no adjustments to
Mr. Goode's request. Do we have consensus for 564,571 under Admin General?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under Engineering General Fund request is 4.329 million your Chair is
not recommending expansion for Civil Engineer III and I've reduced operations and
equipment for expansion. So the Chair's revised number for you today is $4,129,566.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit 1078 and 1079.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 1078 and 1079 we shall return. Special Maintenance Fund ...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And 1080 too.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ten...needs to go with them right, 1080?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven-eight, 1080? Okay, we can come back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's 500 bucks.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, but it's tied to the expansion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine, we can return.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, you know I wasn't in support so that's up to those
guys.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Special Maintenance General Fund the request
is $3.711 million. I've adjusted and reduced premium pay slightly, I've deleted the
workstation for the expansion. I've added a grant for Maui County Veterans. I've
added the grant for West Maui County Veterans and I've added a grant for Molokai
Veterans. Your Chair's new revised request under Special Maintenance has gone up
to $3,735,606.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit 1087, 88, and 89, please.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I agree.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 1087, 1088, 1089.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus on 85 and 86...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We get consensus on the rest. Okay, that's fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm not sure if this is where it would go but I really want to
add in a slope mower for Lahaina District. Is that...would that be in this area -CHAIR HOKAMA: That's as it regards to the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --under the C Account?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --dams and whatnot?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. It's a slope mower ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because there's a slope mower for Public Works and there's a slope mower
for Parks.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is for Public Works -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Public works.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Public's, got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Dam.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --needs one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The dam mower.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And it's all for DLNR, you know, to be in compliance and
things of that nature so it's really a needed item and it's 100 grand so I'm going to
have to figure out where I'm going to squeeze that out of but is this the area I would
notate it for to insert?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, wasn't that in CIP? I think that was the equipment
CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, it's nowhere.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Depends. I not sure how we made the adjustments 'cause I tried to reduce
the equipment bond -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --with cash when it was smart. Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, I think on Page 37 line No. 1133 might be the appropriate
place to put it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, from the Highway Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's Highway Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It is equipment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyway, why don't we talk about it when we hit that and then the Chair
and the Staff can if need be recommend where we would redirect it to. But we'll have
that conversation at that point, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Under 1133.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I'll make a note here and we'll try and figure something
out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let's see Page 36, Members, DSA General Fund request is
2.421 million I made a slight adjustment on premium pay. I'm recommending for you
$2,401,773. Do we have consensus? Revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to move forward 2.401 million. Highways
Administration Highway Fund General the request was 594,252 out of the Highway
Fund. I've deleted the expansion for the Clerk III. I made some deletions in ops for
expansion position as well as equipment for the expansion position. The revised
request from your Chair is 562,392 for Highway Admin General Highway Fund. Do we
have consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, Members, I know you're aware I'm just going to tell you that
we need to be cognizant that the Highway Fund... demands on the Highway Fund is
intense this year, and it is not a fund that has a lot of revenue in. So I just share that
so keep that in mind because there's a lot of pressure on this one fund. Yes,
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, the operations deletion, do you happen to know what
district that's from or was slated to be? 'Cause I'm just wondering if it's, well, it
doesn't say heavy equipment, it just says operations, oh, for the Clerk.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is for the Clerk III position, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay, okay. 'Cause no sense I buy an equipment and no
more anybody to run it, right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I just wanted to make sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so the equipment one is all as it relates for the expansion for the
Clerk.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Clerk expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, we're going to bypass the contributions again till we get to
detailed numbers. So Page 37.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The Bikeway Fund, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Pardon me?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On 1118.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, thank you, Mr. Couch. Thank you. Okay, contribution to Bikeway
Fund I've made a reduction of 150,000 so my revised number is 87,913 from the
237,913, Members. Again this is as it regards to how much money we actually have to
allocate to funds within this Special Fund component. And second I've made
adjustments on how I'm proposing to fund the Greenway Projects. So you'll see in the
documents as we go through it the Waipuilani Greenway Project Funds I've placed as
my recommendation to you and the West Maui Greenway Project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But what about other Countywide potential?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of, you know, actually part of what I'm looking forward to is how we're
going to deal with some of the Budget amendments this Friday because of the
shortfalls in those funds. And again with the handout we gave you this morning from
Mr. Baz you already know that under Highway Beautification Abandoned Vehicles
which is also from Highway Fund, Special Funds we're a million dollars short. So we
have our challenges on how we're going to provide through this fund for the... so I've
made my adjustments taking into account those challenges for us, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair. Can I just revisit it just in case we
have ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, in case we have -CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --potential.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall revisit.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not a problem. Okay, we're going to skip the contributions, we'll go down
to--oh, Ms. Cochran, we at 1133.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Regarding the slope mower on Page 17-35 of the Budget Details -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --there's a slope mower for Lahaina. I'm not sure if that's the same one
that Ms. Cochran is referring to but it's funded at $100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's the one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, the Department requested that that be increased to $200,000 to
get an adequate slope mower for what their needs are, so that's why she's asking for
an additional 100.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I know this is... she brought this up so you know what why don't we
revisit since she's not present, the Chair's happy to allow her to participate and then
we'll make her aware that I guess for this equipment they're only halfway there. So
Also, under 1133 besides
somebody, she or others got to find $100,000.
Ms. Cochran's comment, issue with the slope mower, I've made adjustments. So
you're going to see 250 restored. I moved some of the equipment from bond to cash
that I thought was pertinent or that the fund could pay for. So I made the adjustment
on the tractor trailer, the semi-truck tractor so you see my 250 there whereby...you
know what, instead of talking about my recommendation we're going to return anyway
since Ms. Cochran's not here. But anyway that's part of my adjustments for this area
is movement of the tractor trailer 250,000 in ops and then we'll come back for the
slope mower consideration, 1133 revisit. I would ask for a consensus on line 1142
under Traffic Management Program Highway Fund -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --1,507,077. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Garage Services no adjustments. Consensus $1,263,960 Highway Fund?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Department of Transportation Admin General Fund the Chair is going to
at this time take their recommendation so there's no adjustment. Consensus
$1,652,103 Admin?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I know, Mr. Couch, you're going to give me savings in a few years,
right, from the MPO?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Human Services Transportation the Chair made his adjustments
from the original $7.8 million request. I've adjusted bus replacement, MEO
Transportation Transit Center, my new request amount to you is $6.344 million.
Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit 1158, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And you know what I'm sure Ms. Baisa would have potential
concerns on this one too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: In this, all three of 'em.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can return, not a problem, Mr. Couch. Air Ambulance my
request is flat. Consensus 672,215?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Admin Program Highway Fund I made some adjustments from the Admin
Program regarding some savings for the MPO matching requirements. So the request
is...wait now, this total ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, the total's way off.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what we're going to, Members, let the Chair and the Staff kind
of double check these numbers. We'll return to 1165.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just out of curiosity you wanted to reduce the MPO related
matching fund? I thought if we had 100,000 we were going to get 400 from the ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No that's why I want to make the, you know, I want to revisit the figures
so it's accurate what we present to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not comfortable with what we showing so -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I want to make sure, double check it with Staff and then come back to
your folks.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so we'll return on that Admin Highway Fund request on 1165,
Members, we're going to return there. Public Transit Program Highway Fund the
request is 10.825 million. I've made adjustments on the reductions with public
transit, fixed route, paratransit, commuter. I'm recommending $10,305,500 Highway
Fund Public Transit Program.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus on all?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'd like to revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, which one?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: All of it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Department of Water Supply Admin Water Fund General request is
9.909 million, I've adjusted premium pay, adjusted water meter inventory, and made a
reduction in operations. My proposal to you is $9,596,882 Water Fund. Do we have
consensus or revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm okay with it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The only one that I have for reconsideration is 1221, the
reduction for the West Maui Watershed Protection.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we're not there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. I jumped the gun, sorry.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We're on 1180 through 82.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, if not I'm going to move $9,596 million forward.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Grant for Auwahi Forest Restoration I made a reduction from 37 to 30.
Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran? I mean, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're on Auwahi? Auwahi, yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Auwahi is -CHAIR HOKAMA: Thirty-eight, Page 38.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --by where the windmills are. Auwahi windmills, Kahikinui
area up there. So did you, let me see, so you only reduced a few of these, yes?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And these guys came to branch off of what I think Leeward
Haleakala Watershed Partnership.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I forgot which one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So they had created their own heading so, Chair, if I can
revisit any of the reductions you've done on the watersheds, please.
- 121 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, not a problem, not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus on the rest?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, just any reductions ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So revisit 1193 and revisit 1221.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So all the others yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so everything else on 39 except for East Maui and West Maui you
folks have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This also includes, Members, 250,000 for Miconia. Consensus 250
line 1215?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twelve-one-five? Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 250 Miconia moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I apologize I need to ask if you can go back to Department of
Transportation Page 37 line 1148.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One-one -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Four-eight.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --48.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Department of Transportation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm not sure if this is the proper place to request but I would
like to request an audit for all of Transportation -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --for the Department. Transportation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have a sense of you want the Council to consider it? Would you
like the County Auditor to consider it? Do you have a preference or specific entity that
you would like to have to do the audit?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don't know about funding so and I guess with the County
Auditor I don't know if they will reply. So I guess at this time we'll go with the
Council.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Auditor we can just request consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But the Auditor will make up his own mind whether he wants to or not.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. At this sense I would prefer to just go see how the
Committee ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: To just do it with a Council audit -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --consideration. Okay, we'll help you and deal with that on round two.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 40, Members, we're going to leave 1225 alone for now depending on
our balances at the end of the process. We are going to leave Debt Service under
Water Fund alone at this time. We're not going to touch employee benefits to General
Fund at this time. Insurance I don't want to touch at this time. Let's see, OPEB,
administrative, no. Twelve-fifty, Members, the request is and I have the same amount,
I have not revised it, mainline expenses the request is $500,000. Do we have
consensus or a need to revisit this request?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Water Ops Water Fund the request is 34,526,964. I have made a
reduction in premium and made a reduction in ops. I've reduced some equipment.
I've placed two Engineers from the MD's Department to Water where they came from
originally and whereby then the revised request is 33,611,842 Water Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, revisit 1260, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twelve-six-zero, okay, can do. Do we have consensus on the others?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let me take you to...back to operating departments. Let me take
you please, Members, to Page 11 line 309.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Sorry, which one?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 11 line 309. This is Admin Maintenance Program Department of Fire
and Public Safety, the request is 3.138 million. I've made reductions to expansion
positions, reduced premium pay, reduced ops and equipment whereby my
recommendation to you this afternoon is for Administration Maintenance Program
Department of Fire $2,619,455. Do we have consensus or revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I'd like to speak in support of your position. The Department
was given an Accreditation Manager a number of years ago and that responsibility was
switched to some other purpose at that time. Since 2013 the Admin E/Ps have
increased by 43 percent and I think it's, you know, this is another big request but
they've gotten from 2013 to now they've had I believe they increased from 14 to 20
positions. So I think it's important for us to hold off on any further expansion at this
time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So I support your position.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit 311.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you want to revisit all of it?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Three-eleven.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, can do.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, consensus on the others?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the Chair is going to move forward the adjustment in premium, ops
and equipment and we shall return to 311. Training Program 1.801 million I've
adjusted premium, ops and equipment. So their adjusted request from your Chair is
$1,193,916.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Any comment on the, I noticed in your reduction sheet that you
reduced the turnouts and I -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --recall the Chief testifying that last year we were going to do
50 percent and this year we were going to do 50 percent. Any reason why we're going
to cut that? It looks like your cutting it in half, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding when we were talking about this either Friday or
Saturday late at night if I recall correctly, Mr. Couch, the bids that came in came in
much lower than budgeted.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, for last year's?
CHAIR HOKAMA: If I recall correctly for the turnouts. And so for us we thought that then
they would use the same and buy more at the discounted price and that way we can
reduce this year's request. Because our understanding is they got a good proposal
that was under the budget and that's why we made those adjustments. Anything else,
Michele, that I may have missed? I thought that was the main reasons that they got
great bids and they were able to purchase more than they anticipated with the monies
we gave them and that's why we made the adjustment. So if they didn't buy...and
here it is. Thank you. I tell you our Staff is always -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Crack staff, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on the ball. The winning vendor came in about $400 lower than the
previous vendor. So we had a savings from about 2,000 per cost per turnout to 1,600.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that's 20 percent -CHAIR HOKAMA: Savings.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --savings.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And this is by the bids submitted to Purchasing Office.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: I believe in Fiscal '16 we budgeted $2,700 per turnout and I think in this
bid award that they did it was about 1,600 per turnout. So that's what we used to
base our estimate on.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They had like $1,000 savings per turnout from the current request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I'm just concerned as to why the Chief would come up
and testify for them then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, part of my concern is why have a Fiscal Officer if you cannot make
these adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not happy with this Department's numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we are on ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just...I just want to make sure that we're not, you know, I
guess certain things have an expiration date of sorts and to be on top of codes or
things need to be switched out like bulletproof vests only last so long and things of
that nature. So these turnouts that they wear is there like a timeline of sorts on that
so they are needed to be, you know, switched out and given new equipment in order
to ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I know they have a rotation schedule regarding just like Police with their
Kevlar shield jackets and whatnot there's a replacement schedule to ensure that it
performs to expectations. So then for Fire with the tanks, the air tanks and whatnot
there is a premium time for those equipments. But if you need we can request the
Department to give us their useful life expectancy and whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, and, yeah, I just hate to, you know, not give them
something that, I don't want them out there that's not going to be nonflammable
anymore or, you know, no fresh air in their tanks or whatever, you know whatever the
example may be.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Right, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that's my only fear.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and that's a fair concern, Ms. Cochran, and I would assume all
Members share that same issue. Anything else, Members? If not, consensus or revisit
$1,193,196 training program?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll move this forward at this time and if need be we can make the
adjustments. Fire Rescue Ops they have requested $30.576 million. I have deleted 2
vacant battalion chiefs, expansions for 3 firefighters, reduced premium pay, reduced
ops. I reduced the ops for expansion positions. I moved pumper truck from the
equipment bond to cash, and I reduced general equipment by 484 whereby your
Chair's revised number now for Fire Rescue Operations Program is $28,237,581. And
then your Chair has based his recommendations on departmental reports regarding
call outs of various components whether it be HAZMAT, whether it was for tanker,
whether it was only for EMS, and that is how I arrived at making this reductions and
recommendations to you at this time. Any request for revisit or do we have
consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I'm comfortable with your adjustments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, what I will then ask of you is let's move this forward at this
time. Friday, this Friday you will be asked, we're going have a Committee meeting, to
take into account the Department's budget amendment that they've asked Mr. Baz to
forward for the remaining four weeks of this fiscal year. And that may help you with
this request because it's going to be interesting how they put themselves in a corner.
So that would be your Chair's recommendation, let's move this forward and then
Friday after you hear the Department and the Administration give their comments on
their budget amendment proposal I'm happy to have you return here and see if there's
adjustments you might, you wish to make. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I see this is actually the amounts are expansions from
last year even with the cuts -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I'm seeing. So have you...whatever is going to occur on
Friday that type of numbers were they put into this adjustment of sorts? Was that
considered?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well part of it is...I hope what will come out on Friday is you will see how
the Department budgets and how they utilize what we provide them to do other things.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Interesting.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So and that's part of, you know, they're going to need to come and explain
and then justify why they need this additional multimillion dollars. So that's what
we're going to do, Members, we'll move forward at this time 28,237,581 and then we'll
be happy to review additional. Okay, so we moving that forward. Fire Prevention
Program the request has been $1.155 million. The Chair has made adjustments in the
expansions for Fire Fighter III, adjustment in premium, ops and equipment. My
recommended number to you under Fire Prevention is 922,853. Is there consensus or
a need to revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to move Fire Prevention forward 922,853. Ocean Safety
Program, as I gave you comment earlier my issue is not with our employees. I have an
issue with the overall increase of the contract and then currently now our adjusted
number on financial impact of this proposal is 36 percent increase. Take in account
what the Department responds to as well as the Makena component. So impact from
this one contract for this particular program with our employees, I'm not talking about
State employees, is 36 percent increase. Therefore in reviewing the Department's
request this is how I am recommending if you continue to shift to Fire at this time I
am recommending deletion of expansion, adjustment of premium. I'm looking at
transferring a vacant Clerk's position from Parks to Fire to give them the
administrative support that has been previously mentioned by the various Chiefs.
Made an adjustment to their operation and equipment whereby I am asking you to
consider 3,232,557 for the Ocean Safety Program. This is one approach, Members.
The other thing if you wish to consider, I've thought about it a little, I was having a
headache so I stopped but we still can take care...this doesn't, wouldn't impact
Bargaining Unit Agreement 14. But another way to look at is still move forward, do
our responsible legal reviews and decisions on their contract, and if need be I'm open
to delaying the transfer for another year from Parks to Fire. If that is the best option
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for this Council to consider, but like I said I was getting a mean headache thinking of
this option. But I just present that that is another way to look at it. Don't feel you
folks are locked into one or the other. As a Legislative body you have choices. So I
just bring that up as another way you may want to view this request. I'm not saying
that's how we should. I'm just saying it is another way you can look at the request.
What I'm providing you is various opportunities and different perspectives you can
consider. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and I thank you for those comments. If
they were to stay in Parks would they still be in Bargaining Unit 14?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So regardless, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, that doesn't change, that is by State law.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair, I have some questions probably, it's probably
going to be...have to be with the Battalion Chief or the Chief on this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Some comments were made in testimony, several testimonies
and unfortunately I think we're going to have to wake Mr. Ueoka up here, this may be
something that would have be done in executive session as well. For some of the
comments that were made I would like clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, maybe during the recess we can have a conversation with
Mr. Ueoka to see what is the appropriate venue to have discussions. If it requires
executive session then we can...upon request I can make a ruling on that request with
guidance from Corporation Counsel. Happy to do that, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know on the issue on the transfer of Ocean Safety to Fire,
I thought the trigger was when the Chief...the Chief's timing was...it was dependent on
whether it was reasonable for the Chief. So I didn't know whether we had that
authorization to kind of avoid that. So can we have that ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Obviously yeah, I mean, you know, one of the factors we're concerned
about in past years was the ability of Fire and the Chief to have that transition done
smoothly so that it wasn't a major distraction or disadvantage. And that was part of
the...and also at that time there was no Bargaining Unit 14 structured and negotiated.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So there was no uncertainty upon impact of finances, conditions of
contract environment. Again what we brought up in our first review of the contract
proposal was the continued liability this County faces regarding the use of medical
marijuana and involvement of vehicles and equipment in performance of duty. And for
many of us I would assume it is not only an issue of liability and concern for the
potential victim but as well as we need to be also concerned about the impact on our
employee doing the, providing the service under those influences. So I would say our
concern is multiple for the employee as well as the potential person receiving the
service from Ocean Safety. Mr. Ueoka, you know what, Mr. Ueoka, hold on one
second. I'd like to ask Ms. Crivello if she has a question.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not so much a question, oh, well, maybe. You mentioned
legal reviews would that be part of our executive session should you decide to have
that? Or in regards because then too the Charter does say, you know, that the
Fire Chief makes the move but I think we...I would appreciate us having some
discussion regarding the legal reviews that you have mentioned, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's very fair, Ms. Crivello. I would ask Mr. Ueoka if has anything he
wishes to give comment or general advice at this time in open session.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. My understanding is from the Charter is yeah the
Department of Fire and Public Safety provides a timetable for the transition. I believe
something was transmitted years ago. I'm not overly familiar with the document and I
guess that's all I can offer at this time, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you. Yeah, so this must be a coordinated thing. I
mean obviously the Councilors need to be comfortable because we'll provide the
funding, that's within our authority. So again I just share different ways of how we
might want to resolve any outstanding issues for this program area. Okay, again, it is
just your Chair's comment on different ways to look at it. I'm not picking which way
we should look at it. Okay, with that, I would, you know what, I think we need to
return.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There should be more discussion. So we shall revisit 343. And with that I
believe we have completed all departments review of Ops. So we're going to take a
break before we hit CIP and that way I would like to give Mr. Victorino and Ms. Baisa a
chance to catch up with the rest of us where we are. Give them a status and then
hopefully they may have some interesting status news for us too. So we'll take this
break. This is not your dinner break. Okay, this is just a short recess so that we can
plan for the rest of the evening we want to spend together as we finish round one.
Okay, so we'll be in recess for 10 minutes till 5:05. . . . (gavel). . .
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:57 p.m.
5:12 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members, before we start the Chair would just like to
give you some comments. The rest of the evening I would like us to, we are going to
start now, we are going to take a dinner break and then it's your Chair's intention to
finish round one this evening which means we will complete a review of CIP. Again
we'll do it like Ops. If there's a need to revisit just say revisit. No need to explain, we'll
come back for round two. We have consensus we move forward. Okay. So that's how
we've been operating. Now that we have all Members back channeling is not required,
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They're all here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They're all here. And so I leave it to you, Members, if you have a concern
and whatnot just say revisit, that is sufficient. Okay. So, Page 42 CIP Department of
Environmental Management Sanitation Countywide, Solid Waste Fund 1274
Countywide Landfill PV/Wind Turbine Lighting no revisions by t he Chair. Do we have
consensus or revisit 250,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're moving 250,000 forward on line 1276. Next line 1278
Environmental Compliance System Design and Construction, I believe my...I reduced
it in half. For me, you know, Members, I have a hard time until we know what they
want to do and design it to give 'em the additional monies. So this is staying alive.
We're going to ask them for more specifics out of the 250 we give them so we can
assess the future funding with better information. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I recall you adding something into the ops with this same compliance
heading. Was this a move or a deletion?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that reminder. Ms. Yoshimura, can you give me some
ginkgo biloba reminder?
MR. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, so the project that was moved is on line 1293, 1292-1293.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that reminder. Okay, Members, I'm recommending for you
to keep this area.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair, I support your recommendation. So consensus
on my behalf.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay, consensus, Members? We're going to move forward
250,000.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Under Sewer, Sewer Fund Countywide Compliance no changes to
the request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus 500,000?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. And this is again Sewer Fund. Countywide EPA Consent
Decree Wastewater Projects 1.6 million, the Chair is...no changes, 1.6 million,
Members? Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Countywide Permit Compliance. This is where I made the...I moved this
from...I took out the 150,000, moved it to Wastewater Operations B. If you remember,
this was part of the comments we've asked Mr. Nakagawa he had between
maintenance versus CIP. He said he'll leave it to us and our decision where to put it.
The key was he still needed the money to do the project. And so I viewed it more as an
operational expense under R&M and so I placed the money in category B in
Wastewater Operations. So you will see a zero here but it has been placed in another
operational account. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Countywide Satellite Recycled Water Facilities 200,000, no change. Do we
have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Countywide Wastewater System Modifications, after reviewing all the
projects and the requests I am recommending a reduction in half and so I'm asking
you at this time to consider for Countywide Modifications which means that's where
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they go for those overruns in the bids and whatnot. I didn't want to put too big a
number. I understand for small adjustments and whatnot I'm happy to support the
Department but if it's large then I think they should give us comment whether or not it
was part of the original bid process that came in whatever, 50 percent or higher than
the budget. Whether unanticipated change orders because of Federal law or revisions,
whatever I prefer they come back and explain and get the big chunks of money. This
allows them to move forward with those what I would call reasonable adjustments in
project costs. And so I'm recommending to you $500,000 for consideration.
Consensus? Revisit?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: State Revolving Loan Fund Countywide Wastewater Reclamation
Chlorination System upgrade, I am supporting the Administration's request
$2 million. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hana Community ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair? Sorry, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Before we move on going back to the Countywide
Wastewater Modifications.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just trying to decipher Mr. Nakagawa's...this morning's -CHAIR HOKAMA: Comments?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --yeah, comments and hopefully that...what he's looking
to...for us to reconsider isn't part of this. And anyways I just didn't want to miss that
opportunity to have that discussion and also hopefully this isn't going to bear any
negativity upon current litigation in progress and things, you know, as in actions we
need to take and things.
CHAIR HOKAMA: In your Chair's review, Ms. Cochran, and take in account some of those
factors that we deal with in either your Committee, Mr. Guzman's Committee or
Mr. Victorino's Committee, I've thought of those factors but I still feel that that half a
million request is responsible enough. And as we have shown during this fiscal year
when need be within in four weeks from upon receipt by Committee we've already sent
it to Council for action. So I don't consider that we take unreasonable time to give
departments a response as well as the funding if appropriate. So I don't have an issue
presenting it to you in this manner, Ms. Cochran. I can see if, you know, the
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department said wow took you guys four months or whatever. No we do this in weeks,
departmental requests. So I don't have a problem with putting this...just this type of
money at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you, Chair, and, you know, I appreciate that that
you're open to assisting budget amendments and what have you. So I'm very...I'm
confidant, yeah, I'm comfortable with this recommendation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again we work with Mr. Baz and so Mr. Baz keeps us...we have good
communications with Mr. Baz and his Office. Whenever possible he does give us a
heads-up in anticipation so we can start looking at the schedule to actually post an
agenda for those requests. So again I just can tell you how Mr. Baz and I have worked
together during this fiscal year and we've pumped out the work, we've pumped out the
work.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anything else, Members? If not, may I please direct you to
line 1311, oh, 12, excuse me, under Hana Community Plan this is State Revolving
Loan Fund monies. We have the Hana Landfill, Makai Berm Project, the request is
and the Chair is recommending $2 million for this project. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, $2 million moving forward. Kihei-Makena District Sewer,
Sewer Fund Kenolio Road/Koki Place Sewer Rehab request to the Committee is
50,000, the Chair is recommending 50,000. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Kihei Wastewater Reclamation Facility RTU upgrades the request is and
the Chair is recommending $1.5 million for this project. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving 1.5 million forward. North Kihei Mauka Transmission
System, at this time the Chair is recommending that this be considered for the next
fiscal consideration, year consideration. At this point in time I am recommending that
we delete this project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit. Okay, let's see, under SRF State page...line 1332
Kulanihakoi Street Recycled Water Line Extension, and again, Members, the Chair
also looked at the request for the money if there was Federal funds, when was the
anticipated Federal funds being anticipated. Is this is the one that was slated for
2021? 'Cause I'm recommending to defer this project for the upcoming year, 1.7.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: No this project we're waiting on Public Works to coordinate a Public
Works' project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, that's right this is the comments we got from Mr. Goode, Mr. Couch,
on this project. We got request by them for this consideration and so they're telling us
they're not ready. I mean I don't know if that's an accurate -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Why Mr. Goode?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --accurate term but I know we got comments from Director Goode.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Kulanihakoi is the street that they're...is one of the ones that
they're anticipating repaving and that's why you would have talked to Mr. Goode on it
but I believe they were going to coordinate with Mr. Goode so they can do it at ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that the one they reroute...the road wasn't following the street?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's the one they had to go divert.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. Kulanihakoi goes straight down.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's the gulch by the golf course, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is the one next, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The big Kulanihakoi -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --gulch. Okay. You know what, let's revisit this and -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we'll re-verify comments from Public Works, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, revisit 1332. Thirteen-thirty-six South Maui Recycled System
Expansion I am recommending deletion so there must be something with the funding.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: These two were the ones that Mr. Nakagawa asked that we
reconsider.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And it seemed like when they presented 'em they were ready to
go on those.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and so I'm checking to see what was the factors that make me
recommend this for the Committee.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I believe you discussed with me this, just the level of borrowing that we were
doing and this was one of the items that we were looking at.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that reminder, that's right. One of the factors your Chair
looks at is the cash to debt ratio and the changes in GASB requirements for future
bookings and my concern about not presenting a negative on our ratio as it regards to
the obligations and debt versus the cash. That's something Mr. Baz and I we think
about as we prepare for borrowing and we already had comments already how GASB's
new requirements is going to impact our position on the P&L sheets for us. So you
know what, I want to go get, make sure I get my points accurate so we're going to
revisit this, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 1336 revisit. But I know that was one of the factors, Mr. Couch, the
overall borrowing for this Budget year's request. Molokai District.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, let's see, that's 1343, yeah 160,000 for an assessment. Okay, well
move that forward. Wailuku-Kahului District, under the Bond Fund the Chair is
supporting the request for Central Maui Landfill Phase V Gas Collection 2.5 million.
Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Wailuku-Kahului Solid Waste Fund Central Maui Landfill SCADA 80,000,
Chair is recommending 80,000. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Wailuku-Kahului Leachate Collection and Recovery Electrical Distribution
System upgrades the Chair is recommending the request 80,000. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sewer, Sewer Fund Wailuku-Kahului District. The Central Maui Regional
project for Waikapu, I think this is for the potential expansion was it, Michele? The
Chair is going to recommend deletion at this time. While I can appreciate the
preplanning for this area, one of my concerns was I didn't want through a budget
adjust, a budget entry that in any ways makes a comment or commit potential
position on actual land use applications that will be needed to come forward for
certain things to happen in that area. So I don't want to assume zoning is. given. I
don't want to assume that certain things is going to be already determined by our
actions and for me this can wait. It's something I don't have a problem from a
planning perspective but I'm not ready to go beyond planning perspective. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and I can appreciate the comments and
probably say yeah it is a little too early but keep in mind we do have a General Plan
that we all voted on and that is right there in the center.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and you know what, I've taken that into account too, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I do not dismiss what potential impacts the Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --may impact this specific project also.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because that now is a more focused review by community members of this
district. And so I don't want them to think we've already predetermined that zoning is
going to be given for certain things.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would like the community to know and say that's not our vision. This is
our vision for that area. And so I don't mind the planning. Like I said I'm happy to
give planning money but I'm not ready to go beyond that at this point in time.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's my comments on that request, Members, so that's my
recommendation for you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And being from my Committee this
item, I'm in support of your recommendation at this time. I feel like as much as I,
yeah, I want to fund all reclaimed wastewater projects, this one in particular I believe
can wait like you just explained. So thank you, Chair, my vote is consensus on this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, you know before everybody talks for my district.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. You know I thank everybody for, you know,
saying what they did. I will go with your recommendations only because I know the
developers of this area, one of the main request I'm making from them is a joint
wastewater treatment plant for the development in this area. We're going to put in
something like almost 3,000 homes and units in that area. They need to be kicking in
too. And so this was part of the design plan but I agree with.you we don't want be out
front and make them think we're going to do it or that we're okaying what they're
doing. So I can work with this and I can agree with it for now and whoever my
successor is next year hopefully the plan will be in place to start moving on it. So
thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for your comments. Okay, thank you for that, Members.
Wailuku-Kahului EPA Sewer Rehab the request is 1 million, your Chair is
recommending 1 million. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. State Revolving Fund Kahului-Wailuku, this is the facility solids
renovation $1 million, your Chair is recommending 1 million. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that. Okay, why don't we do our break?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We was on a roll there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I know but again ...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You guys are just getting started.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, just when I figured out where we at.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what...I'm happy to keep working and do this but if you guys
want the break.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Break.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Break.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I rather do it now then later. So, okay, we do the break 'cause, you know,
all of you are very important but unless the Staff can keep up with us they need their
breaks too. So well return at 6:35. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

5:34 p.m.
6:39 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, let's get back to work, Members. We are in the first
round. We are currently reviewing CIP requests. We're on Page 45. May I direct you
to the West Maui District line 1381, Lahaina Refuse Office 250,000 is the request, the
Chair is recommending 250,000. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, West Maui Sewer Fund Lahaina Wastewater Reclamation Facility
The Chair...the request is 150, Chair is
upgrade for direct potable reuse.
recommending the same amount. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is for, sorry, this is for what study? Design? This is
for...I'm in favor I guess it's -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --going to be a lot educating the community, but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which Staff had the wastewater?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 'Cause I just recall them briefly discussing this but not so
much, I mean we never spoke about it in my Committee or so -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I believe...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I was just wondering what stage they are in reference to
this item.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe this was the initial requirements to do the assessment and
planning. Is that correct? Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, Ms. Cochran, can I just get back to you in a couple of minutes so I
can take a look.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, yeah, no problem. I consensus this but I think this is in
reference to well I hate to put this way but toilet-to-tap concept.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is going to be a joint project between Water Department and
Environmental Management. So it's the wastewater component division and then I
believe it's directed up to the Mahinahina Treatment Plant site and then they're going
to take the R-1, R-0 reblend it, retreat it one more time before consideration of
potential potable considerations.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah, this is just the initial funding -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --request for the planning component.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll ask, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the request is for an assessment and ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, yeah. Alright that's fine. We need to look at all
options, Chair, thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. So once we get the assessment done then we'll be able to
make a better decision which way to go. Okay, Napili No. 3 Force Main Replacement
200,000 the Chair has recommended this but before I ask you for your consensus or
revisit please note and I have asked Ms. Cochran to consider Mr. Nakagawa did put in
some comment regarding Napili Force Main 4 request. So, Ms. Cochran, as our
district Member from that area we would ask for some of your thoughts.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much, Chair. And, yeah, I'd like to, I guess
we would need to revisit, I would like to see both put in. As Mr. Nakagawa mentioned
in his morning testimony what Napili Force Main is, it's in a reliability project, very,
very old system really in dire need of upgrade. And, you know, we could be put at risk
at some spillage and what have you, some environmental negative effects. So, I know
we discussed one or the other but it almost seems like both need to be accomplished
at this time. So if need be I'll have to try and suss out where there's some funds in
order to accommodate that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And thank you for that. Your Chair was trying to balance the request,
one, because if you look at the next page I'm also recommending full funding for five
and six. So part of it is can they really do all of these projects in a 12-month period.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I know we authorize it for 18 but as far as your construction and whatnot
your Chair tends to look more in a 12-month cycle than 18. Funding is 18, I
understand that but, you know, I'm looking at can you do it in one year before you
come back to us for the next consideration of the following year's monies. And so that
was one of the factors I took into consideration, Ms. Cochran, the ability to perform as
well as, I mean we can give 'em all the money and if they don't perform we going be
frustrated.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just like with the Water Department's budget over the last 14 years. If
you look at the amount of money Council has given them we've given them a lot of
money and we have the historic stuff from 2004 I believe. It's the ability to spend and
do the project is one of the issues with us, not the appropriations, the actual
construction. So I just bring that up that, you know, Mr. Nakagawa has performed
and I would ask if you would talk to him -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --if they can do all of the things they're asking because if they can't I
would rather we give them what they can and then plan for next year's request and
make sure they get the monies to do those projects accordingly. But I wait for your
comments on those.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. And so I'll make sure that I get in touch
with Mr. Nakagawa as soon as possible to see 'cause I did notice there's... all of these
are slated for design monies -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and then in a couple years slated for their construction
funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Construction, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So can some of these be kind of done, you know, in different
phases, what have you. So let me speak to the Department -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and see if there's ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what I would ask for the Members, you've already pretty much given us
the consensus on line 1393, Members, I would ask that we give Ms. Cochran some
time. So I would like to revisit 1395 and revisit 1399. Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Cochran, we appreciate your help on this.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yours too, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, West Maui District line 1404 Lahaina Wastewater Reclamation
Facility Modification Stage lA 12.5 million is the request. I am recommending
12.5 million.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The next one the request is 1 million, the Chair is going to recommend the
1 million for the Wastewater Pump Station Modifications near Kaanapali Sheraton. It
is not the Sheraton's project. This is our project. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, Department of Finance Countywide line 1416.
The DMVL upgrade satellite, I believe this is the...what Mr. Vila had mentioned earlier
for South Maui. Request 137,200, the Chair recommending same. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under other projects, Members, we have the Bond Fund Countywide
equipment, the request was 6.25 million. We have made adjustments whereby we are
now down to 2.880 million; 3.370, we did some deletions from Department of Public
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Works Fire and Public Safety that's on the list. We can give you a revised list of what's
on the equipment component now. Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For the Department of Fire and Public Safety the
Wailea ladder was removed, in fact both projects were removed. The pumper truck for
Kahului station was moved to the Department. In Department of Public Works, the
first item, the truck tractor was moved to the Department and the two vacuum
sweepers were deleted. On the Environmental Management another 28-cubic-yard
automated refuse is being added. One of the rear loaders is being deleted, and giving
you a total of 2,880...2,880,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, consensus or revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 1423 well return. Fourteen-twenty-six Launiupoko land
acquisition, I've added this here, Members, $2.273 million. Your Chair is going to be
recommending that this be on the bond with no authorization.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Does that mean that it will have a proviso saying it's not
authorized or is that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no we don't put provisos, you know, Mr. Baz knows exactly what the
Committee recommends to Council. If this moves forward as is, anyone that wishes to
have access to this Mr. Baz will immediately say until authorized by Council this
money doesn't truly exist.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Members -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I'd like to revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to be clear on this, your Chair understands some of the legal
components regarding this. We already know the Department lapsed the money
initially so part of this is again showing good faith placing it in the Budget. I'm
requesting that we withhold authorization. Part of it is through the Committee Report
I will be requesting if you agree, Members, that the Administration will talk to
representatives or the landowners and see if they are open to a discussion, one, to
keep the money they currently have received from the County, two, by mutual
agreement with the County cancel the terms of the continued purchasing of this
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37 acres, three, they retain ownership of this property, and then four, it will still
remain as in the Community Plan as an open space scenic view plane. It's just the
only difference is we will not be owning it and we won't have the liability of it. So
that's your Chair's intention that it be covered as a request in a report to Admin to
have a discussion with the ownership and if the ownership is agreeable great and if
not well we move forward under our legal obligations. But I thought it was important
enough to allow Administration an opportunity to have a discussion and see if this is
something by mutual agreement we both can come to terms with. That's all I'm
asking for this project is a request to the Admin. Questions, concerns?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, so I'm trying to figure out consensus or revisit because
I'm... `cause this is kind of tying up some funds out of Bond Fund and I have two
pieces of equipment that was deleted that I would really, really like to put back in
through this fund which this $2.2 mil-plus would definitely cover the two pieces of
equipment West Maui needs. So I really don't want to consensus on this because
things can change, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, not a problem, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not a problem. Again I'm just giving you some rationale why I'm
recommending this approach, that's all. Again, the Committee will make the final call.
And so, if you want to revisit, happy to. If you have some considerations you want us
to consider regarding other use such as potential equipment considerations, if you can
help write it up for us so we can make sure that if it is moving forward that we get the
right numbers so we can do the right amount of Debt Service and projections out for
the financing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so 1426 is a revisit, that's fine. Department of Fire and Public
Safety under 1434 they requested under Countywide Fire Facilities was very general
and generic and again as I have stated earlier in the process to all departments that if
they wanted certain considerations they needed to give us better verbiage, better
narratives, a clearer picture of what they expect out of the fund and to be able to
communicate that to this Committee so it's not just we need this money and when we
say for what purpose they go general. Well, what does general purpose mean? I have
no clue. But since it's under CIP the Chair expects a little bit more detailed
descriptions and explanations to support the request. So those that didn't comply the
Chair did not give them consideration and that's why you see deletions for it. So at
- 144 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

this time that's my recommendation for Countywide Fire 300,000. If they come back
with a special proposal, a specific project or come up with better language to justify
the request the Chair is happy to reconsider the request.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Again, I'm sorry that we could not be here this morning so we
didn't listen to all the testimony. Nobody talked about this, tried to explain what it
was about?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, the Chief was more concerned about vacancies and he didn't really
talk about -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This particular thing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --CIP in general. He was more concerned about his operational,
operational adjustments that I've proposed. That was his more major concern this
morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and then to be fair he did have some of his employees talk about the
Ocean Safety component.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But not about CIP in general.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Bond Fund Countywide ...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry. Wasn't this the one where they wanted to repaint the
Kahului Fire Station?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me double check. Does this...they put in that request for the fire
station? Okay, yeah. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So this wasn't ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is for the Kahului one, right, the paint job for Kahului?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Michele?
MR. YOSHIMURA: The Kahului Fire Station monies was in their operations budget for
200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is CIP. Yeah, okay. Okay, Members, on the Bond Fund Countywide
Fuel Tank Replacements, I'm not going to recommend consideration of the $105,000
at this time. So that is my proposal to you. Consensus? Revisit?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: These are those...the really bad one we saw, at least that one
we saw in the picture.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Pukoo is the one that they've asked for us to consider, well, that's the one
they're just trying to justify the painter because the firefighters can maintain the tank
but they cannot paint the tank.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I know that was... don't get me started on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's what we were told. I'm not here to argue or, you know, I'm just
saying that was what we were told that they can maintain the tank but they cannot
paint the tank.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They cannot ask the firefighters to 'cause it was a
bargaining...yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And the Chief believes he has some restrictions by collective bargaining
agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know, I depend on the Chief to be able to understand the
parameters he needs to work under those agreements.
- 146 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I recall him mentioning that they haven't been able to keep
up, upkeep the maintenance because of the collective bargaining thing but I believe
the actual requirement was to replace this particular fuel tank. So, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that, Ms. Crivello. Okay, what you guys want to do?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That one looked in pretty bad shape. Was that 105 just for one
tank?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That's one tank.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Yes, Ms. Crivello?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I say let 'em drive to Kaunakakai.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I would like for us to revisit for the purpose of can they
clean it up or, you know, whatever it takes, I mean.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, sure we can revisit, not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not to replace necessarily, but.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But what is interesting is my document says fuel tank and on
his letter it says fuel tanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting. Yeah, I understand.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair, there was originally two tanks. I cut 'ern down to one so that's
why.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, that's right. Thank you for reminding me. So, Members, that's right,
how they remember everything at 10:00, midnight, and whatnot continues to
amaze...this is part of what we considered in this request, Members. Currently and
this from the...our CIP status report as of December 31st, under Countywide Fire
Facilities they currently have $300,000. They have encumbrances of 63,453 and at
that point in time at the end of December there was $236,500 left in the fund. When
asked about the projects they told us they still continue to work on the scope of work.
Under fuel tank replacements they currently have $100,000. Their response to us
about still having $100,000 balance still available, they said they still need to work on
- 147 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

specifications. So that is why your Chair zeroed it out because they have all this
money there currently and they're not using it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So consensus then.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Lanai Community Plan I got one big request, $10,000
for the Lanai station improvements.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit. That's what Mr. White told me to say so I listen to
my leader.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, this is about their assessment to see whether or not they need
additional land acquisition.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah, thank you for $10,000. Okay, Wailuku-Kahului under Bond
Fund. This is the Kahului Fire Station Apparatus Shelter 440. See I am
recommending deletion so there must be an answer to that one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we can revisit, not a problem, Mr. Victorino. And again well get our
notes all ...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura, please?
MS. YOSHIMURA: I believe this is the one that we were going to check into the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I cannot hear you.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --Waikapu Fire facility to see if they had additional space there for the
trucks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, that's right. Thank you. The current...what is that the 100-acre site?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, the one in Waikapu.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, the Waikapu facility.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, they have the facility there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There are storage facilities -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and bays there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding Fire has three or four bays I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Four bays if I'm not mistaken, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But they have multiple bays which they utilize to store equipment and
whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Victorino, you seem to be very well informed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I was not convinced with all the facilities we have there. Police is
using that, Fire is using that for various equipments and whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, both Police and Fire, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, I wasn't sold that they really needed this project at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I'd like to call the Chief back in and discuss this
because I was under the understanding that it was really necessary because right now
the apparatus has been sitting out in the sun and weather. And it takes wear and
tear, as you well know in Lanai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, yeah. No, I am ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, I would like to get confirmation and if there is space,
you know, I'd be willing to go out there with the Chief and go look at the bays because
it's right out here -CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to confirm that. But I'd like to hear from the Chief so I'd
like to revisit that, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, can do, Mr. V.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We shall revisit 1453. Okay, not a problem. Okay, Housing and Human
Concerns line 1461.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 40,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If you need a visual just look at our parking lot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department of Management under Bond Fund I've made an adjustment to
the Public Safety Radio System Replacement, I believe we've had written comments
from Mr. Pacheco and others. So your Chair has made revisions with advice coming
from Department so I'm recommending $4.550 million for this project. Do we have
consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I seem to recall and maybe I got the number wrong but I
thought he said it was 1.5 that they didn't need in case we need, you know, some of
that can go to Ms. Cochran's trucks.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, if you would look at Department of Police Communication dated
April 22, 2016 from Chief Faaumu. When you look at his components about the
system you will find in his summary projections he talks about public safety, this is
on Page 3 of his response, the Public Safety Radio System Replacement Project for
2017 request should be reduced from 1,910,000 to 750,000 in the other category. The
remaining $1.16 million along with the 2018 request of 1.675 million should be moved
to 2019 for now and a better estimate for construction be presented during that year's
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budget deliberations. So your Chair is taking direction from Chief Faaumu in his
written response, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan Area Bond Fund,
New County Service Center. I have reviewed this request. I've deleted this request.
It's an interesting project, Members, because I can tell you many of the employees who
work in the Service Center really don't prefer that site if you really talk to them. So it's
kind of interesting what people, some of us may think what the employees want. Well,
I went and asked employees what they would prefer and I can tell you I am sticking to
Wailuku and the municipal parking lot project for potential additional space for
service for the County departments. But that's my recommendation, Members, at this
point in time. I'm going to recommend that we cut 200,000 from this project at this
time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we revisit, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, of course we can. Of course we can, Mr. Couch. Wailuku
Baseyards 800,000. I wasn't ready to...reviewing the project I wasn't convinced we
need to do it this year. I think additional input on something more clear, more defined
that we can get a grasp on how to measure the money to present it. I think the
Committee should wait till we get better information to base financial decisions on. So
that is my recommendation at this time for that project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Mr. Chair, I know what you're saying and I've looked
over what they have tentatively put out and I agree consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Wailuku Town Surface and Satellite Parking. Members,
I wasn't ready to give 'em all that money until they give us a plan on...and tell us what
our expectation should be for this project. So I'm leaving them planning money to
get...to keep the project alive and get the ball rolling. But again until they're able to
give us some kind of assessment I wasn't ready to commit another 1.45 million at this
point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit, happy to. Thank you. We shall return.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department of Parks and Recreation under Countywide, okay, I can tell
you Staff and I worked really long on this one 'cause it's interesting how it was
submitted to us but under Countywide Park Playground Improvements the request is
800,000. We have reviewed it, the components of it and therefore your Chair is
recommending 800,000 for this request. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Under Countywide Parks ADA Improvements your Chair is
supporting the request for 300,000. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I don't recall all the projects that they have scheduled for that but I
would like to put a proviso and possibly some additional funding for the upgrades to
the Haiku Community Center and I will check on the Paia Community Center. But it
was pointed out by Mr. Carroll that the Haiku ADA bathroom upgrades were proviso'd
in previous budgets and it's never been done. So I think we need to get that
accomplished.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. I also ...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'd just like to revisit in case we need ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we shall revisit 1496 and so, Mr. White, if you can maybe give us
something specific for round two that we can -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --consider. And again I trust Mr. Carroll if he told me that they...`cause I
recall I thought we gave money or something for ADA requirements for that facility, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We did.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know, so yeah, when Mr. Carroll brought up to Mr. White I said
gosh I thought we were in compliance already but we can revisit and double check.
Okay, and we'll look at that because the 300,000 that has been put forward to us,
50,000 is for a Rapid Response Reserve Fund which I have yet to be fully comfortable
with. One-hundred-twenty-five thousand for design and construction for an
accessible route through facility phase II, and 125,000 for the construction of an
accessible route to an accessible picnic area. That is how they justifying the 300,000
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request for ADA Countywide. So I'm happy to revisit and consider Mr. White's request
to take care--was it Paia or Haiku?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It was Haiku and I believe Mr. Carroll said Paia as well but we'll check
on the status of both.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We'll put it down as part of the revisit. Okay, thank
you. Line 1501 Countywide Park Playground Improvements 750,000. I've reduced
this by 550,000 to 200,000, looking at all of the requests we made adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit, please.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit, please. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall come back.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: This is countywide.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, no, not a problem, not a problem. Countywide toilets.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Mr. Chair, you know, they all jumping on
consensus but, you know, when I was at...and Ms. Baisa was with me when we were
at Senator English's Office about biodegradable toilets. And, you know, now that
DLNR is starting to use them they may be a real alternative to spending so much
money on such lavished ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Compostable toilets.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and, you know, they showed us some of the overall
results and some of the new methodology that's being used and it's very, very
intriguing. I'd like to revisit this because I'd like the Parks and Recreation to get me
some more information on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They can get it out of Mr. English's Office. He has...he's
very well versed. Right, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, he and Mr. Nishihara -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --are working on composting toilets.
- 153 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, composting toilets you know, so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, happy to revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to. Not a problem. Okay, under Park Assessment there's only a
few districts that has such monies because of development approvals. So on line 1511
we've added West Maui Park expansion $115,000 and of course this would come from
Ms. Cochran's specific pot for her projects in her area only.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you for the consensus. So the 115 came out of
Bond Fund or where did it come from?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Okay so it dropped.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Park assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, it's in...you're adding it in park assessments now but it
came from another fund. Is that right? You're utilizing park assessments now for
these projects -CHAIR HOKAMA: Did we transfer this from...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in place of another fund? I think Mr. Baz is nodding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, hold on. Oh, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, it looks like you reduced in line 1502 the $550,000 from the
playgrounds was bond funded and so by adding this back in with West Maui park
assessment funds, yeah, you've reduced the Bond Fund and increased the Park
Assessment Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you for that, Mr. Baz.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura? Okay that's what, yeah, so that was one of the reasons
we were looking at the borrowing totals versus debt service requirements and then -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we felt that this was specifically for West Maui benefit and that's why we
asking you to consider it to come out of your Park Assessment Fund since this is a
specific West Maui project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And I have totally no issue with that. I'm just trying
to see...so you vetted through the projects that were proposed that could be
used...utilizing park assessments fees. All the items in Bond -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --under West Maui Parks were figured...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Lanai had some that I'm still doubling up on trying to understand how
Finance returned the money back to the landowner and the landowner has yet to
produce the project the money was supposed to fund. So, I'm reviewing that. But
your district and I think the only other district that may have park assessment money
is Mr. Couch. You should have some I believe from, well, yeah, 'cause we took a lot
out for projects in the past but I think you were the only other district that has such
monies. 'Cause unless you have projects and land use approvals the other districts do
not receive this kind of assessment monies 'cause it's in lieu of doing the park from
the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your support, Ms. Cochran. Okay, Hana
Community Plan General Facilities, this is from the General Fund, I am proposing
50,000 for the Hana Civic Center. This is to move the continued planning for the
East Maui's project and so I'm asking for your consensus.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Parks and Recreation General Fund Hana-Keanae-Kailua Park System
310,000 and, Members, we went through every district the same. We went through
the Department's submittal under systems projects, we assessed each component of
the project, the timing, the amount, and the ability to perform. So at this time...and
we can tell you exactly which part we went through with their priorities and so for
East Maui I'm recommending 60 reduction at this time, giving Mr. Carroll for the
system $250,000. And we can give Mr. Carroll the list of the projects for this year, for
that year that we expect them to do for your district with that money, Mr. Carroll.
Okay. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay. Under Bond Fund for Hana
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're on Page 49.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Helene Hall improvements the request was 500. The Chair has reduced
it but left enough money because one of the issues regarding this project is the
community's comment and Mr. Carroll is very aware about where a leachate field
should be, size, whether this we should consider it moving to a potential other site
closer to the old Hana School System. So my thing is give Mr. Carroll the money to
keep moving and planning, have his community discussions, and have a decision on
where they would like us to consider the project and then we can give them additional
funds for the more specific detailed requirements for him to come back to us for. But I
want to keep this prOject moving but I do know the community has their issues with
the leachate field and whatnot. So I want to give them time to have a community
consensus hopefully with Mr. Carroll, so that's why I'm making the adjustment. I've
explained to Mr. Carroll my approach to this. So, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And thank you. This will make the community feel better
because if we had okayed that old amount they'd think we were shoving it down their
throats. This way they know they get to participate in the decision. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you, Mr. Carroll, I appreciate your recommendations. So,
Members, Helene Hall improvements 50,000 consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hana, I mean, excuse me, Kihei-Makena South Maui Park System, I
reviewed their request. I feel like they can do what they said they were going to do in
'17 with 597,000 so I am recommending 597.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Page 50 Waipuilani Park Irrigation System again we had interesting
comments on this project. I've reviewed the request of 350. At this point in time I'm
recommending that the project be reduced. Keep it moving forward but at this time
I'm recommending for this project $100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just out of curiosity do you know what the concerns were?
CHAIR HOKAMA: On this project, who had parks for me?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 'Cause we're under kind of time crunch because of our own
ordinance.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah, no, I understand that, Mr. Couch. Shelly, you had this one?
Mr. Couch, since you asked to revisit we'll give you...let me get the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --specifics and we can share that with you so you can understand how we
arrived at the recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But we are happy to revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, line 1544 the request was for 1.45, I have reduced it by 1.3. I'm
leaving enough for... continue to plan and move forward. We all heard the comments
from South Maui, not all of them are happy with the current site.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, South Maui Community Park the request is 650
the Chair is recommending 650. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: South Maui Park System I think they had 20 projects for Mr. Couch.
Again we did our complete review of all components of the request of the 335. At this
point after the review and seeing the other bigger projects they also are working on,
the Chair is recommending a slight adjustment of a 32,000 reduction for net 303.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: He wants to revisit. Okay, Lanai Community ...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm sorry, I apologize. I have a question on the...for the Maui
Raceway Park as a CIP project, shouldn't that, yeah, I'm just requesting if that's...that
should be in there because when I look at Page 74 you have it there as a Maui
Raceway Park added the 2 million. The 2 million is actually coming from the State -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --for the improvements. I actually saw the bill. So isn't that
CIP improvements on that. Shouldn't that be in a CIP project?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It is not our project. We are just receiving of the grant money and then
we're going to...we're the receiver and intermediary. We just receiving and giving the
money.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh a pass, a pass through.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're the pass through agency.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But it's not a County's project.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is a Raceway Park project that the State is funding through a grant.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so 'cause you and Mr. Carroll had concerns about it so thank you for
that question.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, where were we?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Lanai. Lanai Park System.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay anybody wants to revisit my 25,000?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Lanai Parks System, what was I...what was the reason I increased
this one?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You took 'em from Kihei that's why.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no. You know I'm asking for thousands, not millions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus. There goes your millions.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I know what it is. Yeah, Members, the reason why after looking at all
of the request there's a lot of things that they're doing in one specific building or area
and so I just lumped it all and said -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --let's do it one time instead of doing two components this year, two
components next year but it's all for the same basic facility so I just lumped it all and
said do it one time. So that's why I combined that, threw it together and so my giant
request now goes $425,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Okay, Makawao-Pukalani-Kula under the Parks
System, again this is a big list for the 775 but the Chair in his review felt it was a fair
request therefore I'm recommending 775.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Bond Fund Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Park System the request was
850,000. I made the adjustment 425. Staff, what was my adjustment based on
for...let's see, this one. Hold on. Hold on. Okay, this one, Members, is made up of big
requests. So what I did was the 850,000 that you see under the Mayor's request,
when I look at the systems submittal from the Department, Project No. 1 Upcountry
pool complex, just that is 850,000. Okay one project for the complex. But the Chair
also looked at other components that I felt was important, which was the Eddie Tam
Gym need of some love and attention. So I made some adjustments. I made the
decrease but I believe what I have recommended was that they look at...looking at the
Eddie Tam Gym renovations. So the 425 that you see there is basically to basically
take care...let's see, the two big projects I was looking at was Haliimaile Gym roofing
replacement, Eddie Tam Gym building renovations, jealousy improvements,
interior/exterior renovations, and repair of facia for those monies. The request from
the Department for this district area was 1.6 million. That was the Department's
request. It came in at 850. Certain things we looked at more specific projects and
then we made the adjustment from their proposal to us and at this time that is how
we are looking at 425. So, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can revisit. Okay, 1580 I know we had a lot of testimony but and your
Chair did it from an overall Countywide perspective. At this time I'm not able to
recommend moving 1.2 million for the Skate Park and so I've ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit. Waiakoa Gym Improvements, I'm recommending the
request. We bought it, we might as well take care of it and fix it up.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Molokai Park System request was 320, again your Chair reviewed
list of the requests and therefore I'm recommending the same.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Bond Fund Molokai Parks 600,000, your Chair reviewed the project, I'm
recommending a slight reduction of 20,000 for 580,000 request under Bonds.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Paia-Haiku under General Fund the request is again your
Chair did the same thing for all districts, in my review I'm recommending 350. Any
concerns there?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, when do we... do you want provisos in right now or
later on?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be for round two, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah, if you ...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So, if you wanted to...if I wanted to add a proviso do I then
consent to a concession, I mean or -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, proviso, yeah I mean ...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --do I object?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no. You can ask for a revisit but even if we have consensus, yeah,
if you do have language you want us to consider as a proviso the Chair is open to that.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The key thing for the Chair is that we know where we're going to go with
the money. We're making decisions so that we can then start calculating all the
requirements to close the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: From Bond, Debt Service to bond cost, to all those other things, that's
more important to me at this point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Language, the provisos, the Chair will continue to stay open once you
folks make the call on which way you want the money to go. Under the Paia-Haiku
Bond Fund the request was 325, I made an adjustment, I've doubled it. And what was
the project I looked at for this money? I know I looked at something for this money.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: On the list we added a few more projects that they had provided for the
Committee's review. This was on a distribution that we did to the Committee on 4/11
from the Director of Parks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What are those projects?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, can you please state it please, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay. Mr. Chair, they have a project for Paia Community Center Building
Renovations for 4 sliding glass doors, again at Paia and that's $75,000. Paia
Community Center Building Renovations to modify existing roof drains at $125,000.
Lower Paia Park, the parking lot, and... so it's planning, design, and permitting, and
the construction of the parking lot for $385,000. Haiku field, a roofing replacement
for the scorekeeper's booth for $10,000. Paia Gym Playgrounds, resurfacing existing
basketball courts for $15,000, and they're doing the same thing at Haiku. Lower Paia
Park, they're also doing that as well but that one is going to cost 20,000. And I think
that's, takes care of the 325.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three-twenty-five, yeah. I think if you added it up it's more than 325.
What I'm doing is allowing the Department some flexibility. They have a cap on the
total amount they can use from the systems appropriation and they need to decide
which projects they want to do and complete within their limitations by their amended
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requests. The Chair, you know, also views Parks facilities as part of the County's
infrastructure system and so whether it be for kupunas or our young people I took
that seriously as an infrastructure consideration. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So this is an increase from what the Administration had
requested?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, this is from recently received communications from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
Yeah, basically, Chair, it's a little under the Department's
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
recommendation but -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --well over the Mayor's request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think it's something that with good management and administration of
the projects the Department can make it happen. Okay. Consensus, can we move
forward?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Wailuku-Kahului, under line 1615 Central Maui Parks System.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this is the parks system, yeah, no revisions, 539.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under Bond Fund Central Maui Parks System. I made an adjustment on
the borrowing component from 650 to 461.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit. We have a request so we'll revisit. Central Maui
Regional Sports Complex Maintenance Building. I've reviewed this. I'm not quite
ready yet not knowing exactly ...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The Department when they were here to discuss the CIP they requested
that this project be pulled.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The 125, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Waiehu Golf Course Starter Booth and Restaurant, again the Chair made
a reduction in this project. I'm not ready to give them the construction money and
whatnot till we know exactly what they're going to propose to build and they can tell
us their plans 'cause I expect this to be a enterprise area where it will make money for
the County, not cost us money. So I'm going to have the Department come back and
give us an update on specifically what they are requesting us to look at 'cause I think
we can do more than just a booth and restaurant there. I think we can offer
community meeting spaces and whatnot 'cause it is one of the few County facilities,
Members, that has ample parking, one of the few government facilities with ample
parking. Do we have consensus on 500,000?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Waiehu Golf Course wastewater improvements. I reviewed it. I'm happy
for them to keep moving forward. I'm not sure, I'm not sold on that leach component
on what is that, Hole 14 as well as the main restaurant facilities and wastewater
requirements at the Clubhouse and as well as the maintenance building. So I want
them to do better planning and come back to us so I've reduced the overall request but
left them enough money to still do a better update for us to send to Council next year.
So I've left 50,000 for them to continue their planning on this project. Consensus or
revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What does the area rep say?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yeah, I'm sure Mr. Victorino remembers when still had the old
Sandalwood Clubhouse before it burned down on at that other end of the golf course.
Waikapu Basketball Court Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Waikapu Expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Wailuku Pool Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: War Memorial Complex Project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: War Memorial paving improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the one we had a lot of discussion about Kanaloa Avenue and that
whole area also.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's why I left money but until we decide which way we want to go we
can work with the Department; 100,000?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: West Maui Park System the Chair has reviewed the Department's request,
I'm not making any changes. Any concerns, questions, consensus, 85,000?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, under Bond Fund West Maui Parks System the request was 1.8, I
added the 115--no I did not add, we reduced. Ms. Yoshimura? This is about your
park assessment money, Ms. Cochran. Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, this is an error on our part. It should have been a reduction for
$115,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so again it was, it's this pot.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, on Page 49 -CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I saw the same same, so I thought hmm.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we'll make the appropriate adjustments, Ms. Cochran, to reflect it
accurately.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, consensus, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Under West Maui Parks System the request was
600,000 from the fund we deleted that request that it be all taken out of the Parks
Assessment Fund. So we didn't agree with the Parks approach for this use of your
money, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And so this still have money in it though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, yeah
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, the money...it can only be used for your projects in your district.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, and so Ms. Yoshimura knows that I have a list.
They're pretty kind of smaller items that I would like to see out of this fund. So we'll
work and put that proposal so I guess at this point a revisit on this item.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wouldn't this be where, you know, Ms. Cochran had mentioned
the harbor front improvements. This I would think would be where it would go.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Actually it's the Banyan Park Improvement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I was going to wait till she actually brought up because I don't if
know she want us to pursue it but if you do want to bring it up -- 165 -
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --now is the time, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I will then after if you're okay with it then I will ask Mr. Ueoka if he
has some verbal comments he is willing to share with us at this time regarding the
proper use of those funds for your request.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I guess if this is the place and time to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah then this is where I was wondering if it would be an
appropriate use for the Lahaina Harbor Improvement Plan.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. When, Ms. Cochran, just for clarification it's the Lahaina
Library Landscape Concept, is that the?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's another phase I think.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's a different phase. Mr. Chair, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, they're in ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, yeah, there's different phases to this. The Imagine
Project is what it was slated. So this portion now ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again so help us, yeah, my understanding this is about the banyan
tree side.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's more in front ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, this is the courthouse side?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: More on the harbor side.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, you know, the wall that runs all along the front, the
harbor front, the big tree that -- 166 -
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --everybody waits under before they go on to Expeditions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That wall.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That walk area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So between the road and that wall that whole section down
to the bathroom is slated for a big improvement with trellises and shade and benches
and whatever things. So that's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's basically under DLNR.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's our land.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We own it?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's our land.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No it's EO'd to us, right? It's by executive order that we need Department
of Land Board -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don't think so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --approval to do things and changes. Mr. Baz, are you...do you know the
status of that one?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, unfortunately I do not know that. I had thought that this project
wasn't ready to be funded this fiscal year. And so the reason why I thought that it
wasn't going to be funded is they just entered into the agreement for the money we
gave them for this past year. So and they haven't really started spending it yet so I
didn't think they were going to be ready for a larger project. But I understand they
provided information to the Committee afterwards but yeah so I didn't look too much
details into this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Yeah, Ms. Cochran and I were at the groundbreaking of
the first phase and they said they were ready...they were getting the permits all in a
row and they're ready to go with the next phase that goes all the way to the other side
of the, you know the Kapalua side of the library all in front there and then all around
the library as well. So, it's a big huge park area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, any comment you could share at this time?
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MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I was trying to look at the Real Property Tax website, I can't
tell who owns that little parcel where the tree is. There's a little area more down that's
own by the State. I believe the banyan tree area is owned by the State, EO'd to us.
And for the library portion which is another phase of this project, I believe we own a
bunch of the land that's under the library but it kind of like it's a flag lot and the State
owns the other portion. Like behind the library more makai of the library opposite of
Front Street, that's the State owned portion according to the Real Property Tax
website. So ownership of land might be interesting for the use of the Park Assessment
Fund. You may want to look into that further. However we get the power to do the
park assessment under HRS 46-6 and basically it says, you know, you can pay an
in-lieu fee instead of giving land and these funds shall be used for the purpose of
providing parks and playgrounds for the use of purchasers or occupants of lots or
units in the subdivision. And our County Code basically mimics that language. So
basically it would be policy decision, Chair, as to whether or not you feel that this
project would be appropriate and would fit under, you know, shall be used for the
purpose of providing parks and playgrounds for the use of purchasers or occupants of
lots or units in the subdivision. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your oral comment at this time. What I would ask,
Ms. Cochran, is we are not...we don't need to make a decision tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I would ask if maybe you would some time tomorrow and work with
Corp. Counsel and try and figure out if there's any issues with the land and whatnot
and if not -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --please propose it, well be happy to take up the consideration in round
two for your request of assessment funds for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, no problem. Thanks for the opportunity. But in
question to what Mr. Ueoka just said, park assessments, so it says nothing about park
improvements. Aren't we using a bunch of that for that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. If you go a little further into 18.16.320 and 46-6 it also
provides for a combination of using in-lieu fees to improve existing parks and we've
also kind of interpreted that to also say that since a developer could give us money
to...or use their money to also improve an existing park that the in-lieu fee money we
could use to improve existing parks. And those fit pretty cleanly into you're providing
parks and playgrounds for the use of purchaser occupants through the improvement
of the playground. And I think that's why we've often said try to stay away from
maintenance type projects of a park or playground and more of improvements. I know
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it's a fine, strange distinction but I'm sure if you look hard enough one exists. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you for that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Can I also request Corporation Counsel to look into applying
the park assessment fees to Mokuula and Mokuhinia to see if that's, you know, like a
cultural park type restoration? If that would fit into that type of definition.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Again, it's...we kind of leave that more if it's a policy
decision this body wants to make that it feels that that fits, you know, we won't get in
the way of that but it is for the purpose of providing parks and playgrounds for the use
of purchasers or occupants of the lots or units in the subdivision. And that's not to
say that that type... a cultural park or a passive park ...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Like what we have in Upcountry. What is that? The
Chinese ...
MR. UEOKA: Sun Yat Sen.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Sun Yat Sen, yeah.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, again, as I was saying--Chair, sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, proceed.
MR. UEOKA: You know there's, you know, I guess cultural type parks, passive parks, active
recreation parks. So it's kind of more how this body feels about it and of course well
comment but it's this body's discretion. Of course we need to see more into the
project also, the description. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your comments. So with that, Members, we are going
to revisit this and allow Ms. Cochran some time to consider how she wants to move
forward on this. Okay, 1678 Wailuku Redevelopment parking lot expansion
5,520,714. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: First of all I was just curious where that number came from
and second of all I believe it was testimony by both Ms. Wade and Mr. Starr that they
needed the satellite parking first in order to close down this parking so they have
someplace to put all the cars now. So it's one of those chicken in the egg things I
think.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would prefer we fold it all under this one project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This one. Okay. So this...they can do the satellite ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is where I would have them come and ask for the satellite parking
component because it is impact from this project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the driving project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so I want to make all those that associates through this project come
out of this project so that we can get a really good understanding of the full impact
and cost that this project will impact the County tax base on.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Department of Police Countywide Facilities, again like all
Countywide requests the Chair gave all departments the same list of what we expect
for information from just general...from description, to scope, to better numbers
regarding the components of acquisition, design, planning, and construction as well as
to be upfront with us regarding operational impact on costs. Again you are very well
aware, Members, building a building is not our problem. It's maintaining the building
after we build it is the problem. So, anyway, under Countywide Police they
put...asked for 1.11 million. I reviewed it. I've adjusted it by 170 and I'm
recommending we give them $940,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is this where they requested under CIP for those lockers that
are falling...we saw the pictures and they're strapped on and they're falling down.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's going to be taken care of in house. That's going to be
taken care of in house.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Who handled police?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It is? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on, Mr. Couch, one second. Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, when the Department was here, they talked about the three
major projects, the renovation of the Police...the dispatch center, the parking lot
repaving, and the incinerator but they did also include for $20,000 the men's locker
room at the Wailuku Station. But when they did send us a response back it wasn't
included, you know, in their response for Countywide. So in their initial from the
Chief of Police they had included that to come up to the total of 1.1 million I believe.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's just that having seen those pictures it's kind of scary.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? I thought, Ms. Yoshimura, I thought that -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Captain Jakubczak he said that it was being taken care of
in house.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I thought he...the lockers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Yeah, the lockers are going to be replaced using operational monies -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, yeah.
MR. BAZ: --as a repair maintenance item.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It was taken care of.
MR. BAZ: But that, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I guess we have consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so can we move 940 forward, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay, Molokai District the request was 1.37 for the station,
new station. I made an adjustment upon hearing comments from the Department and
so I want to keep this project alive. I would like to at least leave some money so that
in case Ms. Crivello and the Department can come up with a site for us then we can
continue to move forward for the islands police requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll move 390 forward for this project. Okay, under Department of
Public Works General Fund Drainage the request is 1 million, I'm recommending
1 million. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Government Facilities General Fund Countywide Facility Building
Improvements they requested 950 I reduced it by 600 and the net is 350. You can
look at Mr. Goode's comments. The projects that are within the 350 is to deal with the
spalling issue as well as the second floor project that they requested regarding
maintenance and water proofing. So that's what those monies will take care of too.
The rest I would like them to come up with a better assessment on how to try and cure
the problem. For those of us that have corner offices every time it rains or the wind
blows you folks are the very ones that know the impact, those of you in corner offices.
So I hope you can appreciate how I'm approaching this please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know I've been there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I am there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I am there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So can we move 350 forward at this time?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under Other Projects 1712 Bridge inspection and elevations of various
County bridges 80,000, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Bikeway Fund County Bikeway Improvements, the 600 I've deleted
it under Countywide and what we've done was put specific numbers to the 2 specific
projects is how the Chair approached it. So you'll see it further down under those 2
projects, Waipuilani and West Maui Greenway, yeah, so it should be the West Maui,
Members, not just West Greenway. It's the West Maui, we know what the people were
talking about. So that's why my request for this is zero since I've placed those monies
into two specific projects.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Was that still out of the Bikeway Fund though?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Highway Fund, the Department had requested we consider certain
projects under the Highway Fund for Countywide bridge improvements. Again as the
Chair had mentioned to your earlier the concern is the liquidity of the fund. Earlier
we handed out this morning you know that the fund for Beautification and Abandoned
Vehicles is $1 million short. We are going to make some decisions on how we might
want to consider transfers but because of also that kind of factors I'm recommending
that these projects in this area be moved to bonds.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Countywide Pavement Preservation, no changes to the
request of half a million dollars. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
- 173 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Under Countywide Road Resurfacing and Pavement Preservation, again we
are under the Special Funds -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so we upped it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, $5,623,385.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the Chair is going to support the request under Countywide safety
600, sidewalks 500, traffic calming 200,000. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Page 56, okay, this is where you see under Bond Fund I've placed
the cash, adjusted from cash so here you see the bonds for 370. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is this just a typo? 'Cause it says it's moved from Bond Funds
to Bond Funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, thank you for that catch. Yeah, thank you, we'll make the
appropriate -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Correction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --nonsubstantive adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, 370 Bonds. Hana Community Plan Area Bond Fund
Kalepa Project 500, Koukouai Bridge 600, Piilani Highway Nuanualoa 147. I'm
supporting the request. Any objections? Consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have only one concern -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --on top there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The 1767 the rock fall.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, yeah we not there yet, Mr. Carroll, I'm just taking care the first three
projects and then we're going to hit that next one right after we finish this. So one
second please. Okay, Highway Fund Rockfall Embankment Assessments Hana
District 350. I've recommended deletion because again I don't think we have enough
money in that Highway Fund. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Goode when he came before us he
said that was one thing he didn't think could be put off and I went and I checked.
And actually we had a meeting in Kaupo and some other places and there's a lot of
concern. If you remember the earthquake we had back that did some damage over
there. There were a lot of areas from if you're going toward Kipahulu from Wailua all
the way to past Kaupo they were a little bit marginal but nobody ever really went back
and looked at them. And there's a lot of concern about those areas, if we don't get
some scrutiny in there that we could have some real problems. So I would ask the
Chair and the Committee if we could reinstate that monies. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, yeah, happy to return and review that again, Mr. Carroll. So we'll
return to 1768, not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Does this have any bearing on the Keanae section?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we already funded that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay, never mind.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was again one of the unanticipated budget amendments that was
important that came forward and that I think we put couple of million to that project if
I remember right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I thought ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Keanae one, the one...for the side of the road because we had the
issues between us and the State ownership of State lands.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, right, right, right. Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we've pushed that project out already.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That was figured out. Okay. Where was I? Okay, anyway.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. The Committee was asked and you folks recommended it,
and Council approved the project. Yeah, so that was the other things your Chair took
into account, what did we approve during the current budget year for the various
districts and so I took that into account of how to balance this budget request to be
fair to all the districts. Okay, 1772.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On that one just I mean in the last quite a few you've
mentioned that you're concerned about the health of that fund -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --so but yet you're going to move 2 million into this fund out of
Lapsed Bond proceeds. I'm just curious what the thinking was there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This one again because for me, Mr. Couch, I'm looking at potentially
borrowing again depending where we end up and then the fund will still have to pay
for the debt and the bond. But this is just for us to get a sense. I'm just making the
recommendations because I've moved lapsed bonds to projects that I felt was ready for
construction so I don't have to deal with arbitrage issues. And that is why you will see
one of the projects that I have asked to consider and I'm going to respect Ms. Crivello's
comments on this project is the Molokai Baseyard. And that's 'cause I felt that lapsed
bond was more appropriate and then Mr. Baz and I don't need to deal with again that
arbitrage -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --concern.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so we are at the Piilani Project $2.003 million. Questions? Revisit?
Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus. And for those that are listening this is out ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's why if you see the very next line it's ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hana District.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But this is out in the Hana District though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not Piilani Highway in South Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's why you see the 2 million upfront, right, that you just asked me
about, Mr. Couch, and then the next line you will see the reduction from...because we
got to balance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, I was just curious where...
CHAIR HOKAMA: It's a balancing requirement for us.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Makena-Kihei District Bond Fund, North South Collector Road Lokelani to
Auhana. I think this one was about the timing of the Federal Funds. Hold on,
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yes, Mr. Chair, construction is not set till 2021 with Federal funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, for now anyway and ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, until the MPO works on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But, you know, for me at this point in time I wanted to focus on projects
that we could do sooner than later. I know this is a big project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's a huge project and the designs almost done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand that and again because originally it would have built already.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this is not a new project. They know that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We know that. But I'm happy to, you know, keep it going but I took into
account I didn't want to tap some monies I felt was important to present for other
more current projects since this was scheduled for 2021.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha. I'd still like to revisit and then -CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --have Mr. Goode explain -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --`cause he's asking to have it back.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yeah, and that was one of the big considerations of the Federal fund
timing -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --of 2021.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, no, happy to revisit. Seventeen-eighty-eight Pavement Rehab
South Maui, same request 1.86 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd like to revisit that in that potentially I'm going to ask to put
in another, either a proviso or another 300K for resurfacing Kaiwahine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit 1788. Piikea Avenue Resurfacing 1792, I've
recommended deletion on this one. Okay, thank you. This is by request of the
Department. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. South Kihei Road Improvements Phase IV, the 1.5 I
believe this is also from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Bikeway Fund Waipuilani Bike Path $150,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, move it forward, moving forward. Lanai Community Plan Lanai
Baseyard $300,000.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Moving forward. Page 58 Makawao-Pukalani-Kula
District Bond Fund I'm recommending 800,000 for the Waipoli Road ditch
improvements. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not to take away from this. I'm all about drainage but they
can expend this right here right now? I mean design is done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which project?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Waipoli. And sorry, Ms. Baisa, not to...I'm just trying to
find that money for those trucks still under Bond Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Find 'em someplace else.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So just, you know, I mean we've been scrutinizing all the
other projects, making sure they're good to go, if we can break it up from design funds
here, maybe next year do the construction funds then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But just asking.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, the Chair in the review of what was presented for our information
felt that this is to go.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, no, very good. Excellent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and so that's why I can recommend, I'm recommending we move
forward the 800.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshirnura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: When the Department was here they said that the design was completed
and they were planning to begin work in January 2017.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Something wrong with your phone.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's the test, that's your test, Mr. Couch.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry when the Department was here they did say the design was already
completed and that work was expected to start in January 2017.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that update. Hiolani Street drainage improvements
this one in review the Chair felt wasn't ready to go at this point in time. So I was going
to recommend that we defer this till next year and that's my recommendations.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, did the Department or did the Director agree?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we didn't call the Director on this one, Ms. Baisa. I just went on what
was received from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is few doors from me that's why.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no. And so I'm happy to receive your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to revisit. I'd like a chance to check it out. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to do so. Not a problem, Ms. Baisa.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eighteen-nineteen, we'll return, not a problem. Okay, Highway Fund, this
is again still at the Upcountry District Makawao-Pukalani.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, you know, I'm going to ask you for consensus on guardrail and
shoulder improvements 300,000 and I'm recommending 2.4 million for Kokomo Road
Makawao Avenue reconstruction.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus. And thank you for putting this in, Chair. That road
is really, really bad.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Really, really bad.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You just jump from side to side. It's terrible. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, again I want you to know the Staff worked really hard to make sure we
try and provide you the appropriate projects, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, this is really a bad one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we understand. We understand, Ms. Baisa, and so yeah we are happy
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --recommend moving this forward. Thank you. Okay, Molokai Drainage
System B or B...yeah, Drainage System B. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, very good. We'll move 200,000 forward. This is also for Molokai
under Bond Fund I've made an adjustment 1.297 under...for the baseyard is an add
and then you will see for the project requirements under point No. 2 Lapsed Bond
proceeds Molokai Baseyard we've put the 3.703 million of lapsed bond proceeds to this
project. So both 1.297 and 3.703 is for the baseyard project.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Staff.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, so 1.297 bond moving forward with 3.7 lapsed bond moving
forward. Okay, Paia-Haiku Highway Fund Kaupakalua Road, Pauwela Road 550,000,
500,000. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow, I guess everyone wants to go home. Wow that was
unison.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think everybody knows what roads we talking about that's why and I
think the Members are just happy we are finally addressing those specific road
Okay, Wailuku-Kahului under Drainage, Papa Avenue drainage
projects.
improvements 400,000 and then I have under Highway Fund for Wailuku-Kahului I'm
recommending movement from Highway but still putting 850,000 for Central Maui
drainline repairs. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a typo I think, is it going from the Highway Fund or to the
Highway Fund?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair? Sorry, on line 1870 it should read General Fund. It's projects
that are moving from the Highway to the General Fund. After consulting with
Corporation Counsel we were not comfortable with funding those...this project and the
next project with Highway Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to make sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, that was one of the concerns. Mr. Goode had requested the
projects he was willing to propose it through borrowing and that all of it be repaid by
the Highway Fund. We just wanted to double check so with advice from Corporation.
Counsel that is why we made the adjustments for General Fund because we weren't
able to justify Highway Fund use. So, 850 Central Maui drainage line repairs and
300,000 for the testing and...existing Wailuku/ Kahului injection wells. Do we have
consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for those questions. Okay, Central...okay, this is just
housekeeping. We already took care that in an earlier line.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Same thing with the next one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The injection wells we just took care of that. Okay, Waikea [sic] Avenue
and Niihau drainage improvements I'm recommending 450,000. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Plenty water on that road.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I'm sure Mr. Guzman understands this project well. Okay, General
Fund Kalana 0 Maui leaks half a million dollars. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You were talking about getting the leaks repaired at...on the
other I guess it was Countywide County Facilities.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So now that this takes care of that are you wailing until these
get repaired before you do...you want to approve the other stuff that Mr. Goode wants
to do?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I want to have more discussions -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --with Mr. Goode on the approach. There come a time where rebuilding is
cheaper than maintaining. I mean we all understand that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And also part of that is before we hit the magic 50-year mark where
everything is a historic structure so I want us to be able to plan and forecast what is
the best route for us to go to, Members. So thank you for allowing me some flexibility.
Okay, Waikapu Baseyard we already made the call earlier so we're moving on.
Kalana 0 Maui electrical building upgrade we made a decision earlier. So we're going
to move to Page 61. Okay Bond Fund I made some adjustments you can see,
Members, 'cause there was a lot of request for borrowing and that was one of my areas
of concern. So Imi Kala Environmental Study 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I've decided to move that. Okay, Kahakuloa Stream bridge 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit. Revisit Kahakuloa.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can revisit. Kanaloa and Mahalani.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Onehee and Kea Street.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's 200,000, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Vineyard Street roadway and drainage improvements I've asked the
Department to come back with something more specific because where I was looking
at it and Mr. Victorino was giving some comment I found out that's not where the
project is going to be. So I've asked Department to give me more information so we're
very clear where the project is, what the project is for, and what has MRA provided
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applicants in regards to waivers of improvements and parking requirements on
Vineyard Street is what I'm asking the agency to give us comment on so we can better
review this project request.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So is that a revisit then?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I'm going to ask to revisit this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nineteen-twenty-six revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For Highway Fund Central Maui upgrades 270 and Kamehameha Avenue
sidewalk, Lono to Puunene 330. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Waikea [sic] and Kamehameha Avenue intersection improvements. Gosh
what was my concern there, Staff? Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, this is where they wanted to do a roundabout study.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: This is the roundabout study or was it just the lighting? I
remember it was the intersection lights.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Can we revisit please?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, sure, Mr. Guzman. Yeah, we want to make sure that, yeah, we get
the right factors for the right ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: By the way, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not to be corrective 'cause we getting all tired but it's
Wakea. You keep saying Waikea. Waikea is -CHAIR HOKAMA: Big Island.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Big Island so Wakea. Just to be on the safe side, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for that reminder.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't want them coming over here and telling me where's
my money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well return to that, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: West Maui Bond Fund Lahaina Wastewater Flood Control Project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This was discussed with Public Works and ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, 'cause it's I mean something we need to keep -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --on top of and make sure we don't fall back on the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand your concern exactly and that is one of the key factors
before we make any adjustments, the ability to perform.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I believe I don't see it in Mr. Goode's testimony this
morning so I consensus on this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and then again if something comes up that changes the status we
can always review, not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, Members, yeah, we're working off consensus -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so the Chair is happy to, you know, review if need be. The West Maui
Pilot Project I've deleted the 1.5. You will see in the very next line under Bikeway
Fund I've added 300,000 for design funds and to move this project moving forward so
that we can get it hopefully toward construction considerations. So there's a 300,000
request for West Maui Greenway.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, where was that 1.5 coming from to begin with? Also
from Bike Fund originally?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, I think it was borrowed money?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, the proposal was for Bond Funds so yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, no, I'm good, Chair, I think this is a nice
showing on our behalf to push the project forward.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What if it doesn't?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What? It's just for designs.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's just for design?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, to move it forward, design and...basically the design component.
Let's see, Department of Transportation bus stops and shelters I made an adjustment
of 500,000. Part of it is, one, I think they can save some money on the design side. I
think, you know, we had some discussions that, you know, for certain structures if
they can use a basic design with similar dimensions. I don't have a problem with the
design money to create the slab 'cause it's different terrains so I understand that. And
second, you know, I swear I gave the Department advance notice but since they did
not go out and solicit comment about potential rate adjustments this is one area
where the subsidy is going to grow this year 'cause we are not adjusted fares and
anything else for this program area. So for the buses subsidy is going to grow greater
than 80 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The only reason why I'd revisit this one is because I have a
potential proviso in this section for the bus stops.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For the bus stops? Sure be happy, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah bus stops and shelters. I've been in dialogue with
Department also -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --so they are aware of what I'm intending.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, very good. Okay, we look forward to that for round two.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, so revisit on my behalf please. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you, we're be happy to consider your request.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: May I get some clarification 'cause this is the third time I've
heard, you know, you want to revisit for provisos. If you gave consensus and you
want to put a proviso that means ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm open to that too. I'm okay with that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay, okay. Just because I've heard that three times
tonight and I'm like wait a minute because there's a bunch of provisos I'd like to put
forward but we've already had consensus. So, okay, so as long as that's on the table I
have no qualms. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, again, yeah, you made the call on the money and at this point in
time in round one that's more important for me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we can get a sense and we can kind of continue to narrow the...what is
remaining for settlements.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair? Chair, can we have a recess?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I'm happy to take a break for everybody's requirements.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just for the record.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Did we have consensus on the amount?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one, Bond Fund for bus shelters?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: For bus shelters.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So Ms. Cochran ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Ms. Cochran is going to provide...oh, you not?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Actually, no, sorry I might have to adjust the total.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We need to revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So this is revisit on my behalf.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I got the sense that Ms. Cochran was going to add money as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I'd prefer the whole mil but I'll figure that one out
when I get to it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, so for the revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we shall revisit then we can look at the dollar amount as well as the
provisos, that's not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to take a break and then continue with Water
Department after the break. Ten minutes okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Roger.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, ten-minute recess. . . .(gavel). . .
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

8:28 p.m.
8:38 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members, reaching the goal line for tonight. Okay,
may I direct you please on Page 62 Department of Water. This is under State
Revolving Loan Fund line 7...not 17, 1973.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 2 million Omaopio tank booster replacement.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We get consensus on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Whoa, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This money is coming out of State Revolving?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Because he took away this money from West Maui
Lahainaluna booster pump.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If I recall.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's not the one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay I guess I'm wrong.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's not the one, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No? Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It was my project in Waiale -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that he took the money.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Never mind.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, let's not...don't be blaming Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I took the money, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I thought, okay, wrong tank and got it. Thanks for the
clarification. Consensus then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys are so lovable.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thanks a lot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let's us keep moving, Members. Countywide upgrades replacement
1.95 million. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 1 million, this is Water Supply Unrestricted Funds 1 million
conservation program -COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --2.150 for facility improvements.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five-hundred-fifty for upgrades and replacements.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Very good. Very good.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We ripping. Hurry up before they take their project out of
yours. We're going to take the money out of your project, girl. Okay, continue.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You leave the room you take your chances.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Makawao-Pukalani-Kula SRF 2.5 Reliability Capacity Project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Water Fund Restricted 2.2 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Reliable Capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Moving.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Wailuku-Kahului Water Fund Restricted -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --425. State Revolving Loan Fund let's see, I've reduced it, for the
West Maui Reliable Capacity I've adjusted it from 13 million to 10 million and let's
see ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit 'cause I don't want Ms. Cochran to get upset again.
I going find her the money. No, revisit seriously.
CHAIR HOKAMA: West Maui Reliability, okay, and this was State Revolving Fund. I'm just
looking at the notes so I can give you now. Okay, we can come back to this one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The rest is all grant funds? That's it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's it for tonight. Oh, wait hold on.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's okay, we're going to work till we get it right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of the adjustments for that project, that 13.210 was so that the
Department can provide an aerial diagram depicting the site for the proposed
Mahinahina Well 1 facility and future expansion for Well 2. There was a request from
the Committee to identify the proposed locations of Well 1 and Well 2 on the site.
Further identify location of transmission lines that will service both wells. And that
was part of the discussion regarding this financial request if you guys recall that in
meeting with the Department. Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. The way I look at this is kind of like with the flume that we gave
the money till we got better clarification. They came back and we gave them the
expansion request. So I think it's, you know, they've got plenty of money to play with
for a while.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And so the Well 1 is already
underway I believe and last ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I think that was part of your comments so where is Well 2.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Why do we need to do a second exploratory when we already know Well 1
is a producing well. I think it was part of the ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not as much as expected but you know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct but they made it to production though.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They're going to keep it moving forward and now searching
for a second -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --`cause the first didn't produce as much as they thought.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which I agree and so, Chair, you know, I'm good. As
Mr. White mentioned it's one of those things where they want the whole amount here,
right here right now but technically I don't believe they actually need. And if so then
as you stated and shown in the past, open to amendments throughout the year so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So are you okay with the adjusted 10 million?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I'm okay. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thirteen-two-ten.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah that's a lot of money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, then we'll take it off.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no I'm all good, Mr. Victorino.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you not going ask back my money from Waiale please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we moved forward on that. So thank you very much, Members. So
with that we have completed round one. And we did some good work. We are going to
revisit a bunch of things which is fine with your Chair. For those that requested
revisit please do your part in round two. Be prepared to either present your proviso or
your option. If you needing more money tell the Chair how you're going to deal with
that issue or propose to the Chair how you would like to fund your request. And again
we are balanced currently, so you want add, do a subtraction. If you do a subtraction
you can do an add. Any questions? Other than that, Ms. Yoshimura, we return
tomorrow morning at 9:00 a.m.? Nine a.m., Members, we return for the beginning of
round two. So please use the time, get your rest, and prepare yourselves for round
two. Any questions for the Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, no, no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If not, thank you very much, Members, for your presence. This will allow
the Chair and...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If you don't mind real quickly I'd like to give a quick
overview of what happened in Oahu today if you'd allow just about two minutes. I
mean, I know it's late and everybody wants to go home so who wants to hear it now,
but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I would allow it because it is part of the revenues component of BF-1.
So, I'm happy to hear your comments but again I appreciate your sensitivity to the
Members' situation and the time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If the Members want to hear it if they don't they can just
tell me no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I think it's important for you to give a summary.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, let me go real quickly then. Ms. Baisa and I we did
journey to Oahu today and was a part of, first of all, getting what I consider some
positive feedback from various...what do you call those?...the committees -- 194 -
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Conferees.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --conferees. Thank you. I couldn't remember the word but
thank you. Conferees from the two sides. They had a meeting at 2 o'clock this
afternoon. We had a very good turnout. Five from the Big Island, one from Kauai,
Ms. Baisa and myself from Maui. I knew we were in trouble as far as anything
happening when only Mr. English from the Senate side and Brower from the House
side were the only two members sitting in the room. So I said okay that's not going to
happen. But there's no change in the position so let me start off by saying House is
still no cap, changing in the proportion or the percentages given to the various
counties, and no working group. The Senate is still on their 103 cap and a working
group. So the two sides are definitely divided. Senate asked to meet tomorrow and
have the House bring an updated version. I would assume that's what's going to
happen tomorrow and then I'm not sure if anything more is going to happen. I'll be
there to see what goes on and report right away when I find out. I believe and I've
been told by leadership and Ms. Baisa can correct me if I'm wrong, by leadership that
probably Friday is when well get the number, what the number will be and if there's
any change in the portions or the percentages going to the counties. I feel and I don't
know if Ms. Baisa feels the same way I feel very positive. I think we're working in the
right direction. We got nothing but positive feedback from different people that we
talked to, conferees that we talked to today. Meaning nothing, no guarantee but I
think we're moving in the right direction, Mr. Chair. So but I wouldn't put anything
back in the budget until we get some numbers. I think what you've done is proper. I
did have a couple of them ask me about again Real Property Tax. And using
Mr. White's numbers and all that showing that we still have had over a 30 percent
increase since 2007. So they kind of backed away, you know, but overall I think it
was very positive and Ms. Baisa wants to add anything else I will allow her if you allow
her to say a few words.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well, thank you for your part, Mr. Victorino. Ms. Baisa, we are
happy to receive your thoughts.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. I think Mr. Victorino gave you
a good report. There's something that you can't give in a report and that's the feeling
that you get when you visit the neighbors. And I have to say that as we went around
the capitol and we went everywhere because we were very busy delivering omiyage
which was very appreciated. And, you know, they know we're from Maui. They know
who we are. They know we're there and they make comments like oh I see Maui is
here. And they thank us for coming and I thought it was very great and I was so
happy to see the large contingent from the Big Island. You know it shows them that
HSAC is together and to have at least have a representative from Kauai. They know
that the counties are paying attention and they acknowledge it. And so I want to
thank you for giving us the opportunity to go. If we are successful and we bring home
any more money than we think we might have at the moment it's not only going to
benefit Maui County but it's going to benefit all of the counties. And so thank you
again for giving us the opportunity to be excused from this work. We're torn 'cause,
you know, we're worried about what's going on here but we also really want to try and
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see if we can make headway there. So I want to thank my colleagues. I understand,
you know, how hard this is and carrying the ball. But we want to try. And thank you
very much we'll continue to watch this. Mr. Victorino will go back tomorrow. I don't
think that I'm going to go 'cause I feel like I need to be here. And Mr. Souki has, you
know, as you know we've done this for many years and generally these TAT, these final
decisions are made in the wee hours of the last day. And so that's what we're talking
about today and it will probably be done then. So we'll see what happens tomorrow
and Mr. Victorino will keep us involved and we'll go from there. But I will be here
tomorrow, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, both of you for representing our interest which is the interest
of our people. So thank you for that. I can tell you people like Mr. Couch felt
channeling your requests to me was appropriate and I'm sorry if he gave you a
headache.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He did.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He did.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so again you might want to use technology as the vehicle to
communicate than channeling. With all, you know, humor aside what you do, the two
of you do for us is very critical in this juncture of the budget process which still has
challenges on the overall bill and how to approach it so that the future Councils can
sit in a manner that they have options and choices to present to the people and it's not
either or. I would hate to put a future Council in that situation if we don't do our job
well at this point in time. So thank you for representing the interest of our people and
through this Council. So with that, Members, tomorrow round two starts. There is a
public hearing component to tomorrow's requirements I believe at 6:00 p.m.
conducted by Chairman White. So with that if there's no further questions or
business. Thank you again, Members. Thank you, Staff. We are adjourned.
. . .(gavel). . .
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion

ADJOURN: 8:53 p.m.
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